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PREFACE 
Innovations in science and technology are fairly evident and visible to everybody. Smart phones, 
computers, robots and air travel are the fruits of technology which do not need any elaboration. What 
is not readily apparent or visible to most people is the even greater contribution of Business Innovation. 

Business innovations are social or legal. It is the outcome of consensus among societies and civilizations 
for the exchange of goods and services. For instance, the introduction of paper money by governments 
as legal tender for the exchange of goods and services is the outcome of complex interlocking laws. 
The exchange of goods and services among sovereign nations requires even more complex set of 
international laws. 

The chapter separator in this Annual Report features 15 Business Innovations, ancient and 
contemporary, which  had profound and far reaching impact on human civilization.
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL 

Date: March 7, 2016

All Shareholders
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission 
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms 
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

Dear Sir(s)

Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2015

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report of BSRM Steels Limited together with the Audited Financial Statements, 
Consolidated Financial Statements, Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended December 31, 2015 
for your information and records. 

Yours sincerely

Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA 
Group CFO & Company Secretary 
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A contract is a written or expressed agreement between two parties to provide 
a product or service; with legally enforceable terms and conditions.

Law of Contract
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BSRM
VISION

WE AT BSRM GROUP ASPIRE TO…..

Maintain our leadership position in the steel industry by producing the best quality steel products, continuously enhancing customer 
satisfaction and becoming a reliable business partner of our Customers and Suppliers.

Be an employer of choice, with focus on nurturing talent and developing future leaders of the organization.

Protect the interest of our shareholders through sustainable growth and value creation.

Preserve the trust of all our stakeholders by adopting ethical business practices.

Support the society through Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives. 
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Sustainable Growth
Consistent improvement in the quality of products and services, efficiency of processes and profitability of business; 
continuously anticipating and responding to the changing business and environmental needs using innovation; sharing 
knowledge and experience within the organization
 
Quality
Creating products and services valued by our customers; constantly improving our processes through innovation and 
adopting best practices; reducing wastage; minimizing costs; investing in systems and technology and developing our 
people to build a highly capable workforce.

Reliability
Be the preferred business partner of our customers and suppliers by offering quality products; providing our best and 
timely service before, during and after the business transactions and honouring all our commitments despite challenges.

Trust
Preserve the faith and goodwill of all our stakeholders – Customers, shareholders, suppliers, employees, regulatory bodies 
and society by-adopting ethical and transparent business practices, being fair and honest in all our dealings and building 
robust governance and risk management processes.

Leadership
Be a role model, setting benchmarks through our products, processes and people; constantly moving ahead of competition 
by differentiating our products, innovating our processes, increasing our market share and nurturing talent to develop 
leaders within the organization.

Social Responsibility
Acknowledge and fulfill our obligations towards the society by undertaking initiatives for the general uplifting of the society, 
building capability and making facilities available to the underprivileged.

Customer Satisfaction
Delight our external and internal customers at every stage of our interaction with them by truly understanding their needs, 
offering them our best products and services, treating them with respect and actively seeking and acting on their feedback.

A letter from a bank guaranteeing that a buyer's payment to a seller will be 
received on time. In the event the buyer is unable to make payment on the 

purchase, the bank will be required to cover the full  amount 

Letter of Credit
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BSRM
VALUES

  Sustainable Growth    
Consistent improvement in the quality of products and services, efficiency of processes and profitability of business; continuously  
anticipating and responding to the changing business and environmental needs using innovation; sharing knowledge and experience 
within the organization 

  Quality: 
Create products and services valued by our customers; constantly improving our processes through innovation and adopting best practices; 
reducing wastage; minimizing costs; investing in systems and technology and developing our people to build a highly capable workforce.

  Reliability:
Be the preferred business partner of our customers and suppliers by offering quality products; providing our best and timely service 
before, during and after the business transactions and honoring all our commitments despite challenges.

  Trust:
Preserve the faith and goodwill of all our stakeholders – Customers, shareholders, suppliers, employees, regulatory bodies and society 
by adopting ethical and transparent business practices, being fair and honest in all our dealings and building robust governance and 
risk management processes.

  Leadership:
Be a role model, setting benchmarks through our products, processes and people; constantly moving ahead of competition by 
differentiating our products, innovating our processes, increasing our market share and nurturing talent to develop leaders within the 
organization.

  Social responsibility:
Acknowledge and fulfill our obligations towards the society by undertaking initiatives for the general uplifting of the society, building 
capability and making facilities available to the underprivileged.

  Customer Satisfaction:
Delight our external and internal customers at every stage of our interaction with them by truly understanding their needs, offering them 
our best products and services, treating them with respect and actively seeking and acting on their feedback.
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Trading involves multiple parties participating in the voluntary negotiation and 
then the exchange of one's goods and services for desired goods and services 
that someone else possesses. The advent of money as an exchange has 
allowed trade to be conducted in a manner that is much simpler and effective.

Trade
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CODE 
OF

CONDUCT

BSRM always adopts best ethical 
and transparent business practices 

to be fair and honest in all it’s 
dealings.

We always acknowledge and fulfill 
our obligations towards the Society 
and offer our best services to our 
customers and treat them with 

respect and honor.
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BSRM GROUP’S MILESTONES…

1952
The BSRM saga began with the first steel re-rolling mills to emerge in the then East Bengal.

1984
Introduced high strength cold twisted steel bars (TORSTEEL) to the construction industry.

1987
Introduced High Strength Deformed reinforcing steel bars conforming to ASTM 615 Grade 60 for the construction industry.

1996
Commissioned the then largest billet making plant in the country - Meghna Engineering Works Limited, now known as Steel Melting Works (SMW) unit 

of Bangladesh Steel Re-rolling Mills Ltd.

2006
Introduced micro reinforcement wires, below 8mm, for low cost rural construction.

2008
BSRM Steels Limited commenced production of internationally recognized Grade 500 steel bars branded as “Xtreme500W” conforming to ISO 6935-2.

2009
Entrance in the Capital Market

	 Shares of BSRM Steels Limited, the flagship company of BSRM Group was listed with the country’s premier bourses Dhaka Stock 
Exchange (DSE) Ltd. and Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) Ltd. as on 18 January 2009. Market Capitalization as on 31 December 2014 is Tk. 29,974 

million. The public shareholding including institutional investors is 29.13%.

2010
BSRM Iron and Steel Co. Ltd. largest billet making plant in the country started commercial production on June 01, 2010.

2012
Production capacity of BSRM Steels Limited enhanced to 600,000 MT per year.

2013
A syndicated term loan of US$ 40 million and BDT 5,908 million, raised by a consortium of 25 banks and financial institutions, for BSRM Steel Mills 

Limited. It is the largest ever syndicated loan facility arranged for a private company in Bangladesh. The Plant will produce billets.

2014
Oracle e-BS -12 went GO LIVE on 1ST March 2014. Oracle Financials, Costing, purchasing, Manufacturing, EAM, Inventory & order management are 

now integrated on a single platform which ensure the accuracy, accountability and reliability of the Group. 

2015
1. Enhancing capacity of BSRM Steels Limited from 600,000 MT to 700,000 MT per annum.

2. Increasing capacity of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills from 120,000 MT to 450,000 MT per annum which will be the first and largest merchant 
mill in Bangladesh.

3. Listing of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited with the stock exchanges.
4. Start of trial production of world’s largest induction furnace based billet casting project –“BSRM Steel Mills Limited”.

What’s Next?
1. Setting up a coal based 150 MW merchant power plant to meet the internal demand as well as to supply to the national grid.

Globalization
Globalization is a process of interaction and integration among the people, 
companies, and governments of different nations, which is driven by 

international trade and investment and aided by information technology. 
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1984
Introduced high strength cold twisted 

steel bars (TORSTEEL) to the 
construction industry.

1996

Commissioned the then largest billet making 
plant in the country - Meghna Engineering 

Works Limited, now known as Steel Melting 
Works (SMW) unit of Bangladesh Steel 

Re-Rolling Mills Ltd.

2008

BSRM Steels Limited commenced production 
of internationally recognized Grade 500 steel 
bars branded as “Xtreme500W” conforming 

to ISO 6935-2.

2013

A syndicated term loan of US$ 40 million and 
BDT 5,908 million, raised by a consortium of 
25 banks and financial institutions, for BSRM 

Steel Mills Limited. It is the largest ever 
syndicated loan facility arranged for a private 

company in Bangladesh. The Plant will 
produce billets.

2015

1. Enhanced capacity of BSRM Steels Limited from 600,000 MT to 700,000 MT per annum.
2. Announced a new product namely “BSRM Maxima”
3. Increased capacity of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills from 120,000 MT to 450,000 MT 
per annum which will be the first and largest merchant mill in Bangladesh.
4. Listing of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited with the stock exchanges (DSE & CSE).
5. Start of trial production of world’s largest induction furnace based billet 
casting project –“BSRM Steel Mills Limited”.

2010
BSRM Iron and Steel Co. Ltd. largest billet 

making plant in the country started 
commercial production on June 01, 2010.

2014

Oracle e-BS -12 went GO LIVE on 1st March 
2014. Oracle Financials, Costing, purchasing, 

Manufacturing, EAM, Inventory & Order 
Management are now integrated on a single 

platform which ensure the accuracy, 
accountability and reliability of the Group. 

1952
The BSRM saga began with the first steel 

re-rolling mills to emerge in the then 
East Bengal.

1987
Introduced High Strength Deformed reinforcing 

steel bars conforming to ASTM 615 Grade 60 
for the construction industry.

2006
Introduced micro reinforcement wires, 

below 8mm for low cost rural construction.

2009

Entrance in the Capital Market
Shares of BSRM Steels Limited, the flagship company of 

BSRM Group was listed with the country’s premier bourses 
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) and Chittagong Stock 

Exchange Ltd. (CSE) on 18 January 2009. Market
 Capitalization as on 31 December 2015 is 
Tk. 32,913 million. The public shareholding 
including institutional investors is 29.13%.

2012
Production capacity of BSRM Steels Limited 

enhanced to 600,000 MT per year.

BSRM
GROUP’S

MILESTONES

                          What’s Next?
Setting up a coal based 150 MW merchant power plant 
to meet the internal demand as well as to supply to the 
national grid.
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AWARDS & RECOGNITION

Bitcoin is a digital asset and payment system which does not require an 
intermediary, a bank, for example.

Bitcoin
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AWARDS
&

RECOGNITIONS

Certificate of merit for best presented Annual Report 2014 from ICAB

Certificate of ICSB National Award 2014ICSB National Award (Silver) 2014
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

Best Electricity Consumer Award 2015Pride of Chittagong (Chattagramer Ahonkar) 2012

Divisional Environment Award 2013
Best Brand of Bangladesh in Steel Category

in 2011, 2013, 2014 & 2015

D & B Corporate Awards 2010 & 2012

Best Enterprise of the year 2010
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

ICAB National Awards for Best Presented
Annual Report 2012 & 2013

5th Standard Chartered-Financial Express CSR Award 2014

Japan Bangladesh Chamber of
Commerce & Industry (JBCCI) Award 2014

Certificarte of Marit from SAFA 2013

IIUC Business Award 2014Mercantile Bank Excellence Award 2015
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AWARDS & RECOGNITION

The Internet is a global network connecting billions of computers. More than 
190 countries are linked into exchanges of data, news and opinions. No one 
actually owns the internet, and no single organization controls the Internet       

in its entirety. 

Internet
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Net Profit after Tax: Tk. 2,082 million
Growth: 91.66%

Operating Profit: Tk. 3,258 million
Growth: 72.12%

Revenue: Tk. 32,316 million
Growth: (16.14%)

Earnings per Share: Tk. 6.09
Growth: 91.51%

Profit before Tax: Tk. 2,594 million
Growth: 71.71%

Gross profit: Tk. 4,369 million
Growth: 55.62%

PERFORMANCE 
AT A 

GLANCE

NAV per share: Tk. 26.57
Growth: 21.15%

NOCF per share: Tk. 16.87
Growth: 292.58%
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A tax is a financial charge or other levy imposed upon an individual or legal 
entity by a government agency. Taxes consist of direct or indirect taxes

Taxation
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT
Taka in ‘000

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Assets Employed

Non-current Assets  9,676,299  8,539,818 8,559,490  7,523,279  5,057,576 

Net Current Assets  840,345  155,529  (512,599) (1,247,175)  (1,210,790)

Total Assets Employed 10,516,644  8,695,347 8,046,892  6,276,104  3,846,786 

Financed by

Share Capital  3,417,750  3,417,750 3,417,750  3,255,000  3,255,000 

Revaluation Reserve  2,131,591  2,137,028 2,153,627  2,171,100  - 

Retained Earnings  3,531,278  1,940,313 1,343,873  114,554  (280,919)

Shareholders’ Equity  9,080,619  7,495,091 6,915,250  5,540,654  2,974,081 

Long Term borrowings  548,389  431,897  425,051  218,866  872,705 

Retirement benefit obligations - Gratuity  55,876  39,020  26,291  17,622  - 

Deferred Tax Liabilities  831,761  729,338  680,300  498,962  - 

Total Capital Employed 10,516,644  8,695,347 8,046,892  6,276,104  3,846,786 

Operational Results

Revenue 32,316,101 38,535,937  36,229,051 38,253,465 31,234,710 

Gross Profit  4,368,653  2,807,325 3,250,149  1,888,439  1,914,575 

Profit from Operations  3,257,932  1,892,834 2,314,398  1,160,385  1,369,696 

Profit before Interest, Taxes & Depreciation 
Allowances

 3,500,737 2,119,630 2,538,472  1,382,576  1,560,701

Profit before Tax  2,593,949  1,510,680 2,318,924  1,296,810  962,121 

Profit after Tax  2,081,877  1,086,208 1,693,469  865,331  839,205 

Ratios

Gross Profit ratio - % 13.52% 7.28% 8.97% 4.94% 6.13%

Net Profit ratio - % 6.44% 2.82% 4.67% 2.26% 2.69%

EBITDA margin to Sales - % 10.83% 5.50% 7.01% 3.61% 5.00%

Return on Shareholders Equity - % 22.93% 14.49% 24.49% 15.62% 28.22%

Return on Capital Employed - % 19.80% 12.49% 21.05% 13.79% 21.82%

Current Ratio - Times  1.06  1.01  0.97  0.92  0.93 

Quick / Acid test ratio  0.57  0.40  0.61  0.44  0.57 

Inventory turnover ratio - Times  4.69  3.42  6.37  4.87  4.84 

Total Assets turnover ratio - Times  1.31  1.42  1.52  1.70  1.45 

Earnings per Share (EPS) - Taka  6.09  3.18  4.95  2.53  2.46 

Price/Earnings (P/E) ratio - Times  15.81  27.58  13.87  26.82  48.26 

Price/Equity ratio - Times  9.63  8.77  6.87  6.79  11.85 

Dividend per share (DPS) - Taka  3.00  1.50  1.50  1.50  1.50 

Dividend Payout ratio  0.49  0.47  0.30  0.59  0.61 

Dividend Cover ratio  2.03  2.12  3.30  1.77  1.72 

Net Assets Value (NAV) per share - Taka  26.57  21.93  20.23  17.02  9.14 

Net Operating Cash Flow per share - Taka  16.87  (8.76)  13.45  (2.24)  (14.14)

Debt Equity ratio - Times  1.48  2.36  1.99  2.81  5.20 

Interest coverage ratio  5.37  6.32  5.83  3.98  3.39 

Market price per share at 31 December - Taka  96.30  87.70  68.70  67.90  118.50 

Market Capitalization at 31 December (Taka 
million)

 32,913  29,974  23,480  22,101  38,572 

Contribution to National Exchequer (Taka million)  2,009  2,949  2,454  2,028  1,451 

Average Number of Employees 578 553  573  523  472
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR
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2015
Taka % 2014

Taka %

Value Added:

Revenue 32,316,100,562 38,535,936,754

Other Income  82,796,309 195,792,229

 32,398,896,871 38,731,728,983

Less : Paid to suppliers for materials and services  28,542,866,779 36,214,464,703

 3,856,030,092 100 2,517,264,280 100

Distributed as follows:

EMPLOYEES

Wages, Salaries, bonus, commssions, pensions and other benefits 346,144,115 8.98  292,806,728 11.63

PROVIDERS OF FINANCE  673,131,697  17.46 486,981,060 19.35

GOVERNMENT 512,071,634 13.28 424,472,568 16.86

DIVIDEND 1,025,325,000 26.58 512,662,500 20.38

2,556,672,446  66.30 1,716,922,856  68.21

RETAINED FOR REINVESTMENT & FUTURE GROWTH

Depreciation & Amortization  242,805,483  6.30 226,796,118 9.01

Retained Profit 1,056,552,163  27.40 573,545,306 22.78

1,299,357,646 33.70  800,341,424 31.79

3,856,030,092 100 2,517,264,280  100

ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED (EVA)
Economic value added attempts to capture the true economic profit of a company. It is also provides a measurement of a company’s 
economic success (or failure) over a period of time.  			 
	

     Amount in ‘000

Calculation of EVA 2015 2014

Net Operating profit after Tax (NOPAT) 2,443,449 1,372,305

Total Capital Employed 10,516,644 8,695,347

Cost of Capital in % 11.00% 12.00%

Cost of Capital (COC) 1,156,831 1,043,442

EVA = NOPAT - COC 1,286,618 328,863

The positive number of EVA reveals that the Company is more than covered its cost of capital

			 

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
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PRODUCTS AND MARKETS

Sales Qty. (MT) Performance of Xtreme 500W

Founded in 1952, BSRM Group broadened its business to produce 
advanced technology based steel products in Bangladesh. BSRM 
Steels Limited is the flagship company of BSRM Group. It is a 
high grade steel manufacturing company. The main product 
of BSRM Steels is Xtreme500W which is only EMF tested and 
Fatigue tested ductile rod in Bangladesh. 

QUALITY is the measure of something as measured against 
agreed standards. It means conforming to specifications. 
RELIABILITY has two related definitions. One is the state of 
being dependable. The other is consistency – that is, the degree 
to which something yields the same or compatible result time 
after time. RELIABILITY is a function of the design; QUALITY is 
a result of the manufacturing. Therefore, we can state while the 
Tensile Test is the measure of Quality of the steel, the Fatigue 
Test is the measure of Reliability of Steel.
 

 Market performance 

BSRM Steels Limited is the market leader in the national steel 
industry. Net sales for 2015 were 604,513 MT with value in Taka 
3,231.60 Crore. The Chart shows sales growth of BSRM Steels 
Limited for the last Five years.
 

 Product-wise performance 
A. Xtreme500W

Why Xtreme500W….

According to European Steel Code EN 10002, Elongation 
at Maximum Force (EMF) test is mandatory to measure the 
ductility of steel. Bangladesh Standard BDS:ISO:6935-2 of 2009 
also requires EMF in Steel. Fatigue tests are conducted with 
the object of determining the number of cyclic loadings a steel 
can endure, within a stress range. BSRM Steels products were 
subjected to 5 million cyclic load reversals which was tested 
in UK. At present in Bangladesh BSRM is the only company to 
ensure EMF and Fatigue Test in steel.

Xtreme500W also demonstrated superior yield strength and 
ductility compared to the traditional Grade 60 rebar. This reduced 
the quantity of steel consumed in any building by 15%. 

Today our journey has been vindicated by the overwhelming 
support of our loyal and dear customers who have put faith in 
our products.

Following Graph shows the last 5 year’s performance of our 
branded product Xtreme 500W:
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 Unique Feature of Xtreme500W 

1.	 High design yield strength of 500 Mpa (72500psi) (Min)

2.	 Requires 15% less steel in construction compared to Grade 
60 rebar’s available in the market.

3.	 The bars have superior ductility and can be safely bent 
without cracking.

4.	 All bar sizes are rolled to a very close tolerance (possible on 
a DANIELI computerized rolling mill) so that customers get 
more meters of steel per ton - more value for money without 
having to sacrifice structural integrity.

5.	 De-scaled bars have better bonding with concrete and less 
wastage at site. Estimated savings: 0.5%

6.	 Xtreme bars are safely weld-able under field conditions. 
Another 0.5% to 1.5% of steel is saved by avoiding large 
splices if the steel is welded. Xtreme500W was tested 
for weldability by a global electrode manufacturer, in 
Bangladesh, Linde. They have published a brochure to 
promote the unique welding features of Xtreme500W, a rare 
honor for the company.

7.	 The bars are needle-straight, thanks to the Danieli QTB 
process - no need for straightening on the construction site.

 Landmark Infrastructure where
 Xtreme500W was used:

As the premier reinforcing steel bar and only EMF tested ductile 
rod of the country, Xtreme500W has put its indelible stamp 
on the infrastructure projects of the country. It has emerged 
as the rebar of choice among international contractors in high 
value projects where the reliability and quality of construction 
materials are of paramount importance. BSRM is proud to be 
associated with some of the largest and most visible projects of 
the country. These are:  

•	 Padma Multipurpose Bridge

•	 Maghbazar Mouchak Flyover

•	 Boirab Railway Bridge

•	 Boirab Asugonj Power Plant

•	 Double line project of Chittagong Railway.

•	 The pride of Dhaka, the 9.6 kilometer Gulistan-Jatrabari fly-
over (Mayor Mohammad Hanif Flyover)

•	 Saidabad Water Treatment Plant Phase-II

•	 Hatirjheel Integrated Development Project

•	 Zillur Rahman Flyover (Mirpur-Airport & Banani)

 B. Other Products 

BSRM also manufactures the traditional Grade 60/420 and 
bars for customers who are comfortable in using the older 
steel grades. 

BSRM Steels Limited has preserved the winning streak in its 
Product Innovation.

This year it rolled out new Grade reinforcing steel conforming 

to the U.S. standard ASTM 706 Grade 80. The Grade 80 

reinforcement can replace the old ASTM A-615 Grade 60 steel 

specified in all Government Agency design specifications. The 

new Grade 80 will be more economical as it will require 20% less 

steel in construction. It will be safer as well as the new Grade 80 

has much higher elongation than the older Grade 60.  The higher 

strength steel further provides ‘congestion relief’ in Bridge piers 

which ensures better concrete compaction, thus making it more 

safer. The new Grade 80 is usage is prescribed in the ACI Code 

of 2014 and the BNBC 2015. The new Grade 80 will be marketed 

under the Brand name Maxima.

The country’s growing infrastructure regarding new Bridges, 

Flyovers, and Rail Roads will provide ample scope for Grade 

80’s applications.

The company further launched in February 2016 ASTM 706 

Grade 60 reinforcing steel. This new Grade 60 is for the design 

of Special Moment Resisting Frames (SMRF) for earthquake 

resistant structures.  It has extra high elongation which enables 

the design of R.C. Buildings in which selected components of the 

Building are allowed to ‘fail’ by developing ‘plastic hinges’. This 

design approach prevents catastrophic ‘sandwich’ collapse of 

buildings in the event of an earthquake. The use of ASTM Grade 

706 Grade 60 steel has been advocated in the latest ACI Code of 

2014 and BNBC 2015. The new Grade 60 will be marketed by 

BSRM under the Brand name Ultima.

The country’s Key Point Installation (KPI) will be the primary users 

of Ultima. Hospitals, schools, airports, Fire Brigades will all need 

Special Moment Resisting Frames to survive large earthquakes.
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Notice is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting of shareholders of BSRM Steels Limited will be held on March 30, 2016 
at 9:30 am at the Institution of Engineers of Bangladesh, Chittagong Center, S. S. Khaled Road, Chittagong to transact the following 
business and to adopt necessary resolutions: 

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements along with Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company for the year ended 31st December 2015 together with the Directors’ Report and the Auditors’ Report on those 
Financial Statements.

2.	 To re-elect the Director(s) of the Company.

3.	 To declare Dividend for the year ended 31st December 2015.

4.	 To confirm the re-appointment of Independent Director.

5.	 To appoint Auditors for the period from 1st January 2016 to 30th June 2016 and also for the year ended 30th June 2017 and fix 
their remuneration for both periods.

   								        By order of the Board

Chittagong							       Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA 
5th March 2016	  						      Group CFO & Company Secretary 

Notes:

•	 Shareholders whose name appears in the share register of the company or in the Depository Register as on the “Record Date” 
i.e. 3rd March 2016 are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and receive the dividend.

•	 A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy or proxies in his/her stead and forms of proxy 
must be lodged at the Company’s Share Office, Ali Mansion, 1207/1099 Sadarghat Road, Chittagong not later than 48 hours 
before the AGM.

•	 Shareholders are requested to update their 12 digit ETIN information through their respective Depository Participant (DP) 
before the AGM date.

•	 BSRM Steels Limited is concerned about the environment and utilizes natural resources in a sustainable way. We request 
the shareholders to update their email address with their respective Depository Participant (DP) for quicker and easier 
communication. Such cooperation will help conserve paper and minimize the impact on environment. The Annual Report 
2015 and Proxy Form are available at the Company’s Website www.bsrm.com.

NOTICE OF THE 14TH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING
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Commercial aviation is a global industry. Statistics from the International Air 
Transport Association, or IATA, show that some 3.1 billion people flew in 2013. 
An estimated 50 million tons of cargo was transported as well in the same year.

Air Travel
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COMPANY NAME 

BSRM STEELS LIMITED

DATE OF INCORPORATION 
20th July 2002

DATE OF COMMERCIAL OPERATION 
1st April 2008

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized capital
BD Tk. 500.00 Crore
Paid Up Capital
BD Tk. 341.775 Crore

BORAD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA, Chairman
Mr. Aameir Alihussain, Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Zohair Taherali, Director
Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali, Director
Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA, Independent Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA, Chairman 
Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA, Member 	
Mr. Zohair Taherali, Member 
Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA, Secretary 

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Mohammad Arif ACA, ACMA 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Tapan Sengupta, Executive Director 
Mr. Kazi Anwar Ahmed, Head of Corporate Affairs 
Mr. M. Firoze, Head of Marketing & Product Development 
Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA, Group CFO and Company Secretary 
Mr. Sunil Kumar Das, Country Director, India
Mr. Jamil Ahmed, Head of HR 
Mr. Mohd. Imtiaz Uddin Chowdhury, Head of SCM

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA, Chairman
Mr. Aameir Alihussain, Managing Director
Mr. Zohair Taherali, Director Finance
Mr. Tapan Sengupta, Executive Director
Mr. Kazi Anwar Ahmed, Head of Corporate Affairs
Mr. Sunil Kumar Das, Country Director, India
Mr. M. Firoze, Head of Marketing & Product Development 
Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA, Group CFO and Company Secretary 
Mr. Jamil Ahmed, Head of HR

AUDITOR
Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered Accountants
102 Agrabad C/A (3rd Floor), Chittagong.

LOCATIONS:
PLANT
4, Fouzderhat Industrial Estate, Chittagong, 
Tel: +88(031) 2770192-3

CORPORATE OFFICE
Ali Mansion,1207/1099, Sadarghat Road, Chittagong, Bangladesh.
Tel:  +880 31 2854901-10
Email: mail@bsrm.com, Web: www.bsrm.com

DHAKA OFFICE
Mahbub Castle (1st, 2nd & 4th Floor)
35/A, Purana Paltan Line, VIP Road, Dhaka.
Tel: 88 02 8311994, 8313135, 9358135
Fax: 88 02 8312905, Email: dhaka@bsrm.com

UTTARA OFFICE
Atlanta Trade Center
Level-6, Plot # 01, Road # 1/A, Sector-4, Uttara Model Town, Dhaka
Contact Number: 02-8957027, 02-8958029, Fax No. 8956496

REGIONAL OFFICES:
Sylhet
Samad Mansion, Mendibag, Upa-Shahar, Sylhet.
Tel: 0821-721239, 01714080514 
Fax: 0821-2832751, Email: sylhet@bsrm.com

Bogra 
Tin Matha Rail Gate (near to North Bengal Petrol Pump), Puran Bogra, Bogra.
Tel: 051-60792, 01711-795148, E-mail: bogra@bsrm.com

Comilla	
Chandrima Super Market, 
Airport Road (Near to EPZ Main Gate), Comilla.
Tel: 081-71988, 01714-080544, E-mail: comilla@bsrm.com

Khulna 
Plot # C-7, Road # 4, Shiromoni I/A, Khulna.
Tel: 041-785303, 01714-031110, E-mail: khulna@bsrm.com

Barishal 
Shohid Muktijoddha ABC Kazi Azizul Islam Sarak
30 Godown Road, South Alekanda, Barisal
Cell Phone: 01713-362984, Fax: 0431-62048

Narayangonj
Jungal, Barpara, Bandar, Narayangonj.
Tel: 044-76001557; 01730-313123

Rajshahi
235/2 Alupatti Ghoramara; Boalia; Rajshahi.
Tel: 01755-538353, 01730-087537

Rangpur
BSRM Warehouse, Ulipur Market, Ganeshpur, R K Road, Rangpur
Cell: 01711795148, Tell: 0521-56092, Fax: 0521-56091
Tel: 01711-795148, 01730-784821

Benapole
50 Kagojpukur Benapole Port, Sharsa, 
Jessore, Tel: 01730-703045

CORPORATE AND CONTACT 
INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA
Chairman

The 3rd son of late Mr. Akberali A. Africawala was born in 1949. He is the most experienced industrialist in steel sector and a seasoned 
business entrepreneur and always eager to harness any unexploited opportunity in the industry. He was recognized as CIP from 
large scale industry sector for ten times. Mr. Alihussain is a Chartered Accountant and a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). 

He is also engaged in various social activities like Rotary Club, Ma O Shishu Hospital, Chirayata Shanti Society, Patient Welfare Committee 
of Chittagong Medical College and Hospital and founder of a School at Nasirabad, Chittagong which imparts free education to more than
350 underprivileged students. He is also Vice Chairman of Chittagong Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce and Industry and also a 
member of Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Aameir Alihussain
Managing Director

Mr. Aameir Alihussain is the eldest son of the Chairman of the Company was born in 1975. He joined the family business in 2001 and 
aims to set high industry standards for the performance of the company. He is active in the day to day operation of the company as the 
Managing Director. He is introducing modern management practices in the company and instilling a team spirit to excel in the industry.

He graduated in Economics from McGill University, Canada and did his MBA from LUMS University. Ensuring quality and focusing on 
customers’ satisfaction are his top priorities.

Mr. Zohair Taherali
Director

He was born in 1963 and involved for last 24 years in the steel business as a Director of the company.  He is responsible for the 
management of the Financial and Administrative aspects of the company. He is actively involved in various social activities. He is a 
commerce graduate and also a member of the Audit Committee of the company.

Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali
Director

Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali was born in 1970. She completed her Bachelors of Arts and Bachelors of English Language Teaching from 
Chittagong, Bangladesh.

She guides and directs the company regularly in strategic policy making decision as a Director. She is involved with many charitable 
organizations and is a highly regarded personality in the society. 
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Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA
Independent Director

A renowned Chartered Accountant Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA was born in 1954. He has 27 years of experience in internal and external 
audit and assurance, developing internal control system, company related matters and taxation and VAT matters. 

He is a Qualified Chartered Accountant and Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). Currently he 
is the Managing Partner of reputed Chartered Accountancy firm namely MRH Dey & Co., Chartered Accountants.

He was appointed as Independent Director of the Company in 2012 and he is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Name of companies in which directors hold the directorship and the membership of committees of the board

Name of Companies
Name of the Directors

Mr. Alihussain 
Akberali FCA

Mr. Aameir
Alihussain

Mr. Zohair Taherali
Mrs. Tehseen 

Zohair Taherali
Mr. Mono Ranjan 

Dey FCA

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling
Mills Limited

Chairman Managing Director Director Director
Independent 

Director

BSRM Wires Limited Managing Director Director Chairman Director -

BSRM Recycling Industries Limited Managing Director Director Chairman Director -

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. Chairman Managing Director Director Director
Independent 

Director

Chittagong Power Company Ltd.
Chairman & Managing 

Director 
Director Director - -

Bangladesh Steels Limited Director Managing Director Chairman Director -

East Bengal Trading & Industrial 
Corporation Limited

Director Managing Director Chairman Director -

BSRM Ispat Limited Director Managing Director Chairman Director -

BSRM Steel Mills Limited Chairman Managing Director Director Director -

BSRM Logistics Limited Chairman Director Managing Director - -

BSRM Real Estates Limited Chairman Managing Director Director Director -

BSRM Metals Limited Chairman Managing Director Director Director -

H. Akberali & Co. Limited
Chairman & Managing 

Director
Director Director Director -

Karnafully Engineering Works 
Limited

Chairman Director Managing Director Director -

Section Steel Industries Limited Managing Director Chairman - - -
ARCO Industries Limited Director Director Managing Director Director -
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KEY
MANAGEMENT

Tapan Sengupta, Executive Director
Kazi Anwar Ahmed, Head of Dhaka Corporate Office
M. Firoze, Head of Marketing & Product Development

Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA, Group CFO & Company Secretary
Sunil Kumar Das, Country Director, India

Shobhon Mahbub Shahabuddin, Head of National Sales
A. F. M. Mizanur Rahman, Plant Head

Azizul Haque, Plant Head (BISCO)
Jasim Uddin Ahmed, Head of Technical  Projects

Jamil Ahmed, Head of HR 
Ruhi Murshid Ahmed, Head of CSR, PR & Communication

Mohammed Reazul Kabir FCA, Head of Finance & Accounts
Md. Bazal Ahmed, Head of Estates & Utilities

Mohd. Imtiaz Uddin Chowdhury, Head of Supply Chain
Mohammad Arif ACA, ACMA, Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Ashiqur Rahman ACA, Lead Compliance & Accounts – Dhaka
Abdur Rahim, Head of Internal Audit

A. K. M. Saifuddin Khan, Head of Administration
Mohammed Tamim Wahid Al-Helal, Head of IT

ADVISERS

Moize Hussain, Group Adviser
Tapan K. Poddar FCA, FCMA, Financial Consultant



34
BSRM Steels Limited        Annual Report 2015

Group CFO &
Company Secretary 

Head of Finance &
Accounts and CFO

Head of Dhaka
Corporate Affairs

Country Director
Kolkata India

Head of Marketing and
Product Development

Plant Head

Managing DirectorAudit Committee

Executive Director

National Sales Head

Head of Supply Chain

Head of Administration

Director (Finance)

Head of HR

Head of IT

Head of Internal Audit

Head of Technical Projects

Head of CSR

Board of Directors

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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Alihussain Akberali FCA
Chairman
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
Dear Shareholders,

Assalamualaikum.

Let me first thank you all for being a part of BSRM group that makes a difference in people’s lives.  I am happy to see you again at this Annual 
General Meeting of BSRM Steels Limited. I hope you have received the Annual Report for 2015 and satisfied with company’s performance.

Every year we see new technologies/innovative ideas evolving to improve the safety and quality of steel products. I believe BSRM 
looks for new ways, makes the effort and takes the initiatives to adopt those into business processes and deliver the best products at 
consumers’ door in shortest possible time. And that makes BSRM a unique business house.

It is my great pleasure to report you all that your Company has registered a profit of Tk. 2,081.88 Million, which is the highest in the 
history of BSRM. Now company’s net worth stands at Tk. 9,080.62 Million. EPS stands Tk. 6.09 per share. The credit to this phenomenal 
goes to our dedicated workers, staffs and officers without whose hard work this would not have been successful. 

Economic Out Look:

Bangladesh has made a remarkable progress in many economic and social indicators. By this time, we have attained self-sufficiency 
in food.  Bangladesh’s investment to GDP ratio has now grown to 29% and per capita income stands at $1314. World Bank predicted 
that Bangladesh economy will grow at 6.50% this year and 6.70% in the next year which is neck to neck to with China. Labor cost hike 
in China has created a huge opportunity for Bangladesh. It creates hope that some foreign investment will be directed to Bangladesh 
which is crucial for her development.

However, inadequate infrastructure is one of the basic obstacles for growth and development in Bangladesh. The Government has under 
taken some significant steps for providing adequate port facilities, power and gas supply, improvement of communication. It is strongly 
requested of the Govt to get LNG at the earliest and thus relieve Ctg. industries out of this huge losses by using LDO which is not only 
costly but also environmentally not feasible.

Riding on government programs centering vision for 2021, the local manufacturers believe that steel industry should continue to grow at 
12% in the next few years. The major ongoing projects like ‘Padma Bridge’, ‘Dhaka-Chittagong Access Control Highway’ and the major 
upcoming projects like ‘Dhaka Elevated Expressway’ and the ‘Deep Sea Port’ would be requiring a vast quantity of quality construction 
materials. Successful implementation of these projects holds an excellent potential for top line growth, like steel and steel rods in 
particular feature prominently as raw materials for these projects. Thus, we can hope that the demand of MS rod will continue to grow 
at an increasing rate. We hope steel industry in Bangladesh will grow with quality products for the next generation.     

Operational and Financial performance:

The operational and financial performances are summarized below:

Particulars Amount in Million

Sales 32,316.10

Gross Profit 4,368.65

Net Profit 2,081.88

Net Worth 9,080.62

Market Capitalization 32,912.93

EPS in Taka 6.09

Market Price as on 31 Deccember 2015 (Taka) 96.30
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Our initiatives for growth:

Now the Country has entered into the new era of progress and development. The nation needs high-quality steel products for 
construction. Keeping this in mind, we have launched “BSRM Maxima” which is the first Rebar of the nation designed specifically 
for mega projects like power plants, bridges, tunnels, flyovers, dams and sky scrapers. This bar meets various international standards 
like US AASHTO LRFD and ASTM 706-14 Grade 80.This product will not only ensure quality and safety, it will also save an enormous 
amount of foreign currency.

To ensure uninterrupted electricity supply for BSRM Group, we are planning to set up 150 MW coal based power plant by 2018. 
Construction work will start soon.  We have already issued Zero Coupon Bond for raising the fund of Tk. 200 crore and a part of this will 
be invested as equity in our power project.

I am glad to inform you that, our associated company BSRM Steel Mills Limited has started trial production since 22nd December 2015. 
It is the largest billet producing plant in BSRM Group.

Sustainability and Social Welfare:

BSRM Group of Company is trying to maintain adequate transparency, quality of products and proper corporate governance. We believe 
that our business objectives are not only to maximize the profitability but also to address the needs of the society. From this view of point, 
we have undertaken some projects for poor and under-privileged people.

Conclusion:

Around 2,000 employees are working in BSRM Group of Companies. Also, several thousand casual workers, suppliers and other 
stakeholders are directly or indirectly involved with us. We are sincerely trying to do the best for all of them. Some of our employees are 
also shareholders in our companies.

I take this opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to our work forces for their hard work and tireless efforts. I wish to thank our 
Bankers, Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited, Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, Central 
Depository Bangladesh Limited, Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Customs, Tax, and VAT Authority and specially to our 
valued customers for their trust, support and co-operation.

By the grace of Almighty Allah, we shall continue to grow in the days to come.

ALLAH HAFIZ

Alihussain Akberali FCA
Chairman
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ũфţ ųśţŨřŴŞŨấŨřΝűдę 
ĴŨŝŝŨŚŨŗū ĴŨŚŨĵľŬŗĬ
ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ŔũřΝŨŴřř ŝŨŴŎ ŎŨľŨř ŅőƏ ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ŝľŚŴľ ŐőƏΝŨŏ ĺΝť ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũỂŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ-ĺř ĝĠōŗ ΝŨũŜΠľ ŝŨŐŨřŌ ŝŖŨţ ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ĴŨΝŨřļ ŝŨŴŎ ųŔŴţ ĴŨũŗ ĴōƏЮ 
ĴŨőũдōĬ ĴŨũŗ ĴŨśŨ ľũř ĴŨŔőŨřŨ ĵŴōŨŗŴŐƏ ΝŨũŜΠΠľ фũōŴΝŏő ųŔŴţŴńő ĺΝť ųľŨҜŨőŪř ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚř ľŨŘΠľŚŨųŔ ŝбẵ ŞŴţŴńőĬ 
ĵỄŨō ũśŴẦř ĴŨŐūũőľŨţőę ŔŴŌƏř ǻŌŀō ŗŨő ļ ũőřŨŔЇŨ ΝűũИŴō ĴŨŗřŨ фũō Νńřĵ ũľńŬ ũőōƏőōŬő фŘūũΪř ΝƏΝŞŨř ļ ĴŨŐūũőľ ŐŨřőŨř ķМΝ ŚǐƏ ľũřĬ ĴŨũŗ ũΝơŨŝ ľũř ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ 
ŝΝŝŗţ ĺĵ ĴŨŐūũőľ фŘūũΪ ļ ŏǐōŨř ũŔńŴő ńŬŴň ĺΝť ōŨ ΝƏΝŝŨ ŔũřŃŨŚőŨę ŔũřľẦőŨ ļ ķкţŴő ľŨŴŅ ŚŨŀŨţ ŘŨŴō ŝΝŴŃŴţ ķкō ŗŨŴőř ĵỄŨō ŔŌƏũň Ĵũō ĴẦ ŝŗŴţ ųŖŨΪŨŴŏř 
ľŨŴń ųŔŧŷŴń ũŏŴō ŔŨŴřĬ ĺľŨřŴŌĵ ΝƏΝŝŨţ ŅŀŴō ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ĺľũň ĴőőƏ őŨŗĬ
ĴŨũŗ ĴŨőŴдř ŝŨŴŎ ŅŨőŨũΎ ųŘę ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ųľŨҜŨőŪ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ ųŗŨň ĞęĜĤĝěĤĤ ũŗũŚţő ňŨľŨ ŗūőŨŕŨ ľŴřŴń ŘŨ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ĵũōŞŨŴŝ ŝŴΝΠŨΌĬ ΝōΠŗŨŴő ųľŨҜŨőŪř ųőň ŔũřŝҜŏ 
ĥęĜĤĜěĢĞ ũŗũŚţő ňŨľŨ ĺΝť ĵũŔĺŝ ĢěĜĥ ňŨľŨţ ķũкō ŞŴţŴńĬ ĺĵ ľŲũōЁ ậŐū ĴŨŗŨř ũőŴΝũŏōфŨŌ ľŗΠŪΝŨũŞőŪřę ŘŧŨŴŏř ľŴŉŨř ŔũřśΡŗ ńŨşŨ ľĿőĵ ĺ ŝŨŕŚƏ ĴŨŝō őŨĬ   

ĴŎΠŶőũōľ ŏűśƏľẦ
ΝỉũΝŐ ĴŎΠŶőũōľ ĺΝť ŝŨŗŨũŅľ ŝΞŃŴľ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ķŴӘĿŴŘŨŀƏ Ĵˇŀũō ŝŨŐő ľŴřŴńĬ ĵŴōŨŗŴŐƏ ĴŨŗřŨ ĿŨŴŏƏ ẄţťŝҜΞŌΠōŨ ĴŅΠő ľŴřũńĬ ũŅũŊũŔř ĴőūŔŨŴō ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴśř ũΝũőŴţŨŀ ųΝŴş 
ŏŧŨũşŴţŴń Ğĥ śōŨťŴś ĺΝť ŗŨŎŨũŔńŬ ĴŨţ ųΝŴş ĝęğĝĠ ŗŨũľΠő ŊŚŨŴř ķũкō ŞŴţŴńĬ ũΝơ ΝƏŨťľ ĴōƏЮ ĴŨśŨΝƏηľŖŨŴΝ ŅŨũőŴţŴń ųŘę ĺ Νńř ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴśř ĴŎΠŶőũōľ фΝűũИ ŏŧŨşŨŴΝ ĢěġĜ 
śōŨťŴś ĺΝť ĴŨŀŨŗŪ Νńř ōŨ ųΝŴş ŞŴō ŔŨŴř ĢěģĜ śōŨťś ŘŨ ũľőŨ ŃŪŴőř фŨţ ľŨńŨľŨũńĬ ŃŪŴő śΡŴŗř ŗΞŚƏ ΝűũИ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴśř ŅőƏ ĺľũň Νş ŝūŴŘŨŀ ŝűũẵ ľŴřŴńĬ ĺŴōľŴř ũľńŬ ũΝŴŏśŪ 
ũΝũőŴţŨŀ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴś ŃŴŚ ĴŨŝŨř ŝҮŨΝőŨ ŵōũř ŞŴţŴń ŘŨ ųŏŴśř ĴŎΠŶőũōľ Ĵˇŀũōř ŅőƏ ĴŔũřŞŨŘΠĬ 
ŘŨĵŴŞŨľę ẁΝΠŚ ĴΝľŨŉŨŴŗŨ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴśř ķкũō ĺΝť Ĵˇŀũōř ĺľũň ĴőƏōŗ Νş ĴЮřŨţĬ ŔŘΠŨп Νдř ŝūũΝŐŨę ũΝẁƏŤ ļ ŀƏŨŝ ŝřΝřŨŞ ΝűũИ ĺΝť ōŎƏ фŘūũΪ ļ ųŘŨŀŨŴŘŨŀ ŝūũΝŐŨ ΝűũИř 
ŅőƏ ŝřľŨř ųΝś ũľńŬ фľẦ ŞŨŴō ũőŴţŴńĬ ŝřľŨřŴľ ųŅŨřŨŴŚŨ ŝūŔŨũřś ľřŨ ŘŨŴΎ ųŘ Řō śŪĆĵ ŝҮΝ ōřŚŪľűō őŨĵŴμŨŴŅő ŝřΝřŨŞ ũőũẮō ľŴř ŘŨř ŕŚủũōŴō ŃκˇŨŴŗř ũśẦǻŴŚŨ 
ķΌŗΞŴŚƏř ũŊŴŅŚ ųōŴŚř ΝƏΝŞŨř Ņũőō ĴŨũŎΠľ ǐũō ųŎŴľ ΝŨŃŴō ŔŨřŴΝ ĺΝť ŔũřŴΝś ΝŨЦΝ ŞŴΝĬ 
ũŖśő ĞĜĞĝ ųľ ŝŨŗŴő ųřŴĿ ŝřľŨŴřř ũΝũŖк ķкţő ľŗΠľŨХ ŃŚŗŨőęĺŴōľŴř ΖŨőŪţ ķŤŔŨŏőľŨřŪřŨ ŗŴő ľŴřő ĴŨŀŨŗŪ ľŴţľ ΝŤŝŴř ĵỄŨō ũśẦ фŨţ ĝĞ śōŨťś ŔŘΠЮ ŝҝŝŨũřō 
ŞΝŨř ŝҮŨΝőŨ řŴţŴńĬ ŝřľŨŴřř ΝŨếΝŨţőŨŐŪő ũľńŬ Νş фľẦ ųŘŗő ŔЙŨ ųŝōŬę ŋŨľŨĊ ŃκˇŨŗ ŗŞŨŝşľ ĺΝť ΝŨếΝŨţő ĴŴŔǐŨţ ũľńŬ фľẦ ųŘŗő ŋŨľŨ ĺũŚŴŖŴňŊ ĺǑŴфŝļŴţ ĺΝť 
ŀŖŪř ŝŗūБ Νдř ũőŗΠŨŴő ΝƏΝỊō ŞŴΝ ũΝŔūŚ ŔũřŗŨő ŗŨőŝҜк ũőŗΠŨŌ ŝŨŗˇŪĬ ŝŕŚŖŨŴΝ ĺŝΝ фľŴẦř ΝŨếΝŨţő ũőũẮōŖŨŴΝ ųŏŴśř Ĵˇŀũōř ŐŨřŨŴľ őōūő ŗŨЄŨ ųŏŴΝ ĺΝť ĺľĵ ŝŨŴŎ 
ĺŝΝ фľŴẦř ľŧŨŃŨŗŨŚ ũŞŴŝŴΝ ĵỄŨō ļ ĵỄŨōŅŨōŪţ ũśŴẦř ũΝľŨś ŁňŴΝĬ  
ōŨĵ ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨśŨ ľřŴō ŔŨũř ĺĵ ŐŨřŨΝŨũŞľōŨţ ĺŗ ĺŝ řŴŊř ŃŨũŞŏŨ έŗΝŐΠŗŨő ŞŨŴř ΝűũИ ųŔŴō ŎŨľŴΝĬ ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨřļ ĴŨśŨ ľřŴō ŔŨũř ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴś ĵỄŨō ũśẦ ĴŨŀŨŗŪ фŅŴнř ŅőƏ 
ĴŨřļ ķкōŗŨŴőř ŔŌƏ ũőŴţ ĴŨŝŴΝĬ 

ĴŨũŎΠľ ĺΝť ŔũřŃŨŚő ũŃЄ 
ųľŨҜŨőŪř ĴŨũŎΠľ ĺΝť ŔũřŃŨŚő ŝťέЮ ŝŨŗũˇľ ũŃЄ ũőŴŗΟ ōŬŴŚ ŐřŨ ŞŚĦ 

фŐŨő ŝΞŃľ ŝŗūŞ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚř ŕŚŨŕŚ ĒũŗũŚţő ňŨľŨţē
ũΝέţ    ğĞęğĝĢěĝĜ 

ųŗŨň ŚŨŖ    ĠęğĢĤěĢġ    
őŪň ŚŨŖ ĞęĜĤĝěĤĤ    

őŪň ŔũřŝҜŏ ĥęĜĤĜěĢĞ    
    ŗŨŴľΠň ųľũŔňŨŚŨĵŴŅśő ğĞęĥĝĞěĥğ

ĵũŔĺŝ ňŨľŨţ Ģ.Ĝĥ
ΝŨŅŨř ŏř ňŨľŨţ ĒğĝěĝĞěĞĜĝġē ĥĢěğĜ      

Ĵˇŀũōř ŔŴŎ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŔŏŴǐŔ ŝŗūŞ 
ųŏś ĺĿő ķкţő ĺΝť ŝŗűũИř őōŬő ŘūŴŀ ŔŏŨŔΠŌ ľŴřŴńĬ ũőŗΠŨŌ ľŨŴŅ ĺĿőĵ ųŏŴśř фŴţŨŅő ķкō ŗŨŴőř ũỂŚŝĬ ũΝŜţňŨ ŗŨŎŨţ ųřŴĿĵ ĴŨŗřŨ ΝŨŅŨŴř ĺŴőũń “BSRM Maxima”Ĭ 
ĺňŨ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ųŏŴś фŎŗ ĺΝť ĺľŗŨЄ ũřĊΝŨř ŘŨ ậŐūŗŨЄ ĴũōľŨţ ΝűŞŤ ΖŨŔőŨ ųŘŗő ũΝẁƏŤ фľẦę ųŝōŬę ŔŨōŨŚ ŔŎę ьŨĵļŖŨřę ŊƏŨŗ ĺΝť ŀŀőŃŬңŪ ΝỉōŚ ŖΝő ũőŗΠŨųŌř ŅőƏĵ 
ũΝŴśŜ ŖŨŴΝ фỀōĬ ĺĵ ũřĊΝŨř ŵōũřŴō US AASHTO LRFD ĺΝť AASTM 706-09 ųˇŊ 80 ĺř ŗō ĴŨЮŅΠŨũōľ ŗŨő ΝŅŨţ řŨĿŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ ōŨĵ ĺũň ậŐū ǻŌŀō ŗŨő ĺΝť ũőřŨŔЇŨĵ 
ũőũẮō ľřųΝőŨ ĺľĵ ŝŨŴŎ ũΝŔūŚ ŔũřŗŨő ŵΝŴŏũśľ ŗΞБŨļ ŝŨśΡţ ľřŴΝĬ
ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ˉŴŔř ŅőƏ ũőřũΝũΎк ũΝẁƏŤ ŝřΝřŨŞ ũőũẮō ľřŴō ĴŨŗřŨ ĞĜĝĤ ŝŨŴŚř ŗŴŐƏ ĝġĜ ųŗŁŨļţŨň ķŤŔŨŏő ǐŗōŨ ŝҜк ĺľũň ľţŚŨ ũŖũЇľ ũΝẁƏŤ фľẦ ΖŨŔŴőř ũŏŴľ ĺũŀŴţ 
ŘŨũΎĬ ĿūΝ ũśĆĵ ĺř ũőŗΠŨŌ ľŨŅ ậҺ ŞŴΝĬ ĺĵ ķŴДśƏŴľ ŝŨŗŴő ųřŴĿ ĴŨŗřŨ ĵŴōŨŗŴŐƏ ΝŨŅŨŴř ĞĜĜ ųľŨũň ňŨľŨř ũŅŴřŨ ľŬŔő ΝХ ųńŴşũń ĺΝť ĺř ĺľũň Ĵťś фľẦũň ΝŨếΝŨţŴő 
ũΝũőŴţŨŀ ľřŨ ŞŴΝĬ 
ĴŨũŗ ĴōƏЮ ĴŨőŴдř ŝŨŴŎ ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ŅŨőŨũΎ ųŘę ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŝŞŴŘŨŀŪ фũōẶŨő ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũỂŚ ũŗŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ ŀō ĞĞųś ũŊŴŝңř ĞĜĝġĵť ųŎŴľ ŔřŪǐŨŗΞŚľ ķŤŔŨŏő ậҺ ľŴřŴńĬ 
ĺũň ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ˉŴŔř ŝΝŴŃŴţ Νş ũΝŴŚň ķŤŔŏőľŨřŪ фũōẶŨőĬ

ũΖũōśŪŚ ķкţő ļ ŝŗŨŅ ľŚƏŨŌ 
фũōẶŨő ũŞŴŝŴΝ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ˉŔ ŝΝŝŗţ ẄΎōŨęŔŴŌƏř ǻŌŀō ŗŨő ļ ľŴŔΠŨŴřň ŀŖŨřŴőШ ĴőūŝřŴŌř ųŃẵŨ ľŴřĬ ĴŨŗřŨ ŏűŢŖŨŴΝ ũΝơŨŝ ľũř ųŘ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ΝƏΝŝŨţŪľ ķŴДśƏ ậŐūŗŨЄ 
ŗūőŨŕŨ ĴŅΠŴőř ŗŴŐƏĵ ŝŪŗŨΝИ őţę ũΝũŖк ŝŨŗŨũŅľ фŴţŨŅŴőř фũōļ ĴŨŗřŨ ŝũέţĬ ĺĵ ķŴДśƏŴľ ŝŨŗŴő ųřŴĿ ŏũřБ ĺΝť ŝūũΝŐŨ Νũδō ŅőŴŀŨũẶř ŅőƏ ũľńŬ фľẦ ŞŨŴō ũőŴţũńĬ 

ųśŜŨťś
ΝōΠŗŨŴő ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ̄ ŴŔř фŨţ ĞęĜĜĜ ľŗΠŪΝŨũŞőŪ řŴţŴńĬ ĺľĵ ŝŨŴŎ ľŴţľ ŞŨŅŨř Ĵũőţũŗō ľŗΠŪę ũŉľŨŏŨřę ŝřΝřŨŞľŨřŪ ļ ĴőƏŨőƏ ųỂľŴŞŨấŨřŀŌ фōƏǐ ΝŨ ŔŴřŨǐŖŨŴΝ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř 
ŝŨŴŎ ŅũşōĬ ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨЮũřľŖŨŴΝ ōŧŨŴŏř ŝΝŨĵŴľ ŝŴΝΠŨΌ ŝūũΝŐŨ фŏŨŴőř ųŃẵŨ ľŴř ŘŨũΎĬ 
ĴŨũŗ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ľŗΠŪΝŨũŞőŪųľ ōŧŨŴŏř ľŴŉŨř ŔũřśΡŗ ļ ũőřŚŝ ľŴŗΠŨŏƏŴŗř ŅőƏ ĴŨЮũřľ ŐőƏΝŨŏ ŅŨőŨũΎĬ 
ŔũřŴśŴŜ ĴŨũŗ ΝƏŨťľę ŋŨľŨ Ểľ ĺǑŴŃĵη ũŚũŗŴňŊę ũŃňŨŀŨť Ểľ ĺǑŴŃĵη ũŚũŗŴňŊę ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ũŝũľķũřũňŅ ĺХ ĺǑŴŃĵη ľũŗśőę ųŝЬŨŚ ũŊŔũŅňřŪ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ũŚũŗŴňŊę ųřũŅểŨř 
ĴΝ ŅŴţЫ Ểľ ųľŨҜŨőŪŅ ĺХ ŕŨŗΠŝę ľř ľōűΠŔǐ ĺΝť ĺľĵ ŝŨŴŎ ũΝŴśŜľŴř ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŝҰŨũőō ųέōŨŴŏř ŐőƏΝŨŏ ŅŨőŨũΎ ŘŨřŨ ĺĿőļ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ļŔř ŔΞŌΠ ĴŨΖŨ ļ ũΝơŨŝ ųřŴĿ 
ŝŞŴŘŨũŀōŨ ľŴř ŘŨŴΎőĬ 
ŝΝΠśũΪŗŨő ĴŨӘŨŞř ųŏŨţŨţ ĴŨŀŨŗŪŴōļ ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ũΝơΖ ŝŞŴŘŨŀŪ ŞŴţĵ ŎŨľŴō ŃŨĵĬ 

ĴŨӘŨŞ ŞŨũŕŅ  

ĴŨŚŪųŞŨŝŨĵő ĴŨľΝřĴŨŚŪ ĺŕũŝĺ
ųŃţŨřŗƏŨő
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Aameir Alihussain
Managing Director 
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FROM THE DESK OF
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

I would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all our shareholders and various sectors of society for their concern for and support to the 
Company. I am pleased to announce that your Company registered a record profit of Tk. 208.18 Crore in 2015 which is the highest in 
the history of the Company. Our EPS is now Tk. 6.09 per share which was Tk. 3.18 per share in 2014.

Considering the company’s earnings, the Board of Directors of the Company has recommended 30% Cash dividend for consideration in 
this Annual General Meeting by the shareholders.

You are already aware that, Bangladesh economy was doing well in 2015. The gross domestic products grew at an impressive 6.5% in 
2015. In addition to the steady GDP, the controlled inflation, sliding lending rates, stable exchange rate and satisfactory foreign currency 
reserves indicate that, the economy is getting a strong ground. The World Bank forecasting growth of 6.7% for fiscal 2015-16.

To maintain this steady economic growth, Bangladesh needs huge infrastructural development especially in the field of power, 
communication, health and education. Several big projects are undertaken for infrastructural development. 

We forecast a good demand for high quality steel products for constructions in near future. Now people are also very quality conscious. 
As a result, demand for high quality steels are rising. We have increased our production capacity  to 700,000 M. Ton per annum to meet 
this growing demand for quality steels. Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited, a concern of BSRM Group of Companies has also 
modernized and now capable to produce 450,000 M. Ton Steel products per annum.

We are happy to announce that, our associate company BSRM Steel Mills Limited, the largest billet producing plant in our group has 
started trial production in December. 

Acute power crisis in Bangladesh is one of the main obstacle for sustainable growth. To mitigate this problem, we have already 
undertaken a plan to set up a coal based power plant. The Board of Directors of BSRM Steels Limited has decided to invest initially 
Tk. 50 crore in this company. A Zero Coupon Bond will be issued to raise Tk. 200 crore which was approved by the shareholders.

We want to assure the stakeholders that we are very conscious of our obligation to the society, consumers, our dedicated employees and 
above all to our Dealers/ customers. We also assure you that your investments with the company are safe and will grow.

Lastly, I thank the stakeholders who collectively ensure the success of the Company. It is only with the confidence that they place in 
our company that we are able to sustain the financial performance year on year. I am grateful to my colleagues on the Board, senior 
management team, our all work forces, bankers, valued customers, officials of Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, National 
Board of Revenue and various government departments and ministries for their continued counsel and guidance as we go forward.

Sincerely Yours,

Aameir Alihussain
Managing Director
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mqm˙JkjJ kKrYJuPTr kã ßgPT

ũфţ ųśţŨřŴŞŨấŨřΝűдę 
ĺĵ ậŖ ǐŴŌ ĴŨũŗ ŝҰŨũőō ųśţŨřŴŞŨấŨřΝűдŴľ ĴŨŗŨř ĴŨЮũřľ ŐőƏΝŨŏ ŘŨőŨũΎ ĺΝť ĺľĵ ŝŨŴŎ ŝŗŨŴŅř ŝΝΠếŴřř ŗŨőūŜę ŘŨřŨ ũΝũŖк ŝŨŞŨŘƏ 
ŝŞŴŘŨũŀōŨř ŗŨŐƏŴŗ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŝŨŴŎ Ņũşō ōŧŨŴŏřŴľļ ŅŨőŨĵ ĴŨЮũřľ ậŴŖΎŨ ļ ĴũŖőдőĬ ĴŨũŗ ŝũōƏĵ ĴŨőŴдř ŝŨŴŎ ŅŨőŨũΎ ųŘ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ 
ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ųľŨҜŨőŪ ĞĜĤěĝĤ ųľŨũň ňŨľŨ ŗūőŨŕŨ ĴŅΠő ľŴřŴń ŘŨ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ĵũōŞŨŴŝ ŝŴΝΠŨΌĬ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ĵũŔĺŝ ĺĿő ųśţŨř фũō 
ĢěĜĥ ňŨľŨţ ķũкō ŞŴţŴń ŘŨ ĞĜĝĠ ŝŨŴŚ ũńŚ ğěĝĤ ňŨľŨĬ
ųľŨҜŨőŪř ĴŨţ ũΝŴΝŃőŨţ ųřŴĿ ŔũřŃŨŚľΝűд ĺΝńř ΝŨũŜΠľ ŝŨŐŨřŌ ŝŖŨţ ŝҰŨũőō ųśţŨřŴŞŨấŨřŀŴŌř ũΝŴΝŃőŨř ķŴДŴśƏ ğĜ śōŨťś őŀŏ ŚŖƏŨťś 
фŏŨŴőř ŝūŔŨũřś ľŴřŴńőĬ 
ĴŴőľ фũōΝЦľōŨ ŝŴЁļ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴśř ĴŎΠőŪũō ōŬŚőŨŗΞŚľŖŨŴΝ ŖŨŚĵ ũńŚĬ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ ųŗŨň ųŏśŅ ķŤŔŨŏő ųΝŴş ŏŧŨşŨţ Ģěġ 
śōŨťŴśĬ ũŅũŊũŔř ũΖũōśŪŚōŨř ŔŨśŨŔŨũś ũőţũЯō ŗΞБŨũỆũōę ĹŴŌř ŝūŴŏř ũőŗΟŀũōę ũΖũōśŪŚ ũΝũőŗţ ŞŨř ĺΝť  ŶΝŴŏũśľ ŗΞБŨř ŝŴЮŨŜŅőľ 
ũřŅŨŖΠ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ĴŎΠőŪũōř ŗŅΝūō ũŖō ŀŴş ōŬŚŴńĬ ĴŨŀŨŗŪ ĞĜĝġĊĝĢ ĴŎΠ ΝńŴř ĴŨŗŨŴŏř фΝűũИ Ģěģ śōŨťŴś ķũкō ŞΝŨř ĴŨśŨ фľŨś ľŴřŴń 
ũΝơ ΝƏŨťľĬ 
ķкţŴőř ĺĵ ŃŚŗŨő ŐŨřŨŴľ ŐŴř řŨĿŴō ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴśř фŃŬř ĴΝľŨŉŨŴŗŨŀō ķкţő фŴţŨŅőę ũΝŴśŜ ľŴř ũΝẁƏŤę ųŘŨŀŨŴŘŨŀ ΝƏΝΖŨę ũŃũľŤŝŨ ļ ũśǐŨ 
ĿŨōŴľ ĺŴǐŴЄ фŨŐŨőƏ ųŏļţŨ ķũŃōĬ ōŴΝ ĴŨśŨř ľŎŨ ŞŚ ŝřľŨř ĵųōŨŗŴŐƏ ĺŐřŴőř ųΝś ũľńŬ ķкţő фľẦ ŞŨŴō ũőŴţŴń ĺΝť ΝŨếΝŨţő ľřŴńĬ 
ĺŝΝ ľŨřŴŌ ũőľň ŖũΝŜƏŴō ųŘ ųľŨő ũőŗΠŨŌ ľŨŴŅ ķкōŗŨŴőř ĵỄŨō ŔŴŌƏř ΝƏŨŔľ ŃŨũŞŏŨ ŝűũẵ ŞŴΝ ΝŴŚ ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨśŨΝŨũŏĬ ŗŨőūŜ ĺĿő ŔŴŌƏř 
ǻőŀō ŗŨŴőř ΝƏŨŔŨŴř ĴōƏũŐľ ŝŴŃōőĬ ōŨĵ ŖŨŚ ŗŨŴőř ĵỄŨō ŔŴŌƏř ŃŨũŞŏŨļ ũŏő ũŏő ųΝŴşĵ ŃŴŚŴńĬ ǻőŀō ŗŨŴőř ĵỄŨō ŔŴŌƏř ĺĵ ΝŨşũō 
ŃŨũŞŏŨř ľŎŨ ŗŨŎŨţ ųřŴĿ ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ķŤŔŨŏő ǐŗōŨŴľ ΝŨũŜΠľ ģęĜĜęĜĜĜ ųŗěňŴő ķũкō ľŴřũńĬ ĺľĵ ŝŨŴŎ ĴŨŗřŨ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ˉŴŔř ĴŨř 
ĺľũň фũōẶŨő ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ũỂŚ ũřĊųřŨũŚť ũŗŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊĮĺř ΝŨũŜΠľ ķŤŔŨŏő ǐŗōŨ ΝűũИ ľŴřũńĬ фũōẶŨőũň ĺĿő ΝńŴř ĠęġĜęĜĜĜ ųŗě ňő ĵỄŨō 
ŔŌƏ ķŤŔŨŏő ľřŴō ŔŨŴřĬ 
ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨőŴдř ŝŨŴŎ ŅŨőŨũΎ ųŘ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ĴŨř ĺľũň ŝŞŴŘŨŀŪ фũōẶŨő ĺΝť ˉŴŔř ŝΝŃŨĵŴō Νş ũΝŴŚň фỀōľŨũř фľẦę ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũỂŚ 
ũŗŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚř ũŊŴŝңř ŗŨŝ ųŎŴľ ŔřŪǐŨŗūŚľ ķŤŔŨŏő ậҺ ľŴřŴńĬ 
ũΝẁƏŤ ŝŗŝƏŨ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴśř ũΖũōśŪŚ ķкţŴőř ŔŴŎ ĺľũň Νş ĴЮřŨţĬ ĺĵ ŝŗŝƏŨ ŝŗŨŐŨŴőř ŅőƏ ĴŨŗřŨ ĵŴōŨŗŴŐƏ ĺľũň ľţŚŨ ũŖũЇľ ũΝẁƏŤ фľẦ 
ΖŨŔŴőř ľŨŅ ŞŨŴō ũőŴţũńĬ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũỂŚŝ  ũŚũŗŴňŊĮĺř ŔũřŃŨŚľΝűд фŨŎũŗľŖŨŴΝ ķΪ фľŴẦ ġĜ ųľŨũň ňŨľŨ ũΝũőŴţŨŴŀř ũŝИŨЮ ũőŴţŴńőĬ 
ųľŨҜŨőŪ ĞĜĜ ųľŨũň ňŨľŨř ũŅŴřŨ ľŬŔő ΝХ ĵŝūƏ ľřŴΝ ŘŨ ĵŴōŨŗŴŐƏ ŝҰŨũőō ųśţŨřŴŞŨấŨřŀŌ ĴőūŴŗŨŏő ũŏŴţŴńőĬ 
ŝҰŨũőō ũΝũőŴţŨŀľŨřŪŴŏř ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨơΖ ľřŴō ŃŨĵ ųŘ ĴŨŗřŨ ŝΝŝŗţ ŝŗŨŅę ųŖŨΪŨę ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ũőŴΝũŏōфŨŌ ľŗΠŪΝŨũŞőŪ ĺΝť ŝŴΝΠŨŔũř ųέōŨŝŨŐŨřŴŌř 
фũō ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŔŨũŚō ŏŨũţЁ ŝҜŴľΠ ĿūΝĵ ŝŴŃōőĬ ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨřļ ĴŨơΖ ľřŴō ŃŨĵ ųŘ ųľŨҜŨőŪŴō ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ũΝũőŴţŨŀ ŝūřũǐō ŎŨľŴΝ ĺΝť ķЇř 
ķЇř ΝűũИ ŔŨŴΝĬ 
ŔũřŴśŴŜ ĴŨũŗ ĴŨΝŨřļ ũΝũőŴţŨŀľŨřŪŴŏř ŐőƏΝŨŏ ŅŨőŨũΎ ŘŨŴŏř ŝũҰũŚō фŴŃẵŨ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŝŕŚōŨ ũőũẮō ľŴřŴńĬ ΝńŴřř Ŕř Νńř ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ĺĵ 
ķкũō ĺΝť ŝŕŚ ĴŎΠŵőũōľ ũΖũōśŪŚōŨ ŝҮΝ ŞŴţŴń ậŐūŗŨЄ ųľŨҜŨőŪř фũō ōŧŨŴŏř ŏűŢ ĴŨΖŨ ĺΝť ũΝơŨŴŝř ľŨřŴŌĬ ĴŨũŗ ĴŨŗŨř ųΝŨŊΠ ŝŞľŗΠŪę 
ŔŏΖ ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ ũňŗę ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŝľŚ ľŗΠŪΝŨũŞőŪę ΝƏŨťľŨřę ŝҰŨũőō ųέōŨŝŨŐŨřŌę ųřũŅểŨř ĴΝ ŅŴţЫ Ểľ ųľŨҜŨőŪŅ ĺХ ŕŨŗΠŝĮĺř ŝľŚ 
ľŗΠľōΠŨ ľŗΠŃŨřŪŀŌę ŅŨōŪţ řŨŅẄ ųΝŨŊΠ ĺΝť ũΝũŖк ŝřľŨřŪ ŝťΖŨ ļ ŗЯőŨŚţŴľ ōŨŴŏř ŝŨŞŨŘƏę ŝŞŴŘŨũŀōŨ ļ ǻҺЁŔΞŌΠ ũŏľũőŴŏΠśőŨř ŅőƏ ĴŨЮũřľ 
ŐőƏΝŨŏ ļ ľŲōγōŨ ŅŨőŨũΎĬ 

ŝΝŨĵŴľ ŐőƏΝŨŏĬ   

ĴŨŗŪř ĴŨŚŪŴŞŨŝŨĵő 
ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ ŔũřŃŨŚľ 
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A bank is a financial intermediary that creates credit by lending money to a 
borrower, thereby creating a corresponding deposit on the bank's balance 
sheet. Due to their importance in the financial system and influence on national 

economies, banks are highly regulated

Banking
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders,

Assalamualikum and Good Morning. On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management, I welcome you all to the 14th Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) of BSRM Steels Limited. We have the pleasure to place the Directors’ Report and the Auditors’ Report herewith together 
with the Audited Financial Statements of your Company for the year ended 31st December 2015 for your consideration, approval 
and adoption. We have prepared this Report in compliance with the Companies Act 1994 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission Notification No: SEC/CMRRCD/2006/158/143/Admin/44, dated: August 07, 2012.

Review of 2015:

Industry out Look and Possible future development

Bangladesh is a developing country with an average GDP growth rate of 6% per annum, for the last eight years. With this growth rate it 
should be a middle-income country by 2024.

For a developing country, economic growth means massive investment in housing and infrastructure construction projects. Of course, 
construction means steel in huge quantities, in millions of tons.

To cater to the expected demand local investors have not lagged behind. There are about five steel producing ventures with nominal 
capacities of 0.5 million tons per annum or greater.  Besides, there are 30 auto rolling mills with nominal capacities between 100,000 
to 200,000 tons per annum. The older scrap-based steel rolling mills which thrived on the ship breaking industry is on a gradual decline 
as home builders prefer graded and branded steel products.

As the economy will continue to grow in the foreseeable future, there will be a healthy demand for steel and local entrepreneurs will go 
for capacity enhancement. There could be new entrants possibly with foreign technical and equity participation.

Growth and investment will further fuel intense rivalry among all local steel producers. In times of temporary economic downturn, there 
could be severe price wars among rival manufacturers. 

In the long run the steel industry has immense prospects. Companies which invest in the latest plant and process technologies and bring 
out more innovative steel products will be the market leaders.

Operational and Financial Performance:

Some operational and financial data is given below for better understanding of the overall performance of the Company:

Operational Performance:								      

Particulars 2015 2014 2013 2012

Installed Capacity (M. Ton) 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000

Production (M. Ton) 602,832 625,363 630,305 580,147

Capacity Utilization (%) 99.50 104 105 97

Sales (M. Ton) 604,513 679,803 601,935 579,377

The company has increased its production capacity from 6.00 lac MT to 7.00 lac MT. The mill was shut down for 23 days wef. 
14th November 2015 and resumed its production with extended capacity on 7th December 2015.
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Financial Performance:						      Amount in BDT in million

Particulars 2015 2014 2013 2012

Sales 32,316.10 38,535.94 36,229.05 38,253.46

Gross Profit 4,368.65 2,807.32 3,250.15 1,888.44

Profit before interest, taxes, WPP&WF 3,257.93 1,892.83 2,314.39 1,160.39

Less: Interest & WPP&WF (739.29) (378.95) (492.82) 136.42

Add/(Less): Share of Profit/(Loss) of associate 75.31 (3.20) 497.36 -

Less: Tax expenses & Provision for income tax (512.07) (424.47) (625.46) (431.48)

Net Profit 2,081.88 1,086.21 1,693.47 865.33

EPS (Taka) 6.09 3.18 4.95 2.53

Your Company has registered a solid result despite a difficult economy all over the world. The year 2014 was a good year but 2015 
results show that your Company has progressed even further. Before tax profits stood Tk. 259.39 Crore in 2015. 

Other Financial Information:					     Amount in BDT in million

Particulars 2015 2014 2013 2012

Paid Up Capital 3,417.75 3,417.75 3,417.75 3,255.00

Share Holders’ Equity 9,080.62 7,495.09 6,915.25 5,540.65

Current Liabilities 14,213.79 18,445.30 15,858.17 16,178.60

Non-current Liabilities 1,436.02 1,200.26 1,131.64 735.45

Addition to fixed assets & CWIP 758.16 227.39 296.23 347.75

Operating cash flow 5,766.33 (2,995.28) 4,595.39 (727.69)

Operation of Subsidiary Company:

BSRM Steels Limited is holding 95% ordinary shares of BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. (BISCO), a billet manufacturing plant since 2010.

Financial and quantitative performance of the company is given below in the tabular form:

Particulars
2015 2014 2013 2012

M. Ton M. Ton M. Ton M. Ton

Production Qty. 176,312 180,678 168,326 138,725

Sales Qty. 177,199 182,083 167,066 137,947

Amount in BDT million

Sales 7,916.12 9,374.11 8,861.77 8,004.95

Gross Profit 439.67 686.17 513.39 598.48

Profit before Interest, Def.Taxes & WPP&WF 418.39 668.26 489.07 562.39

Less: Interest & WPP&WF 169.55 432.83 317.84 354.38

Less: Tax expenses & Provision for Income Tax 240.05 68.59 30.53 60.75

Net Profit 8.79 166.84 140.70 147.26

Operation of Associated Companies:
BSRM Steels Limited has acquired 25.35% of shares of BSRM Steel Mills Limited as of December 31, 2015. Total investment in the 
company is Tk. 100.00 crore This project will start commercial production by the first quarter of 2016. It will be the world’s largest 
induction furnace based billet casting plant. It will reduce BSRM’s dependency on the imported billets and will save huge amount of 
foreign currency. BSRM Steels Limited will be able to supply MS Rod at more competitive price when this plant will start commercial 
production with sound productivity.
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Segment wise or product wise performance:

BSRM Xtreme500W was the first high strength steel in Grade 500 Yield Strength category introduced in to the Bangladesh construction 
market in 2008. BSRM Xtreme500W rapidly gained market share and is the undisputed market leader in this category.

The housing sector and infrastructure projects in the country rely on Grade 500 steel. Independent Home Builders (IHB) throughout 
the country, rely on Xtreme500W, which they buy from the company’s network of over 600 Dealers. Corporate customers, such as real 
estate developers, do business directly with BSRM. Large infrastructure projects such as Flyovers in Dhaka and Chittagong also use 
BSRM Xtreme500W. 

Besides Xtreme500W the company also manufactures Grade 420D steel to meet the requirements of certain Govt. projects in the power 
sector. Recently the company has decided to brand the Grade 420D as ‘Ultima’. 

Campaign:

To create and retain the Top of Mind (ToM) awareness among retail customers, IHB, BSRM regularly launches an extensive marketing 
campaign to create market awareness of the superior attributes of its products. In 2015 the campaign was ’10 in 10’. This campaign 
focused on the fact that to qualify as Grade 500 steel the ten most important attributes of the steel have to be tested.  Xtreme500W is 
the only steel which passes the ’10 in 10’ test. This was one of the most successful campaigns of the company in raising consumer 
awareness about steel quality.

Company produces various sizes of Xtreme500W product in one production centre. Detailed product wise performances are as follows:

Products Production (M. Ton) Sales ( M. Ton)

2015 2014 2015 2014

Xtreme500W 577,417 605,516 571,629 657,550

Others 25,415 18,402 32,884 22,253

Total 602,832 623,918 604,513 679,803

Risks & Concerns:

Risk assessment and mitigation is the integral part of any business.  The Board of Directors are regularly monitoring, assessing and 
identifying potential risk and threats to our profitability and sustainable growth. Our Risk Management capabilities are supported by a 
strong management structure, information system, regular analysis of market, economic scenario and robust policies to cope with the 
challenges. 

A summary of the significant risks and the way of managing risks adopted by our company is included in Annexure-2 and Note -43 of 
the Financial Statements.

Management Discussion:

Board of Directors periodically discusses on the increase/decrease of cost of goods sold, gross and net profit margin and takes immediate 
measures on the analysis as required. A detailed report on discussion is included in Annexure-1.

Credit Rating:

Credit Rating information and Services Limited (CRISL) assigned rating as below:

Long Term Short Term

AA ST-2

The entities rated “AA” are adjudged to be of high quality, offer higher safety and have high credit quality. This level of rating indicates 
a corporate entity with a sound credit profile and without significant problems. Risks are modest and may vary slightly from time to time 
because of economic conditions.

“ST-2” indicates high certainty of timely payment. Liquidity factors are strong and supported by good fundamental protection factors. 
Risk factors are very small.

Our Company in the evaluation of Credit Rating Company was also placed with “Stable Outlook”.
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Board of Directors:

i. 	 Composition and size of the Board:

	 On 31st December 2015, there were 5 members on the Board. The Board comprises Chairman, Managing Director, two 
Directors and one Independent Director.

ii. 	 Board Meeting and attendance:

The Board met 14 times during the year. Following table shows the attendance of Directors in the meeting.

Name of the directors Position
No. of meeting held 

during the year
No. of meeting attended

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA Chairman 14 14

Mr. Aameir Alihussain Managing Director 14 12

Mr. Zohair Taherali Director 14 13

Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali Director 14 13

Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA Independent Director 14 12

	 The member who could not attend the meeting was granted leave or was outside the country.

iii.	 Details of Directors being re-appointed:

	 Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA and Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali will retire by rotation at the conclusion of this AGM as per  
Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible they offer themselves for re-appointment.

iv.	 Name of Companies in which Directors holds the directorship and membership have been disclosed in Board of 
Directors segment.

v.	 Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA has re-appointed as Independent Director for the next three years.

Internal Control system:
The Board of Directors ensures that the Group has an effective internal control system which ensures that the assets of the Company 
are safeguarded and appropriate systems are in place to minimize and detect fraud, errors and other irregularities. The Company has 
adopted Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for the betterment of internal control system. To generate accurate data and information 
within reasonable time frame, we have already commissioned most modern software called Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP). The 
Company has established a separate internal audit department to ensure internal control and compliance are in place. On the other hand, 
Audit Committee regularly monitors and review the reports generated by the internal audit department and takes corrective measures.

Extra-ordinary gain or loss:
There is no extra ordinary gain or loss during the year.

Related Party Transactions:
All transactions with related parties have been made on a commercial basis. Details of the related party transactions have been 
disclosed under note 36 of the financial statements as per IFRS/BFRS.

Utilization of IPO proceeds and Financial Result after IPO:
Company had no unutilized IPO fund since 2009. Company is maintaining a stable financial performance.

Significant variance in the quarterly and annual report:
There were no significant variance between Quarterly performance and overall annual performance. Throughout the year company was 
able to maintain a judicious performance both in operational and financial perspectives. 

Remuneration of Directors including Independent Director:
Directors were remunerated as per the decision of the Board and a detailed report of the Directors’ Remuneration is included in 
Annexure-3 and Note 29.01 of Financial Statements.
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Dividend:
The Director recommended a dividend payment of Tk. 3/= per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 for consideration and 
approval by the shareholders in the AGM. The dividend on equity shares, if approved would be paid to those members whose name 
appears on the register of members as on record date.

Contribution to National Exchequer:
Being a responsible corporate entity, BSRM is paying and facilitating collection of Government’s revenue. In 2015, we have paid, 
collected & deposited a significant amount of Income Tax, VAT and Duties in time. During the year 2015, BSRM Steels Limited collected 
and contributed Tk 2,009 million to the government exchequer along with utility bill which is appended below:

Corporate Social Responsibilities:
BSRM’s commitment to connect business decisions to ethical, social and environmental concerns remains to be one of the strongest 
foundations of the Company. During 2015, your company has been contributing to the welfare of the community, research & development 
and for protection of environment. Details of CSR have been described in the chapter of Corporate Social Responsibilities in  page 67 
of Annual Report.

Award and Recognition:
It is our great pleasure to let you know that, we have achieved some prestigious award during this year. A few of them are mentioned below:

•	 BSRM Steels Limited has secured Silver Award in the 2nd ICSB Corporate Governance Excellence Award for best corporate 
governance in manufacturing sector declared by the Institution of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB)

•	 BSRM Steels Limited also won “Certificate of Merit” for the best presented Annual Report Award-2014 announced by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB)

•	 Best Rod Brand Award 2015

•	 Mercantile Bank Excellence Award 2015

•	 Award as the best user of Electricity in 2015

Information Technology:
BSRM Steels Limited is a customer oriented company since inception. Your Company has taken a group of IT initiative to support its 
sales and support staff in considering client needs and satisfaction. To respond promptly and respectfully to consumer complaints and 
queries we have automated their complaint system. To mitigate business risk, enhance business performance and to provide required 
information to the respective stakeholder, we are continuously updating the ERP System. 

Human Resource Management
The Human Resource strategies applied and practiced by the Company have translated into the creation of a dynamic and competent 
human resource team with sound succession planning and a remarkable low attrition rate. “Be an employer of choice, with focus on 
nurturing talent and developing future leaders of the organization” is one vision of BSRM Group. Details of Human Resource are set out 
in the Chapter “Sustainable Growth” in Page no. 71 in this report.
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Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Directors. All the Directors have signed as an acceptance 
to its compliance. 

Auditors:

Present auditor Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants (Representative of KPMG in Bangladesh), 102 Agrabad C/A, Chittagong 
will retire in 14th AGM and being eligible to audit for the period covering from 1st January 2016 to 30th June 2016 and also for the year 
from 1st July 2016 to 30th June 2017 they have conveyed their willingness to accept for re-appointment for the said periods. 

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance:

Status of compliance with the requirements / conditions of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Notification No: 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin, dated: 07 August, 2012 on corporate governance has been included in the Report in Annexure-6.

Subsequent Events:

There is no subsequent event after the date of Financial Position and till the date of this report which could affect the ability of the users 
of these financial statements to make an appropriate evaluation.

Directors’ Responsibilities Statements: 

Pursuant to the BSEC notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44, dated: 07 August 2012 the Directors confirm that:

a)	 The financial statements prepared by the management of BSRM Steels Limited fairly present its state of affairs, the result of 
its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b)	 Proper Books of Account of the Company has been maintained.

c)	 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and that the 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d)	 International Accounting Standards (IAS)/Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS)/International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) / Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of 
the financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed.

e)	 The system of internal controls sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

f)	 There are no doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and the annual accounts have been prepared 
as a going concern basis.

g)	 The significant deviations from last year in the operating results of the company have been highlighted in the reports and 
reason thereof has been explained. 

h)	 The key operating and financial data for the last six year is disclosed in Annexure-4.

i)	 The pattern of shareholding is disclosed in Annexure-5.

j)	 A compliance status report with requirements of corporate governance as required by BSEC has been disclosed in Regulatory 
Compliance Report segment.

k)	 Directors’ profile and their directorship and business interest in other organizations have been disclosed in Board of Directors segment.
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Acknowledgements: 
We express our sincere thanks and appreciation to all the honorable shareholders, our customers, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission, Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited, Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited, National Board of Revenue, RJSC, various government 
authorities, trade bodies and all bankers and financial institution for their support, co-operation and guidance in our business endeavor. 
In this occasion we also want to express our heartiest congratulations to all our staffs and management members whose perseverance, 
professionalism and hard works contribute to maintain our strong competitive position and high technological status. We rely on their 
enthusiasm, sincerity as well as their commitments to build the company as a pioneer and leader in steel sector.

As we moving forward to the next frontier of growth and excellence we seek your support and encouragement as we are used to get 
from you since beginning of our journey.

Allah Hafiz,

Alihussain Akberali FCA
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS		     			    	   ANNEXURE-1

Management Discussion and Analysis are designed to provide readers with an overview of the business and an analysis on Cost of Goods 
Sold, Gross and Net Profit margin.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Particulars
2015 2014

Growth %
BDT BDT

Cost of Goods Sold 27,947,447,147 35,728,612,252 (21.78%)

Gross Profit 4,368,653,415 2,807,324,502 55.62%

Net Profit 2,081,877,163 1,086,207,806 91.66%

COST OF GOODS SOLD (COGS)

Cost of goods sold (COGS) is the expense a company incurred in order to manufacture, create, or sell a product. It includes the purchase 
price of the raw material as well as the expenses of turning it into a finished product.

COGS vary directly with sales and production; the more items we sell or make, the more stock or components we need to buy.  

Cost of Goods Sold in 2015 has been decreased by 21.78% than 2014 due to decrease the consumption of Raw Materials i.e. Billets as 
well as some indirect costs. 

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN RATIO

Gross profit is the difference between sales and the cost of goods sold. 

Gross Profit = Sales – Cost of Goods Sold

The gross profit margin is one indicator of the financial health of a business. Larger gross profit margins are better for business – the higher 
the percentage, the more the business retains of each Taka of sales for other expenses and net profit.

Gross Profit Margin % = (Gross Profit ÷ Sales) x 100

During the year 2015, Gross Profit Margin was 13.52% against 7.28% in 2014. Due to decrease of Cost of Goods Sold, GP margin increase.

NET PROFIT MARGIN RATIO

Net Profit is calculated by subtracting expenses including Tax and WPP&WF from the gross profit, showing what the business has earned 
(or lost) in a given period of time. 

Net Profit = Gross Profit – Expenses with Tax & WPP&WF

Net Profit margin of the company in the year 2015 has increased by 3.62% compared to 2014 due to decrease of Cost of Goods Sold.
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RISK FACTORS AND CONCERNS       ANNEXURE-2

1.  Business Risks

a)     Risks associated with sourcing of Raw Materials

At present BSRM Steels Limited is heavily dependent for its basic raw materials-MS Billets on the international market. In the case of 
billet price fluctuation in the international market, the company’s profitability is affected.

BSRM Iron and Steel Co. Ltd. (BISCO), a subsidiary Company of BSRM Steels Limited can meet 25% of its billet demand by supplying 
180,000 M. Ton MS Billet per annum.

Since the production capacity of our Company increased to 700,000 M. Ton per annum, secured supply chain for MS Billets should get 
top priority.

To meet the challenges, a separate company –“BSRM Steel Mills Limited” is going to start its commercial production with a capacity of 
862,000 M. Ton MS billets per year on or before 1st Qtr. of 2016 which will reduce dependency on imports. BSRM Steels Limited is holding 
25.35% equity shares of BSRM Steel Mills Limited.

b)     Risks associated with Power Supply

Presently the primary constraint on the economic development of Bangladesh is the shortage of power for which new industrial 
investments proposal from home and aboard have failed to materialize.

For ensuring uninterrupted power supply, BSRM Group has made a deal with PGCB and installed a substation for tapping power from 
the 230 KV national grids. BSRM group also is going to set up a 150 MW coal based power plant at Mireshorai, Chittagong. Government 
approval has already been obtained for setting up this plant and initial works for setting up this plant has started. Moreover, now more 
than 10,000 MW power can be produced in Bangladesh. The government is also planning for setting up some big power stations. There 
is another regular risk of having an adequate and regular supply of gas. The Company is also aware of such risks and its mitigation 
through the alternative supply of fuel.

2. Market Risks

Like other industry, trade, and commerce, we are also exposed to market risks arising from adverse changes in:

•	 Interest Rate;

•	 Currency Rate (foreign exchange rates);

•	 Competition and

•	 Economic conditions

To manage these risks, we undertake various risks specific measures and strategies.

Interest Rates

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that increases in money market rates will have an adverse impact on consolidated net financial 
income.

The business of BSRM Steels Limited requires huge working capital. Although the company closely monitors and manages requirement 
of capital investment, the actual capital requirement may deviate from the projected one due to factors beyond its control, thus potentially 
affecting the borrowing costs. However, now interest rate on working capital and term loan has come down which gives some benefits 
to the management.

Prudent financial management and active negotiation with the lenders and timely collection from customers are few of significant steps 
to reducing funding cost. 
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Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Foreign currency risk is the risk of changes in exchange rates that adversely affect the company’s earnings, equity, and competitiveness.

We are hugely involved with Foreign Trade i.e. Import & Export and thus we are also exposed to Foreign Currency Risks. Exchange rate 
gains or losses related to foreign currency transactions are recognized as transaction gains and losses in our income statement as 
incurred. We also maintain foreign currency account in which export collection in exchange is directly deposited to meet foreign currency 
payment requirement. In the year 2015 company has not been affected due to Foreign Currency fluctuation.

Competition and Economic Conditions

Competition refers to the risks of decreasing present market share caused by new entrants. We try to mitigate this risk through active 
brand management and customer relationship and by ensuring supply of quality product.

As we are continuously in attempts to explore any untapped opportunity and also to adopt customer’s needs, we believe we would be 
able to cope with any situation in the industry we are working. 

3. Technology Related Risks

Highly automated and competitive types of machinery are available with the Company for the manufacture of various steel products. 
The Company has so far been one of the pioneers in Bangladesh in setting up mills with State of the Art European Technology for further 
processing of the input materials. The Company also implemented Oracle e-Business Suite to integrate the operation of basic functions 
namely, Finance and Accounts, Sales and Marketing, Supply Chain, Inventory, Maintenance, and Manufacturing.  

4. Environmental Risks

Since the Company setting up its Mill with environmental friendly State of the Art European Technology, furthermore, the Company takes 
measures to ensure a pollution-free environment, which is compatible with the environmental regulations of Bangladesh regarding both 
noise and atmospheric emission. Water used in the mill is recycled and hence does not pollute the environment.

REMUNERATION PAID TO
DIRECTORS IN 2015       			     	   ANNEXURE-3

Members of the Board of Directors were entitled and paid as follows: 

Name Position Attendance Fees Remuneration Total Paid

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA Chairman 20,125       22,800,000 22,820,125

Mr. Aameir Alihussain Managing Director 14,375 19,500,000 19,514,375

Mr. Zohair Taherali Director 17,250 10,200,000 10,217,250

Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali Director 17,250 5,790,000 5,807,250

Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA Independent Director 95,450 - 95,450

                    Total Taka 164,450 58,290,000 58,454,450
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL
DATA OF PRECEDING 6 YEARS   		    ANNEXURE-4

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Operations  and Market:

Production  (Qty) MT 602,832 623,918 630,305 580,147 523,625 433,823

% of Production Growth % (3.38%) (1.01%) 8.65% 10.79% 20.70% 23.83%

Sales (Qty) MT 604,513 679,803 601,935 579,377 517,887 442,707

% of Sales Growth (Qty) % (11.08%) 12.94% 3.90% 11.87% 16.98% 24.29%

Financial Results:

Turnover TK 32,316,100,562 38,535,936,754 36,229,050,933 38,253,464,657 31,234,710,327 22,007,682,247

Gross Profit TK 4,368,653,415 2,807,324,502 3,250,148,580 1,888,439,411 1,914,574,972 1,929,718,476

Gross Profit % % 13.52% 7.28% 8.97% 4.94% 6.13% 8.77%

Earnings before interest, 
WPP&WF  and Tax 

TK 3,257,931,547 1,892,833,850 2,314,398,453 1,160,385,361 1,369,695,830 1,551,537,999

% 10.08% 4.91% 6.39% 3.03% 4.39% 7.05%

Net Profit after tax
TK 2,081,877,163 1,086,207,806 1,693,468,511 865,331,036 839,205,050 964,885,985

% 6.44% 2.82% 4.68% 2.26% 2.69% 4.38%

Earnings Per Share (EPS)* TK 6.09 3.18 4.95 2.53 2.46 2.82

Financial Position:

Current Ratio (Times ) 1.06 1.01 0.97 0.92 0.93 0.83

Net Asset Value TK 9,080,618,705 7,495,091,260 6,915,249,792 5,540,653,743 2,974,080,646 2,134,875,596

Net  Asset Value Per 
Share

TK 26.57 21.93 20.23 17.02 9.14 7.87

Net operating Cash Flow 
Per Share

TK 16.87 (8.76) 13.45 (2.24) (14.14) 6.67

Paid-up Capital (In Crore) TK 341.775 341.775 341.775 325.50 325.50 271.25

*As per BAS 33 Earnings per share are computed based on current year’s number of outstanding shares.
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THE PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS ON 31 DECEMBER 2015   		    	   ANNEXURE-5

a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated companies and other related parties 

NAME RELATION NO. OF SHARES HELD

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited Affiliated Company 106,594,173

H. Akberali & Co. Ltd. Affiliated Company 76,864,620

Total 183,458,793

b) Directors /CEO/CS/CFO/Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children. 

NAME RELATION NO. OF SHARES HELD

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA Chairman    34,987,995

Mr. Aameir Alihussain Managing Director 6,835,500

Mr. Zohair Taherali Director 8,932,980

Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali Director 6,835,500

Mrs. Sabeen Aameir Wife of Mr. Aameir Alihussain        7,245

Mrs. Bilkis Alihussain Wife of Mr. Alihussain Akberali 1,168,272

Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA Group CFO & CS 27,279

c) Shareholding status of top 5 salaried employees other than CEO, CS, CFO & HIA 

NAME DESIGNATION NO. OF SHARES HELD

Mr. M. Firoze Head of Marketing & Product Development Nil

Mr. A.F.M Mizanur Rahman Plant Head Nil

Mr. Jasim Uddin Ahmed Head of Technical Projects 4,270

Mr. Shobhon Mahbub Shahabuddin Head of National Sales Nil

Mr. Md. Imtiaz Uddin Chowdhury Head of Supply Chain Management Nil

d) Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest in the company.

NAME RELATION NO. OF SHARES HELD

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA Chairman    34,987,995

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Ltd. Affiliated Company 106,594,173

H. Akberali & Co. Ltd. Affiliated Company    76,864,620
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REPORT OF THE STATUS OF COMPLIANCE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 		   	   ANNEXURE-6

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44, dated: 
07 August 2012 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:  

(Report under condition No: 7)

Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status (Put √ in the  
appropriate column) Remarks 

(if any)
Complied Not Complied

1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.1 Board’s Size √

1.2 Independent Directors

1.2 (i) Minimum Number of Independent Director(s) √

1.2 (ii) (a) Shareholding by Independent Director(s) √

1.2 (ii) (b) Relationship with Company’s sponsor √

1.2 (ii) (c) Other relationship with Company or its subsidiary / associated companies √

1.2 (ii) (d) Member, Director or Officer of any Stock Exchange √

1.2 (ii) (e) Shareholder/Director/Officer of any member of Stock Exchange or an 
intermediary of the Capital Market

√

1.2 (ii) (f) Association with statutory audit firm (currently or preceding 3 years engaged as 
auditor of the Company)

√

1.2 (ii) (g) Holding same position in more than three listed companies √

1.2 (ii) (h) Defaulter in payment of any loan to a Bank / NBFI √

1.2 (ii) (i) Conviction for Criminal Offence involving moral turpitude √

1.2 (iii) Appointment and approval of Indipendent Director(s) by BOD and AGM √

1.2 (iv) Vacancy of post of Independent Director(s) for not more than 90 Days NA

1.2 (v) The Board shall lay down a Code of Conduct of  all Board Members and Annual 
compliance of the code to be recorded

√

1.2 (vi) Tenure of office of an Independent Director(s) √

1.3 Qualification of Independent Director (ID)

1.3 (i) Knowledge and Integrity of Independent Director(s) √

1.3 (ii) Academic background and experiences of Independent Director(s) √

1.3 (iii) Relaxation of qualification of Independent Director(s) NA

1.4 Chairman of the Board & Chief Executive Officer √

1.5 The Directors’ Report to Shareholders

1.5 (i) Industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry √

1.5 (ii) Segment-wise or product-wise performance √

1.5 (iii) Risks and concerns √

1.5 (iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin √

1.5 (v) Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary gain or loss √

1.5 (vi) Basis for Related Party transactions and disclosure √

1.5 (vii) Utilization of proceeds from public issues, rights issues and/or through any others instruments NA

1.5 (viii) Explanation of deteriotion of financial results after IPO, RPO, Rights Offer, Direct Listing, etc. NA

1.5 (ix) Explanation of significant variance between Quarterly Financial performance and 
Annual Financial Statements

NA
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Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status (Put √ in the  
appropriate column) Remarks 

(if any)
Complied Not Complied

1.5 (x) Remuneration to Directors including Independent Directors √

1.5 (xi) Fairness of Financial Statements √

1.5 (xii) Proper books of account of the issuer company have been maintained √

1.5 (xiii) Adoptation of appropriate accounting policies and estimates √

1.5 (xiv) Compliance with IAS/BAS/IFRS/BFRS √

1.5 (xv) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented and monitored

√

1.5 (xvi) Ability to continue as a Going Concern √

1.5 (xvii) Significant deviations in operating results compared to last year NA

1.5 (xviii) Presentation of summarized key operating and financial data of preceding 5 (five) years √

1.5 (xix) Reasons for not declaring dividend NA

1.5 (xx) Number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each director √

1.5 (xxi) (a) Shareholding by Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related parties √

1.5 (xxi) (b) Shareholding by Directors, CEO, CS, CFO, HIA √

1.5 (xxi) (c) Shareholding by Executives (Top 5 salaried) √

1.5 (xxi) (d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest √

1.5 (xxii) (a) A brief resume of the Directors √

1.5 (xxii) (b) Nature of his/her expertise in specific functional areas √

1.5 (xxii) (c) Directorship in other companies √

2 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO), HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPANY SECRETARY (CS)

2.1 Appointment of CFO, HIA & CS √

2.2 Requirement to attend the Board Meetings by CFO & CS √

3 AUDIT COMMITTEE

3 (i) Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board of Directors √

3 (ii) Function of Audit Committee √

3 (iii) Reporting to the Board of Directors & duties of the Committee in writing √

3.1 Constitution of the Audit Committee

3.1 (i) Composition of the Audit Committee √

3.1 (ii) Appointment of Members and inclusion of Independent Director as member √

3.1 (iii) Qualification of Members √

3.1 (iv) Filling of Vacancy NA

3.1 (v) Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee √

3.1 (vi) Quorum of meeting of the Audit Committee √

3.2 Chairman of the Audit Committee

3.2 (i) Selection of Chairman of the Audit Committee √

3.2 (ii) Requirement of presence in the AGM √

3.3 Role of Audit Committee

3.3 (i) Oversee the financial reporting process √

3.3 (ii) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles √

3.3 (iii) Monitor Internal Control Risk management process √

3.3 (iv) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors √

3.3 (v) Review the annual Financial Statements √

3.3 (vi) Review the quarterly and half yearly Financial Statements √
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Condition 
No.

Title

Compliance Status (Put √ in the  
appropriate column) Remarks 

(if any)
Complied Not Complied

3.3 (vii) Review the adequacy of internal audit function √

3.3 (viii) Review of the significant related party transactions √

3.3 (ix) Review of the Management Letters / Letter of Internal Control weakness issued 
by statutory auditors

NA

3.3 (x) Application of fund raised through IPO/RPO/Right Issue NA

3.4 Reporting of the Audit Committee

3.4.1 (i) Reporting to the Board of Directors √

3.4.1 (ii) (a) Report on conflicts of interests NA

3.4.1 (ii) (b) Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect in the internal 
control system

NA

3.4.1 (ii) (c) Suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and 
regulations

NA

3.4.1 (ii) (d) Any other matter which shall be immediately disclosed to the BOD NA

3.4.2 Reporting to the Authorities NA

3.5 Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors √

4 EXTERNAL / STATUTORY AUDITORS

4 (i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions √

4 (ii) Financial information systems design and implementation √

4 (iii) Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or Financial 
Statements

√

4 (iv) Broker-dealer services √

4 (v) Actuarial services √

4 (vi) Internal audit services √

4 (vii) Any other service that the Audit Committee determines √

4 (viii) Possess of share by Partner or Employee of Audit Firm √

4 (ix) Audit/certification services on compliance of Corporate Governance √

5 SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

5 (i) Composition of the Board of Directors √

5 (ii) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of Directors of the holding 
company shall be a director on the Board of Directors of the subsidiary company

√

5 (iii) Submission of minutes to the Board Meeting of holding company √

5 (iv) Review of affairs by the holding company √

5 (v) Review of Financial Statement in particular Investment activities by the Audit 
Committee of holding company

√

6 DUTIES OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 

6 (i) (a) Financial Statements do not contain any materially untrue or misleading 
statement

√

6 (i) (b) Financial Statements presents a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and 
are in  compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws

√

6 (ii) Certification that there are no fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s 
code of conduct

√

7 REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

7 (i) Certification on compliance of Corporate Governance √

7 (ii) Directors’ statement on the compliance of the above conditions in the Directors’ Report √
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kKrYJuTo¥uLr k´KfPmhj

ŝҰŨũőō ųśţŨřŴŞŨấŨřΝűдę

ĴŨŝŝŨŚŨŗūĴŨŚŨĵľŬŗ ĺΝť ậŖ ŝľŨŚĬ ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ ŔŜΠŴŏř Ŕǐ ŞŴō ĴŨŔőŨŴŏřŴľ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũẵŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊĮĺř ĝĠōŗ ΝŨũŜΠľ ŝŨŐŨřŌ ŝŖŨţ 
ĴōƏЮ ĴŨőŴдř ŝŨŴŎ ẄŨŀō ŅŨőŨũΎĬ ĴŨŗřŨ ğĝ ũŊŴŝңř ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ ŝŗŨп ΝŤŝŴřř ũőřŪũǐō ĴŨũŎΠľ фũōŴΝŏőĮĺř ŝŨŴŎ ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ ŔŜΠŴŏř 
фũōŴΝŏő ĴŨŔőŨř ĴΝŀũōę ĴőūŴŗŨŏŴőř ŅőƏ ķŔΖŨŔő ľřũńĬ ųľŨҜŨőŪ ĴŨĵő ĝĥĥĠ ĺΝť ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ũŝũľķũřũňŝ ĺХ ĺǑŴŃĵη ľũŗśő фγŨŔő 
őť ĺŝĵũŝΙũŝĺŗĴŨřĴŨřũŝũŊΙĞĜĜĢΙĝġĤΙĝĠğΙĺŊũŗőΙĠĠę ōŨũřĿĦ ĴŨŀỂ Ĝģę ĞĜĝĞ ĴőūŝřŌ ľŴř ĴŨŗřŨ ĺĵ фũōŴΝŏő ŶōřŪ ľŴřũńĬ

ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚř ŔŘΠŨŴŚŨŃőŨ

ũśŴẦř ŏűũẵŖũ΅ ĺΝť ŝҮŨΝƏ ŖũΝŜƏō ķкţő

ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ĺľũň ķкţőśŪŚ ųŏśę ŘŨř ũΝŀō ĴŨň ΝŤŝŴřř ΝŨŤŝũřľ ŀş ũŅũŊũŔĲř фΝűũИ ĢΗĬ ĺ ΝűũИř ŞŨř ΝŅŨţ ŎŨľŴŚ ĞĜĞĠ ŝŨŴŚř ŗŴŐƏ ųŏś 
ŗŐƏŗ ĴŨŴţř ųŏŴś ŔũřŌō ŞŴΝĬ 

ĺľũň ķкţőśŪŚ ųŏŴśř ĴŎΠΠŶőũōľ фΝűũИ ŗŨŴő ŀűŞŨţő ļ ĴΝľŨŉŨŴŗŨ ũőŗΠŨŌ фľŴẦ ΝƏŨŔľ ũΝũőŴţŨŀĬ ĴŨř ũőŗΠŨŌ ŗŨŴőĵ Śǐ Śǐ ňŴőř ĵỄŨō 
ŝŨŗˇŪř ΝƏΝŞŨřĬ 

фōƏŨśŪō ĺ ŃŨũŞŏŨ ŔūřŴŌ ΖŨőŪţ ũΝũőŴţŨŀľŨřŪřŨ  ũŔũńŴţ ųőĵĬ ĺĿŨŴő фŨţ ŔŧŨŃũň ĵỄŨō ŝŗŀΡŪ ķŤŔŨŏőľŨřŪ фũōẶŨő ΝńŴř Ĝěġ ũŗũŚţő ňő ΝŨ ōŨř 
ũľńŬ ųΝśŪ ĵỄŨō ŝŨŗŀΡŪ ķŤŔŨŏő ľřŴńĬ ĺř ŔŨśŨŔŨũś ĴŨŴřŨ ğĜ ũň ĴŴňŨ ųřŨũŚť ũśẦ ĴŨŴń ŘŨř ΝŨŤŝũřľ ķŤŔŨŏő ǐŗōŨ ĝĊĞ Śǐ ňőĬ ŗŨőŝҜк 
ļ ķкō ĵỄŨō ŝŨŗˇŪř ΝƏΝŞŨř ŀűŞũőŗΠŨŌľŨřŪŴŏř ŔńŴдř ōŨũŚľŨţ ŎŨľŨř ľŨřŴŌę ŔūřŨōő ẽƏŨŔ ļ ŅŨŞŨŅ ŖŨťŀŨ ũśŴẦř ķŔř ũőŖΠřśŪŚ ųřŨũŚť 
ũŗŴŚř ŝťĿƏŨ ũŏő ũŏő ỎŨŝ ŔŨŴΎĬ 

ĴŎΠőŪũōř ĺ ŐŨřŨ ĴΝƏŨŞō ŎŨľŴŚ ĵỄŨō ŝŨŗˇŪř ŖŨŴŚŨ ŃŨũŞŏŨ ŵōřŪ ŞŴΝę ŘŨř ŕŴŚ ΖŨőŪţ ķŴŏƏŨΪŨřŨ ķŤŔŨŏő ǐŗōŨ ΝűũИ ľřŴΝĬ ŵΝŴŏũśľ фŘūũΪ 
ļ ŗΞŚŐő ũőŴţ őōūő ķŴŏƏŨΪŨř ĴŨŀŗőļ ŞŴō ŔŨŴřĬ фΝűũИ ļ ũΝũőŴţŨŀ ΖŨőŪţ ķŴŏƏŨΪŨŴŏř ŗŨŴņ ŔūőřŨţ фũōŴŘŨũŀōŨ ŝűũẵ ľřŴΝĬ ŝŨŗũţľ ĴŎΠŶőũōľ 
ŗдŨř ľŨřŴő ķŤŔŨŏőľŨřŪŴŏř ŗŴŐƏ ŗΞŴŚƏř ōŪё ōŨřōŗƏ ŞŴō ŔŨŴřĬ

ŏŪŁΠ ųŗţŨŴŏ ĵỄŨō ũśŴẦř ĴŔũřŴŗţ ŝҮŨΝőŨ řŴţŴńĬ ŴŘ ŝľŚ ųľŨҜŨőŪ őōŬő фŘūũΪ ļ фũέţŨţ ũΝũőŴţŨŀ ľŴřŴń ĺΝť őōŬő ĵỄŨō ŝŨŗˇŪ ũőŴţ 
ĴŨŝŴō ŝǐŗ ŞŴΝ ōŨřŨ ΝŨŅŨŴřř ųőōŲЁ ũŏŴΝĬ 

ķŤŔŨŏő ļ ĴŨũŎΠľ ŕŚŨŕŚ ŔŘΠŨŴŚŨŃőŨ  

ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŝŨŗũˇľ ľŗΠľŨХŴľ ŖŨŚŖŨŴΝ ĴőūŐŨΝő ľřŨř ŅőƏ ũľńŬ ōŎƏ ũőŴҚ ųŏţŨ ŞŚĦ

ķŤŔŨŏő ŔŘΠŨŴŚŨŃőŨ  

ũΝΝřŌ ĞĜĝġ ĞĜĝĠ ĞĜĝğ ĞĜĝĞ
ķŤŔŨŏő  ǐŗōŨ Ēųŗě ňőē ĢĜĜęĜĜĜ ĢĜĜęĜĜĜ ĢĜĜęĜĜĜ ĢĜĜęĜĜĜ
ķŤŔŨŏő Ēųŗě ňőē ĢĜĞęĤğĞ ĢĞğęĥĝĤ ĢğĜęğĜġ ġĤĜęĝĠģ
ǐŗōŨř ΝƏΝŞŨř ĒΗē ĥĥěġĜ ĝĜĠ ĝĜġ ĥģ
ũΝέţ Ēųŗě ňőē ĢĜĠęġĝğ ĢģĥęĤĜğ ĢĜĝęĥğġ ġģĥęğģģ

ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ ŴľŨҜŨőŪř ķŤŔŨŏő ǐŗōŨ Ģ Śǐ ųŗě ňő ųŎŴľ ģ Śǐ ųŗě ňŴő ΝűũИ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ ĺŅőƏ ĝĠĵ őŴŖңř ĞĜĝġ ŞŴō Ģĵ ũŊŴŝңř ĞĜĝġ ŔŘΠЮ 
ųŗŨň Ğğ ũŏő ķŤŔŨŏő ľŨŘΠέŗ ΝЦ ũńŚ ĺΝť ģĵ ũŊŴŝңř ŞŴō ŔūőřŨţ ķŤŔŨŏő ľŨŘΠέŗ ậҺ ŞţĬ 
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ĴŨũŎΠľ ŔŘΠŨŴŚŨŃőŨ 								        ũŗũŚţő ňŨľŨţ
ũΝΝřŌ ĞĜĝġ ĞĜĝĠ ĞĜĝğ ĞĜĝĞ
ũΝέţ ğĞęğĝĢěĝĜ ğĤęġğġěĥĠ ğĢęĞĞĥěĜġ ğĤęĞġğěĠĢ    
ųŗŨň ŚŨŖ ĠęğĢĤěĢġ ĞęĤĜģěğĞ ğęĞġĜěĝġ ĝęĤĤĤěĠĠ    
ŝūŏę ľř ĺΝť ŊũєķũŔũŔ ļ Ŋũєķĺŕ ĺř ŔΞŴΝΠ ŚŨŖ ğęĞġģěĥğ ĝęĤĥĞěĤğ ĞęğĝĠěğĥ ĝęĝĢĜěğĥ    
ΝŨŏĦ ŝūŏ ĺΝť ŊũєķũŔũŔ ļ Ŋũєķĺŕ ĒģğĥěĞĥē ĒğģĤěĥġē ĒĠĥĞěĤĞē ĝğĢěĠĞ    
ΝŨŏĦ ĴŨţľř  ĺΝť ĴŨţľŴřř ŝũδũō ĒġĝĞěĜģē ĒĠĞĠěĠģē ĒĢĞġěĠĢē ĒĠğĝěĠĤē    
őŪň ŚŨŖ ĞęĜĤĝěĤĤ ĝęĜĤĢěĞĝ ĝ,ĢĥğěĠģ ĤĢġěğğ    
ĵũŔĺŝ ĒňŨľŨē ĢěĜĥ  ğěĝĤ Ġěġĥ Ğěġğ 

ũΝơẃŴş ŗдŨ ĴŎΠŶőũōľ ŔũřũΖũōř ŗŴŐƏļ ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ųľŨҜŨőŪ ŖŨŚ ŕŚŨŕŚ ľŴřŴńĬ ĞĜĝĠ ŝŨŴŚ ųľŨҜŨőŪř Ĵˇŀũō ŝŴЮŨŜŅőľ ũńŚę ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ 
ōŨ ĴŨŴřŨ ΝűũИ ųŔŴţŴńĬ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ľř ŔΞΝΠΝōŪΠ ŗūőŨŕŨ Ğęġĥğěĥġ ũŗũŚţő ňŨľŨţ ŏŧŨũşŴţŴńĬ

ĴőƏŨőƏ ĴŨũŎΠľ ōŎƏŨũŏ 									         ũŗũŚţő ňŨľŨţ
ũΝΝřŌ ĞĜĝġ ĞĜĝĠ ĞĜĝğ ĞĜĝĞ
ŔũřŴśŨũŐō ŗΞŚŐő ğęĠĝģěģġ ğęĠĝģěģġ ğęĠĝģěģġ  ğęĞġġěĜĜ    
ŴśţŨŴŞŨấŨřŴŏř ŝҜŏ  ĥęĜĤĜěĢĞ ģęĠĥġěĜĥ ĢęĥĝġěĞġ ġęġĠĜěĢġ    
ŃŚũō ŏŨţ ĝĠęĞĝğěģĥ ĝĤęĠĠġěğĜ ĝġęĤġĤěĝģ ĝĢęĝģĤěĢĜ    
ŏŪŁΠŴŗţŨũŏ ŏŨţŝŗΞŞ ĝęĠğĢěĜĞ ĝęĞĜĜěĞĢ ĝęĝğĝěĢĠ ģğġěĠġ 
ΖŨţŪ ŝҜŏ ĺΝť ũŝŊũΝΥķĴŨĵũŔŴō ŝťŴŘŨŅő ģġĤěĝĢ ĞĞģěğĥ ĞĥĢěĞğ ğĠģěģġ  
ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ őŀŏ фΝŨŞ ġęģĢĢěğğ ĒĞęĥĥġěĞĤē Ġęġĥġěğĥ ĒģĞģěĢĥē

ŝŨΝũŝũŊţŨřŪ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ

ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũẵŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ĴŨĵřő ĺХ ũẵŚ ųľŨŦ ũŚŦ (BISCO)- ĺř ĥġΗ ųśţŨŴřř ŗŨũŚľ ŘŨ ĞĜĝĜ ŝŨŚ ųŎŴľ ũΝŴŚň ķŤŔŨŏő ľŴř ĴŨŝŴńĬ 

ųľŨҜŨőŪř ĴŨũŎΠľ ŔŘΠŨŴŚŨŃőŨ

ũΝΝřŌ 
ĞĜĝġ ĞĜĝĠ ĞĜĝğ ĞĜĝĞ
ųŗě ňő ųŗě ňő ųŗě ňő  ųŗě ňő

ķŤŔŨŏő ŔũřŗŨŌ ĝģĢęğĝĞ ĝĤĜęĢģĤ ĝĢĤęğĞĢ  ĝğĤęģĞġ    
ũΝέţ ŔũřŗŨŌ ĝģģęĝĥĥ ĝĤĞęĜĤğ ĝĢģęĜĢĢ ĝğģęĥĠģ      

ũŗũŚţő ňŨľŨţ
ũΝέţ ģęĥĝĢěĝĞ ĥęğģĠěĝĝ ĤęĤĢĝěģģ ĤęĜĜĠěĥġ    
ųŗŨň ŚŨŖ ĠğĥěĢģ ĢĤĢěĝģ ġĝğěğĥ ġĥĤěĠĤ    
ŝūŏę ľř ĺΝť ŊũєķũŔũŔ ļ Ŋũєķĺŕ ĺř ŔΞŴΝΠ ŚŨŖ ĠĝĤěğĥ ĢĢĜěĢĥ  ĠĤĥěĜģ  ġĢĞěğĥ
ΝŨŏĦ ŝūŏ ĺΝť ŊũєķũŔũŔ ļ Ŋũєķĺŕ ĝĢĥěġġ ĠğĞěĤğ ğĝģěĤĠ ğġĠěğĤ    
ΝŨŏĦ ĴŨţľř  ĺΝť ĴŨţľŴřř ŝũδũō ĞĠĜěĜġ ĢĤěġĥ ğĜěġğ ĢĜěģġ    
őŪň ŚŨŖ Ĥěģĥ ĝĢĢěĤĠ ĝĠĜěģĜ ĝĠģěĞĢ

     
ŝŞŴŘŨŀŪ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ľŨŘΠέŗ 

ğĝųś ũŊŴŝңřę ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŚ ŔŘΠЮ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũẵŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊę ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũẵŚ ũŗŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ-ĺř ĞġěğġΗ ųśţŨř ŐŨřŌ ľřŴńĬ ųľŨҜŨőŪŴō 
ųŗŨň ũΝũőŴţŨŀ ŞŴΎ ĝĜĜ ųľŨũň ňŨľŨĬ ĺĵ фľẦ ĞĜĝĢ ŝŨŴŚř фŎŗ фŨũЮŴľ ΝŨũŌũŅƏľ ķŤŔŨŏő ậҺ ľřŴΝĬ ĺňŨ ŞŴΝ ũΝŴơř ŝΝΠΝűŞŤ ĵХŨľśő 
ŕŨŴőΠŝ ũŖũЇľ ũΝŴŚň фľẦĬ ĺňŨ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ-ĺř ĴŨŗŏŨőŪľŲō ũΝŴŚŴňř ķŔř ũőŖΠřśŪŚōŨ ľŗŨŴΝ ĺΝť ŶΝŴŏśŪľ ŗūБŨ ΝŧŨŃŨŴΝĬ ĺĵ фľẦ ΝŨũŌũŅƏľ 
ķŤŔŨŏő ậҺ ľřŴŚ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũẵŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ ĴũŐľōř фũōŴŘŨũŀōŨŗΞŚľ ŏŨŴŗ ĺŗĺŝ řŊ ŝřΝřŨŞ ľřŴō ŔŨřŴΝĬ 
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ŔŌƏ ũŖũЇľ ĴŅΠő
 
ĞĜĜĤ ŝŨŴŚ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴśř ũőŗΠŨŌ ŝŨŗˇŪř ΝŨŅŨŴř ŝΝΠфŎŗ ķΌǐŗōŨ ŝҜк ġĜĜ ųˇŴŊř “BSRM Xtreme500W” ũőŴţ ĴŨŴŝĬ ĺňŨ ĿūΝ Вō ΝŨŅŨř ŚŨŖ 
ľŴř ĺΝť ĺ ųĄŌŪř ĵỄŨō ŔŴŌƏř ΝŨŅŨŴř ĺľľ ųőōŲЁ ĴŅΠő ľŴřĬ ųŏŴśř ĴŨΝŨŝő ļ ĴΝľŨŉŨŴŗŨŀō ķкţő фľẦ ǻŴŚŨ ġĜĜ ųˇŴŊř ĵỄŨō ŝŨŗˇŪř 
ķŔř ĴŨΖŨ řŨŴĿĬ ųŏśẃŴş ŝľŚ ĴŨΝŨŝő ũőŗΠŨōŨřŨ “BSRM Xtreme500W” ĺř ķŔř ũőŖΠř ľŴř ĺΝť ōŨřŨ ĺňŨ ŝŨřŨ ųŏŴś ũΝếŲō ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ĢĜĜ 
ũŊŚŨŴřř ũőľň ŞŴō έţ ľŴřĬ ũřŴţŚ ĺŴẵň ųŊŴŖŨŚŨŔŨŴřř ŗō ľŴŔŨΠųřň ųέōŨřŨ ŝřŨŝũř BSRM-ĺř ŝŨŴŎĵ ΝƏΝŝŨ ľŴřĬ ũľńŬ ΝűŞŤ фľẦ ųŘŗő ŋŨľŨ 
ļ ŃμˇŨŴŗř ũΝũŖк ķşŨŚŴŝōŬŴō “BSRM Xtreme500W” ΝƏΝỊō ŞţĬ  

“BSRM Xtreme500W” ř ŔŨśŨŔŨũś ĴŨŗřŨ ŝřľŨřŪ ũΝũŖк ũΝẁƏŤ фľŴẦř ŃŨũŞŏŨ ũŗňŨŴō ĠĞĜũŊ ŗŨŴőř ĵỄŨō ŝŨŗˇŪ ŵōřŪ ľŴř ŎŨũľĬ ŝҝũō 
ĴŨŗřŨ ĺĵ ĠĞĜũŊ ųˇŊũň ųľ “Ultima” őŨŴŗ őŨŗľřő ľřŨř ũŝЗŨЮ ũőŴţũńĬ 

фŃŨřőŨ 

ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ фũōũőţō ĿūŃřŨ ųέōŨ ļ ẄŨŐŪő ĴŨΝŨŝő ũőŗΠŨōŨŴŏř ũΝũŖк ŔŌƏ ŝҜŴľΠ ŐŨřőŨ ũŏŴō ļ ŝŴŃōőōŨ ΝűũИř ŚŴǐƏ ũΝũŖк фŃŨřőŨ ŗΞŚľ 
ľŨŘΠέŗ ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ ľŴř ĴŨŝŴńĬ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ İŏŴś ŏśİ ũśŴřŨőŨŴŗ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ĺľũň фŃŨřőŨ ľŨŘΠέŗ ũńŚĬ ųŘňŨŴō ġĜĜ ųˇŴŊř ŏśũň ųŗŷũŚľ 
ǻőŨΝŚŪŴľ ōŬŴŚ ŐřŨ ŞŴţũńŚĬ “BSRM Xtreme500W” ĺľŗŨЄ řŊ ŘŨ ĵỄŨŴōř ĝĜũň ŔřŪǐŨř ŗŴŐƏ ĝĜũň-ųōĵ ķЇŪŌΠ ŞţĬ ŗŨő ŝҜк ĵỄŨō ŝҜŴľΠ 
ˇŨŞľŴŏř ŝŴŃōőōŨ ΝűũИř ŅőƏ ĺňŨ ũńŚ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŝΝŴŃŴţ ŝŕŚ фŃŨřŨőŨ ŗΞŚľ ľŨŘΠέŗĬ 

ųľŨҜŨőŪ ĺľĵ ķŤŔŨŏő ΖŴŚ ĺľŨũŐľ ŝŨĵŴŅř “BSRM Xtreme500W” ŔŌƏ ķŤŔк ľŴř ŎŨŴľĬ ũΝếŨũřō ōŎƏ ũőҚҺŔĊ 

ŔŌƏ ŝŗΞŞ
ķŤŔŨŏő  Ēųŗ. ňőē ũΝέţ  Ēųŗ. ňőē

ĞĜĝġ ĞĜĝĠ ĞĜĝġ ĞĜĝĠ
BSRM Xtreme500W ġģģęĠĝģ  ĢĜġęġĝĢ  ġģĝęĢĞĥ  ĢġģęġġĜ
ĴőƏŨőƏ ĞġęĠĝġ ĝĤęĠĜĞ ğĞęĤĤĠ ĞĞęĞġğ
ųŗŨň ĢĜĞęĤğĞ ĢĞğęĥĝĤ ĢĜĠęġĝğ ĢģĥęĤĜğ

ņŬŧũľ

ņŬŧũľ ŔũřŗŨŔ ĺΝť ũőţЯŌ ŞŴΎ ųŘ ųľŨő ΝƏΝŝŨř ĴũΝŴΎŏƏ ĴťśĬ ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ ŔŜΠŏ ũőţũŗōŖŨŴΝ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŗūőŨŕŨ ĺΝť ŔũřŴΝś ΝŨЦΝ ķкţőĮĺř фũō 
ŝҮŨΝƏ ņŬŧũľ ĺΝť ỉŗũľ ŔŘΠŴΝǐŌę ŔũřŗŨŔ ĺΝť ũŃũịō ľřŴńőĬ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ņŧūũľ ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ ŝŨŐŨřŌō ŏǐ ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ ľŨŉŨŴŗŨę ōŎƏ ŔИũōę ũőţũŗō 
ŗŨŴľΠň ũΝŴśΥŜőę ĴŎΠŶőũōľ ŏűśƏŔň ŔŘΠŴΝǐŌ ĺΝť ŃƏŨŴŚη ųŗŨľŨŴΝŚŨţ śũΪśŨŚŪ őŪũō ŝŗΞŞ ЗŨřŨ ŝŗũŎΠōĬ

ǻҺЁŔΞŌΠ ņŧūũľ ŝŗūŞ ĺΝť ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ųľŨҜŨőŪ ľōΠűľ ŀűŞŪō ņŧūũľ ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ ŔИũō ŝťŘūũΪĊĞ ĺΝť ĴũŎΠľ ũΝΝřŌŪř ųőŨňĊĠğ ĺ ĴЮŖΠūΪ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ 

ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ ĴŨŴŚŨŃőŨ 

ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ ŔŜΠŏ ũΝũŖк ŝŗţ ũΝέŪō ŔŴŌƏř ĿřŴŃř ΝűũИΙ ỎŨŝę ųŗŨň ĺΝť őŪň ŚŨŖ ŗŨũŅΠő ũőŴţ ĴŨŴŚŨŃőŨ ľŴř ĺΝť ũΝŴśΥŜŴŌř ķŔř ŃŨũŞŏŨŗō 
ōŨŤǐũőľ ŔŏŴǐŔ ˇŞŌ ľŴř ŎŨŴľĬ ĺ ΝƏŨŔŨŴř ŝťŘūũΪĊĝ ĺ ũΝếŨũřō ĴŨŴŚŨŃőŨ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ

ųέũŊň ųřũňť

ųέũŊň ųřũňť ĵőŕřŴŗśő ĺХ ŝŨũŖΠŴŝŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ (CRISL) ũőҚҺŔ ųřũňť ũőŐΠŨřő ľŴřŴńĦĊ
 

ŏŪŁΠľŨŚŪŌ ẄẦľŨŚŪŌ
AA ST-2

AA ųřũňť фŨп фũōẶŨőǻŴŚŨŴľ ķΌŗŨőŝҜк ũΝŃŨř ľřŨ Şţę AA ΝŚŴō ųΝŨņŨţ ķΌŗŨőę ŝŴΝŨΠΌ ũőřŨŔЇŨţ ķΌŗŨŴőř ĹŌ Ĭ ĺňŨ ΝūņŨţ ųŘę 
ųľŨҜŨőŪŴľ ĹŌ ųŏļţŨř ΝƏŨŔŨŴř ųľŨő Νş ŐřŴőř ņŬŧũľ őŨĵĬ ņŬŧũľ ĺľũň ŝťŴΝŏőśŪŚő ũΝŜţ ŘŨ ĴŎΠŶőũōľ ĴΝΖŨř ŔũřŴфũǐŴō ŗŨŴņ ŗŨŴņ 
ŔũřΝōŪΠō ŞţĬ  

ST-2 ũŏŴţ ΝūņŨţ ųŘę ŝŗţŗō ĹŌ ŔũřŴśŨŴŐř ŝŴΝŨΠΌ ũőřŨŔЇŨę ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŔŘΠŨп ōŨřŚƏ фΝŨŞ ļ ľŗ ĹŌ ņŬŧũľĬ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ųľŨҜŨőŪŴľ ųέũŊň ųřũňť 
ųľŨҜŨőŪ įỂƏŨΝŚ ĴŨķňŚūľİ ũŞŴŝŴΝ ŗΞŚƏŨţő ľŴřŴńĬ 
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ŔũřŃŨŚľ ŗХŚŪ

ĝě ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ ŔũřŜŴŏř ŀŉő ļ ĴŨľŨř
ğĝųś ũŊŴŝңř ĞĜĝġ ōŨũřŴĿ ųΝŨŴŊΠ ġ Ņő ŝŏŝƏ ũńŴŚŨ ŘŨŴō ĺľŅő ųŃţŨřŗƏŨőę ĺľŅő ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ ŔũřŃŨŚľę ẁĵŅő ŔũřŃŨŚľ ĺΝť ĺľŅő 
ĵũХŴŔŴХЫ ŔũřŃŨŚľ ũńŴŚőĬ  

Ğě ŔũřŜŏ ŝŖŨ ļ  ķŔũΖũō
ĺĵ ΝŤŝř ųΝŨŊΠ ĝĠũň ũŗũňť ľřŴńĬ ŘŨ ũőҚһŔĦ

ŔũřŃŨŚŴľř őŨŗ ŔŏΝŪ ĴőūũẶō ųŗŨň ŝŖŨř ŝťĿƏŨ ŝŖŨţ ķŔũΖũō ŝťĿƏŨ
ŅőŨΝ ĴŨŚŪŴŞŨŝŨĵő ĴŨľΝřĴŨŚŪ ĺŕũŝĺ ųŃţŨřŗƏŨő ĝĠ ĝĠ
ŅőŨΝ ĴŨŗŪř ĴŨŚŪŴŞŨŝŨĵő ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ ŔũřŃŨŚľ   ĝĠ ĝĞ
ŅőŨΝ ųŅŨŞŨĵř ōŨŴŞřĴŨŚŪ ŔũřŃŨŚľ ĝĠ ĝğ
ũŗŴŝŝ ųōŞũŝő ųŅŨŞŨĵř ōŨŴŞřĴŨŚŪ ŔũřŃŨŚľ ĝĠ ĝğ
ũŗě ŗŴőŨřηő ųŏ ĺŕũŝĺ ẄŨŐŪő ŔũřŃŨŚľ ĝĠ ĝĞ

ŔũřŃŨŚľΝűд ĴŝūΖ ĴŎΝŨ ųŏŴśř ΝŨĵŴř ĴΝΖŨŴőř ľŨřŴő ŝŖŨţ ķŔũΖō ŞŴō ŔŨŴřőũőĬ 

ğě ŔũřŃŨŚľΝűŴдř ũőŴţŨŀ ļ ŔūőĦ ũőŴţŨŀ 
ŅőŨΝ ĴŨŚŪŴŞŨŝŨĵő ĴŨľΝřĴŨŚŪ ĺŕũŝĺ ĺΝť ũŗŴŝŝ ųōŞũŝő ųŅŨŞŨĵř ōŨŴŞřĴŨŚŪ ŔũřŴŗŚ ũőţŗŨΝŚŪř ĥģ ļ ĥĤ ŐŨřŨ ĴőūŘŨţŪ ΝŨũŜΠľ ŝŨŐŨřŌ 
ŝŖŨř ŝŗŨũп ŞŴō ĴΝŝř ũőŴΝő ĺΝť ŔūőĦ ũőŴţŨŴŀř ŅőƏ ųŘŨŀƏ ũΝŐŨţ ōŧŨřŨ ŔūőřŨţ ũőΝΠŨũŃō ŞŴō ĴŨˇŞ фľŨś ľŴřŴńőĬ 

Ġě ŔũřŃŨŚľŗХŚŪ ĴőƏŨőƏ ųŘ ŝΝ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŔũřŃŨŚľ ΝŨ ŝŏŝƏ Ŕŏ ˇŞŌ ľŴřŴńő ōŨ ŔũřŃŨŚľŗХŚŪ ĴťŴś фľŨś ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ

ġě ũŗě ŗŴőŨřηő ųŏ ĺŕũŝĺĮųľ ŔřΝōΠŪ ũōő ΝńŴřř ŅőƏ ẄŨŐŪő ŔũřŃŨŚľ ũŞŴŝŴΝ ŔūőĦ ũőŴţŨŀ ųŏļţŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ 

ĴŨŖƏЮřŪő ũőţЯŌ ŔИũō
ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŝҜŴŏř ũőřŨŔЇŨę ŅŨũŚţŨũō, ŖŬŚ ļ ĴőƏŨőƏ Ĵũőţŗ ŝőŨΪ ľřŴō ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ ŔŜΠŏ ĺľũň ľŨŘΠľř ĴŨŖƏЮřŪő ũőţЯŌ ΝƏΝΖŨ ũőũẮō 
ľŴřŴńőĬ ĴŨŖƏЮřŪő ũőţЯŌ ΝƏΝΖŨř ķкũōř ŅőƏ ųľŨҜŨőŪ Standard Operating System (SOP) ˇŞŌ ľŴřŴńĬ ĺľũň ľŨŘΠľř ĴŨŖƏЮřŪŌ ũőţЯŌ 
ũőũẮō ľřŨę ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŝҜŏŴľ ŝūřǐŨ ĺΝť ŘūũΪŝťŀō ŝŗŴţř ŗŴŐƏ ŝũŉľ ōŎƏ ļ ķŔŨЇ ŵōřŪ ľřŨř ŅőƏ ĴŨŗřŨ ĵŴōŨŗŴŐƏĵ ŝΝΠŨŐūũőľ ŝŕňļţƏŨř 
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) ˇŞŌ ľŴřũńĬ ĴŨŖƏЮřŪŌ ũőţЯŌ ļ ũőţŗ őŪũō ũőũẮō ľřŨř ŅőƏ ųľŨҜŨőŪ ĴŨŚŨŏŨ ĺľũň ĴŨŖƏЮřŪŌ ũőřŪǐŨ 
ũΝŖŨŀ ŃŨŚū ľŴřŴńĬ ĴőƏũŏŴľ ũőřŪǐŨ ľũŗũň фũōũőţō ĴŨŖƏЮřŪŌ ũőřŪǐŨ ũΝŖŨŴŀř ũΝũŖк фũōŴΝŏő ŔŘΠŴΝǐő ļ ŔŘΠŨŴŚŨŃőŨ ľŴř ŝťŴśŨŐő ŗΞŚľ 
ΝƏΝΖŨ ˇŞő ľŴřőĬ 

ĴẄŨŖŨũΝľ ŚŨŖ ΝŨ ǐũō
ĺĵ ΝŤŝř ΝƏΝŝŨŴţ ųľŨő ĴẄŨŖŨũΝľ ŚŨŖ ΝŨ ǐũō ųőĵĬ

ŝťŘūΪ ĴőƏŨőƏ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŝŨŴŎ ųŚőŴŏő
ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŝŨŴŎ ŝťŘūΪ ŔǐǻŴŚŨř ŴŚőŴŏő ΝŨũŌũŅƏľ ũŖũЇŴō ŞŴţŴńĬ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŝŨŴŎ ŝťŘūΪ Ŕǐ ǻŴŚŨř ųŚőŴŏő IFRS/BFRS ĴőūŝŨŴř ũőřŪũǐō 
ĴŨũŎΠľ фũōŴΝŏŴőř ųőŨň ğĢ ĺ фľŨś ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ 

IPO ũΝέţŚИ ĴŴŎΠř ΝƏΝŞŨř ĺΝť IPO ŔřΝũōΠ ĴŨũŎΠľ ŕŚŨŕŚ 
ĞĜĜĥ ŝŨŚ ųŎŴľ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ųľŨő ĴΝƏΝỊō IPO ŕŨХ ųőĵĬ ųľŨҜŨőŪ ĺľũň ũΖũōśŪŚ ĴŨũŎΠľ ŕŚŨŕŚ ŐŴř ųřŴĿŴńĬ 

фŨũЮľ ĺΝť ΝŨũŜΠľ фũōŴΝŏŴő ķŴӘĿƏŴŘŨŀƏ ΝƏΝŐŨő
фŨũЮľ ĺΝť ŝŨŗũˇľ ΝŨũŜΠľ ľŗΠǐŗōŨř ŗŴŐƏ ųľŨő ķŴӘĿŴŘŨŀƏ ŔŨŎΠľƏ ųőĵĬ Νńř ẃŴş ųľŨҜŨőŪ ŔũřŃŨŚőŨŀō ĺΝť ĴŨũŎΠľ ķŖţ ųǐŴЄ ũΝŃǐŌ 
ľŗΠǐŗōŨ ŐŴř řŨĿŴō ŝǐŗ ŞŴţŴńĬ

ẄŨŐŪő ŔũřŃŨŚľ ļ ŔũřŃŨŚľŴŏř ŝҰŨőŪ

ŔũřŃŨŚľ ŔŜΠŴŏř ũŝИŨЮ ųŗŨōŨŴΝľ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŔũřŃŨŚľΝűд ųľŨҜŨőŪ ŞŴō ũőţũŗō ŝҰŨőŪ ųŔŴţ ŎŨŴľő ŘŨ ĺĵ фũōŴΝŏŴőř ŝŨŴŎ ŝťŘūũΪ-ğ ĺΝť 
ũŞŝŨΝ ũΝΝřŌŪř ųőŨň ĞĥěĜĝ ĺ ķŴӘĿ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ
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ŚŖƏŨťś
ŔũřŃŨŚľŗХŚŪ ğĝųś ũŊŴŝңř ĞĜĝġ ŝŗŨп ΝńŴřř ŅőƏ ųśţŨř фũō ğěĜĜ ňŨľŨ ŚŖƏŨťś фŏŨŴőř ŝūŔŨũřś ľŴřŴńőĬ ΝŨũŜΠľ ŝŨŐŨřŌ ŝŖŨţ 
ųśţŨřŴŞŨấŨřŀŌ ľōŲΠľ ĴőūŴŗŨŏő ŝŨŴŔŴǐ ũőŐΠŨũřō ųřľŊΠ ōŨũřŴĿř ųśţŨř ŗŨũŚľŴŏř ŗŴŐƏ ĺĵ ŚŖƏŨťś ũΝōřŌ ľřŨ ŞŴΝĬ

ŅŨōŪţ ųľŨŜŨŀŨŴř ĴΝŏŨő
ĺľũň ŏŨũţЁśŪŚ ľŴŔΠŨŴřň фũōẶŨő ũŞŴŝŴΝ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ŝřľŨřŪ řŨŅẄ ΝűũИŴō ǻҺЁŔΞŌΠ ĴΝŏŨő ųřŴĿ ŘŨŴΎĬ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ ĴŨŗřŨ ķŴӘĿŴŘŨŀƏ 
ŔũřŗŨŌ ĴŨţľřę ŗΞŝľ ļ ậө ĴŨŏŨţ ĺΝť фŏŨő ľŴřũńĬ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ẵŪŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŴŊĲř ŝťŀűŞŪō ĺΝť ũőŅẄ ōŞũΝŚ ŞŴō ŅŨōŪţ řŨŅẄ 
ųľŨŜŨŀŨŴř ĞęĜĜĥ ũŗũŚţő ňŨľŨ ŅŗŨ ľŴřŴńĬ ŘŨ ũőŴŗΟ ųŏĿŨŴőŨ ŞŴŚŨĦĊ 

ŝŨŗŨũŅľ ŏŨţΝИōŨ
ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ōŨř ΝƏΝŝŨũţľ ũŝИŨЮ ǻŴŚŨ ŵőũōľęŝŨŗŨũŅľ ļ ŔũřŴΝśŀō ũΝŜţǻŴŚŨŴľ ũΝŴΝŃőŨ ľŴř ũőŴō фũōγŨΝИęŘŨ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ũŖũЇŴľ ŏűŢ 
ľŴřĬ ĞĜĝġ ŝŨŴŚ ĴŨŔőŨř ųľŨҜŨőŪ ŝŨŗŨũŅľ ķкũōę ŀŴΝŜŌŨ ļ ķкţő ĺΝť ŔũřŴΝś řǐŨţ ũΝŴśŜ ĴΝŏŨő řŨŴĿĬ ŝŨŗŨũŅľ ŏŨţΝИōŨř ũΝếŨũřō 
ĴЄ фũōŴΝŏŴőř Ģģ ŔűẶŨţ ķŴӘĿ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ   

ŔūřẻŨř ĺΝť ẄŪľŲũō
ĴŨŗřŨ ĴōŪΝ ĴŨőŴдř ŝŨŴŎ ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ŅŨőŨũΎ ųŘę ĺĵ ΝŤŝř ĴŨŗřŨ ųΝś ũľńŬ ŝҰŨőŅőľ ŔūřẻŨř ųŔŴţũńĬ ōŨŴŏřļ ľŴţľũň ũőŴҚ ķŴӘĿ ľřŨ ŞŚĦ  

•	 ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũẵŚŝ  ũŚũŗŴňŊ 2nd ICSB ľŴŔΠŨŴřň ŀŖŨŴőΠШ ĺũǑŴŚШ ŔŏŴľ ķŤŔŨŏőľŨřŪ ųľŨҜŨőŪ ųĄŌŪŴō ųŝřŨ ľŴŔΠŨŴřň ŀŖŨŴőΠШ-ĺ 	
	 “SilverAward” ŚŨŖ ľŴřŴń

•	 ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũẵŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ ĵőũỂũňķň ĴΝ ŃŨňΠŨŊΠ ĺľŨķŴЫЫŝ ĴΝ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ľōŲΠľ ųŁŨũŜō ŝŴΝΠŨЇŗ ķŔΖŨũŔō ΝŨũŜΠľ фũōŴΝŏő ĞĜĝĠ ŗƏŨőūŴŕľŃŨũřť 	
	 ųŝΨŴř ŝŨũňΠũŕŴľň ĴΝ ųŗũřň ĴŅΠő ľŴřŴń 

•	 ųΝỂ řŊ ёƏŨХ ĺļţŨŊΠ ĞĜĝġ	 • ŗŨŴľΠЫŨĵŚ ΝƏŨťľ Ŕŏľ ĞĜĝġ	 •  ųŝřŨ ũΝŏƏūŤ ΝƏΝŞŨřľŨřŪ Ŕŏľ ĞĜĝġ

ōŎƏ фŘūũΪ
ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũẵŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ ậҺ ųŎŴľ ̌ ŨŞľ Ŵľũзľ ųľŨҜŨőŪĬ ĴŨŔőŨř ųľŨҜŨőŪ ųέōŨř ŃŨũŞŏŨ ļ ŝЮūũẵ ũΝŴΝŃőŨţ ōŨř ũΝέţ ľŗΠŪŴŏř ŝŞŨţōŨţ 
ōŎƏ фŘūũΪ ũŖũЇľ ũľńŬ фľẦ ŞŨŴō ũőŴţŴńĬ ĴŨŗřŨ ųŖŨΪŨř ĴũŖŴŘŨŀ ļ ũŅγŨŝŨŴľ  Вō ļ ẄẦ ŝŗŴţř ŗŴŐƏ ŝŗŨŐŨŴőř ŅőƏ ĴőŚŨĵő ũŖũЇľ 
ΝƏΝΖŨ ŃŨŚū ľŴřũń Ĭ ΝƏΝŝŨũţľ ņŧūũľ ỎŨŝę ΝƏΝŝŨũţľ ľŗΠǐŗōŨ ΝűũИ ļ ΝƏΝŝŨţ ŝťũśΥẵ ŝľŚŴľ ōŎƏ ŝřΝřŨŴŞř ŅőƏ ĴŨŗřŨ ERP system ųľ έŗŨŀō 
ŞŨŚőŨŀŨŏ ľřũńĬ

ŗŨőΝ ŝҜŏ ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ
ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŗŨőΝ ŝҜŏ ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨ őŪũō ŞŴΎ ŀũōśŪŚ ļ ųŘŨŀƏ ŗŨőΝ ŝҜŏ ŏŚ ŵōřŪ ľřŨę ŖũΝŜƏŤ ķЇřŨũŐľŨř ũőŐΠŨřő ľřŨ ĺΝť ŗŨőΝ ŝҜŴŏř 
ņŴř ŔşŨř ŞŨř ỎŨŝ ľřŨĬ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŚǐƏ ĺŗő ĺľŅő ũőŴţŨŀľōΠŨ ŞļţŨę ųŘ ũľőŨ ųŗŐŨũΝŴŏř ŚŨŚő ļ фũōẶŨŴőř ŖũΝŜƏŤ ųőōŨ ŵōřŪ ľřŴΝĬ ĴЄ 
фũōŴΝŏŴőř ģĝ ŔűẶŨţ įŴňľŝĵ фΝűũИİ ĴťŴś ŗŨőΝ ŝҜŴŏř ũΝếŨũřō ũΝΝřŌ ųŏţŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ   

ĴŨŃřŌũΝũŐ
ŔũřŃŨŚőŨ ŔŜΠŏ ŔũřŃŨŚľŴŏř ŅőƏ ĺľňŨ ĴŨŃřŌ ũΝũŐ ˇŞŌ ľŴřŴńĬ ŝľŚ ŔũřŃŨŚľ ōŨ ųŗŴő ŃŚŨř ŅőƏ ẄŪľŲũō ẄһŔ ẄŨǐř ľŴřŴńĬ 
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ũőřŪǐľŀŌ
ΝōΠŗŨő ũőřŪǐľ řŞŗŨő řŞŗŨő Şľę ŃŨňΠŨŊΠ ĺľŨķŴЫЫŝ (KPMG-ĺř ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴśř ĺľũň ŝŏŝƏ фũōẶŨőēę ĝĜĞ ĴŨˇŨΝŨŏ ΝŨΙĺęŃμˇŨŗę ĝĠōŗ 
ĺũŅĺŗ ĺ ĴΝŝř ˇŞŌ ľřŴΝő ĺΝť ōŨřŨ ųŘŨŀƏ ũΝŐŨţ ĝŚŨ ŅŨőūţŨřŪ ĞĜĝĢ ŞŴō ğĜĵ ẃő ĞĜĝĢ ĺΝť ĝŚŨ ẃŚŨĵ ĞĜĝĢ ŞŴō ğĜĵ ẃő ĞĜĝģ ŔŘΠЮ 
ũőřŪǐŨ ľŨŘΠέŗ ŔũřŃŨŚőŨţ ĵΎūľ ĺΝť ķŴӘũĿō ŝŗŴţř ŅőƏ ŔūőŦ ũőŴţŨųŀ ŝҰō ŞŴţŴńőĬ 

ľŴŔΠŨŴřň ŀŖΠŨŴőШ ĺř ũřŴŔŨňΠ ľřŨ ĺΝť ĴőūŝřŌ ľřŨ 
ľŴŔΠŨŴřň ŀŖŨŴőΠШ ŝťέŨЮ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ũŝũľķũřũňŝ ĺХ ĺǑŴŃĵη ľũŗśő ĒũΝĺŝĵũŝē ųőŨũňũŕŴľśő őť- ũΝĺŝĵũŝΙũŝĺŗĴŨřĴŨřũŝũŊΙĞĜĜĢĊĝġĤΙĺŊũŗő 
ōŨũřĿĦ ģĵ ĴŨŀẵę ĞĜĝĞ ĺř ŔŨŚőŪţ śōΠŝŗΞŴŞř ųǐŴЄ ųľŨҜŨőŪř ĴΝΖŨő фũōŴΝŏŴőř ŝťŘūũΪĊĢ ĺ ĴЮŖΠūΪ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ

ŔřΝōΠΠŪ ŁňőŨ ŝŗΞŞ
ŕŨĵŴőũШţŨŚ ŔũŅśŴőř ōŨũřĿ ųŎŴľ ĺĵ фũōŴΝŏő ķŔΖŨŔŴőř ōŨũřĿ ŔŘΠЮ ĺŗő ųľŨő ŔřΝōΠŪ ŁňőŨ ųőĵ ŘŨ ĴŨũŎΠľ ũΝΝřőŪ ΝƏΝŞŨřľŨřŪŴŏř 
ũŝИŨЮŴľ ĺΝť ĺĵ фũōŴΝŏŴőř ŗΞŚƏŨţőŴľ фŖŨũΝō ľřŴō ŔŨŴřĬ

ŔũřŃŨŚľŴŏř ŏŨũţŴЁř ũΝΝűũō
ũΝĺŝĵũŝ ųőŨũňũŕŴľśő őť- ũΝĺŝĵũŝΙũŝĺŗĴŨřĴŨřũŝũŊΙĞĜĜĢĊĝġĤΙĝğĠ ĺŊũŗőΙĠĠę ōŨũřĿĦ ģĵ ĴŨŀẵę ĞĜĝĞ ĴőūŝŨŴř ŔũřŃŨŚľřŨ ĺĵ ũΝŜţũň 
ũőũẮō ľŴřő ųŘę

ľě ũΝĺŝĴŨřĺŗ ũẵŚŝ ũŚũŗŴňŊ-ĺř ΝƏŨΝΖŨŔőŨ ŔũřŜŏ ľōΠűľ ŵōřŪľŲō ĴŨũŎΠľ фũōŴΝŏő ųľŨҜŨőŪř ŝŨũΝΠľ ĴΝΖŨę ŔũřŃŨŚőŨř ŕŚŨŕŚ ŝŗΞŞę 
őŀŏ фΝŨŞ ĺΝť ŝҜŴŏř ŔũřΝōΠő ĵōƏŨũŏ ŘŎŨŘŎ ŖŨŴΝ ķŔΖŨŔő ľŴřĬ

Ŀě ŘŎŨŘŎ ũŞŝŨΝ Νĵ ŝťřǐŌ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ
ŀě ĴŎΠŶőũōľ фũōŴΝŏő ŵōřŪ ľřŴō ŘŎŨŘŎ ĺľŨķũЫť ŔũŚũŝ ũőřũΝũΎкŖŨŴΝ фŴţŨŀ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴń ĺΝť ĺľŨķũЫť фŨΧŚőǻųŚŨ ŘūũΪŝťŀō ĺΝť 

ŘŴŎŨŔŘūΪ ũΝŃŨř ũΝŴśΥŜŴőř ķŔř ũŖũЇ ľŴř ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ
Łě ĴŎΠŶőũōľ фũōŴΝŏő ŵōřŪŴō ĵЫŨřőƏŨśőŨŚ ĺľŨķũЫť ẵƏŨХŨŊΠŝ ĒĴŨĵĺĺŝēΙ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ĺľŨķũЫť ẵƏŨХŨŊΠŝ ĒũΝĺĺŝēΙĵЫŨřőƏŨśőŨŚ 

ũŕŴőũШţŨŚ ũřŴŔŨũňΠť ỂƏŨХŨŊΠŝ ĒĴŨĵĺŕĴŨřĺŝēΙ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ũŕŴőũШţŨŚ ũřŴŔŨũňΠť ỂƏŨХŨŊΠŝ ĒũΝĺŕĴŨřĺŝēę ųŘŖŨŴΝ ΝŨťŚŨŴŏŴś фŴŘŨŅƏ 
ųŝŖŨŴΝ ĴőūŝřŌ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴń ĺΝť ųŘ ųľŨő ŐřŴŌř ŔũřΝōΠő ŔŘΠŨпŖŨŴΝ фľŨś ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ

łě ĵЫŨřőŨŚ ľŴЬŨŚ ũŝŴỂŗ ľŨŘΠľřŖŨŴΝ фŴţŨŀ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴń ĺΝť ŗũőňř ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ 
Ńě ĺľũň ŃŚŗŨő фũōẶŨő ũŞŴŝŴΝ ŘŨЄŨ ĴΝƏŨŞō řŨĿŴō ųľŨҜŨőŪř ųŘŨŀƏōŨř ķŔř ųľŨő ŝŴдŞ őŨĵ ĺΝť ĺľũň ŃŚŗŨő фũōẶŨŴőř ũŖũЇŴō ΝŨũŜΠľ 

ũŞŝŨΝ ŵōřŪ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ
ńě ŴľŨҜŨőŪř ŔũřŃŨŚőŨŀō ŕŚŨŕŴŚ ũΝŀō ΝŤŝř ųŎŴľ ǻҺЁŔΞŌΠ ŔũřΝōΠő фũōŴΝŏŴő ĴŨŴŚŨľŔŨō ľřŨ ŞŴţŴń ĺΝť ōŨř ľŨřŌ ΝƏŨĿƏŨ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ 

Ņě ũΝŀō ńţ ΝŤŝŴř ŗΞŚ ŔũřŃŨŚőŨŀō ĺΝť ĴŨũŎΠľ ōŨũřĿ ŝŗΞŞ ŝťŘūũΪĊĠ ĺ ķŴӘĿ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ

ņě ųśţŨř ŐŨřŴŌř ŔИũō ŝťŘūũΪĊġ ĺ ķŴӘĿ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ

Ňě ũΝĺŝĵũŝ ĺř ŃŨũŞŏŨŗō ĺΝť ľŴŔΠŨŴřň ŀŖŴőΠųШř ũőţŗŨőūŝŨŴř ľҸŨĵŴţШ ỂŨňŨŝ őŨŴŗ ĺľũň фũōŴΝŏő ųřŀūŴŚňřŪ ľҜΥŨĵŴţШ ũřŴŔŨňΠ ĴťŴś 
ŝťŘŬΪ ľřŨ ŞŚ Ĭ

ňě ŔũřŃŨŚľŴŏř ųфŨŕŨĵŚ ĺΝť ĴőƏŨőƏ ŝťΖŨţ ōŨŴŏř ĴťũśŏŨũřЁ ĺΝť ΝƏΝŝŨũţľ ẄŨŎΠ ųΝŨŊΠ ĴΝ ũŊŴřΨřŝ ųŝŀŴŗŴЫ ķŴӘĿ ľřŨ ŞŴţŴńĬ 

ẄŪľŲũō 
ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŝҰŨũőō ųśţŨřŴŞŨấŨřę ˇŨŞľę ΝŨťŚŨŴŏś ũŝũľķũřũňŅ ĺХ ĺǑŴŃη ľũŗśőę ŋŨľŨ ẵľ ĺǑŴŃη ũŚŦę ŃμˇŨŗ ẵľ ĺǑŴŃη ũŚŦę 
ũŝũŊũΝĺŚę ŅŨōŪţ řŨŅẄ ųΝŨŊΠę RJSCę ũΝũŖк ŝřľŨřŪ ľōŲŔǐΠę ΝƏΝŝŨţŪ ŝťŀŉő ĺΝť ŝľŚ ΝƏŨťľ ļ ĴŨũŎΠľ фũōẶŨőŴľ ĴŨŗŨŴŏřŴľ ŝŗŎΠőę 
ŝŞŴŘŨŀŪōŨ ļ ΝƏΝŝŨũţľ ķкţŴő ũŏľ ũőŴŏΠśőŨř ŅőƏ ĴŨЮũřľ ŐőƏΝŨŏ ļ ľŲōγōŨ ŅŨőŨũΎĬ ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨЮũřľ ĴũŖдő ŅŨőŨũΎ ĴŨŗŨŴŏř ŝľŚ ľŗΠŪ 
ļ ΝƏΝΖŨŔőŨř ŝŏŝƏŴŏřę ŘŨŴŏř ųŗŐŨę Ąŗę ųŔśŨŏŨũřЁ ļ ũőřŚŝ фŴŃẵŨţ ĴŨŗŨŴŏřŴľ śũΪśŨŚŪ фũōŴŘŨũŀōŨŗΞŚľ ĴΝΖŨő ļ ķΌ фŘūũΪŀō ĴΝΖŨ 
ΝŅŨţ řŨĿŴō ŝŞŨţōŨ ľŴřŴńĬ ĴŨŗřŨ ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ŝŗŎΠő ļ ķŤŝŨŞ ųŔŴŚ ĴŨŴřŨ ŝŨŗŴőř ũŏŴľ ĺũŀŴţ ųŘŴō ŔŨřΝę ŘŨ ĴōŪŴō ĴŨŔőŨŴŏř ũőľň ŞŴō 
ųŔŴţ ĴŨŝũńĬ 

ĴŨӘŨŞ ŞŨũŕŅ  

ĴŨŚŪŴŞŨŝŨĵő ĴŨľΝřĴŨŚŪ ĺŕũŝĺ
ųŃţŨřŗƏŨő
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Home Insurance is a type of property insurance that covers various personal 
insurance protections, which can include losses occurring to one's home, its 
contents, loss of use, or loss of other personal possessions of the homeowner.

Home Insurance
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

BSRM group engages in CSR activities in a systematic way in alignment with corporate strategies committing resources to the extent 
it can reasonably afford.  BSRM Desk was created in 2013 to help and empower poor and the disadvantaged people and contribute to 
social development by establishing sustainable business plans/projects. During 2015 BSRM supported:

 EDUCATION
BSRM has joined hands with The British Council for enhancing reading skills through Book Reading Competition. Under this programme,  
by the end of 2016, about 17,500 young students will have improved capacity in  English reading,  writing, speaking and listening.

 BSRM CSR VISION

To integrate social responsibility into BSRM core 

business decisions, we want to have CSR at every steps 

of the heart of our business process. 

We envision CSR strategy that demonstrates BSRM intent 

for Caring, Supporting, and Returning to society where we 

anchored our business decades ago – this is how we define 

CSR and search and support interventions encompassing 

this scope. 

 BSRM CSR PRINCIPLES

BSRM commits resources to the extent that it can 

reasonably afford, not in one-off philanthropic project, 

rather in a set of strategically planned efforts consistent 

with BSRM’s own corporate strengths and complementary 

to programmes offered by the Government, to sustain 

and improve a healthy and prosperous environment, and 

improve the quality of life of the people living in poverty.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
 WATER & ELECTRICITY

With the opening of the BSRM-TMSS water pump in July 2015 on the hill tract of Adarshagram, Jaintapur, Sylhet, so many kids living on the 
hills ended the miserable journey of climbing steep, rough, slippery road of about 400 feet to get water for their family.  Now these kids are 
going to school, having a happy and safe childhood, poised to build a meaningful life. Instead of water pitchers, now they carry school bags.

Other water projects established during the year are The Chars Livelihoods Programme (CLP) supported by an NGO. The programmes will 
help people living on island chars in the north western disaster prone areas:  Fulchar, Gaibandha, Shariakandi, Kurigram etc.

BSRM and SABINCO set up a water purification project to supply fresh drinking water at Gazi Fish Culture Ltd (GFCL) premises, 
Kailashgonj union, Dacobe, Khulna.

The fourth water programmes are undertaken with the help of Uttaran NGO  in the coastal zone of Patuakhali, Barisal where increased 
salinity in the surface, ground and soil has become a crucial matter.

 HEALTH CARE
BSRM-ZCF Clubfoot cure programme launched in Chittagong division aiming at ‘walking clubfoot no more’.

 LIVELIHOOD PROGRAMMES FOR ULTRA POOR AND PHYSICALLY CHALLENGED PEOPLE

BSRM has signed an agreement with Autism Welfare Foundation (AWF) with the objective to reach and reduce the pain of families who 
cannot receive the services of AWF,  who will provide training, education and livelihood support to help establish many children in life.

BSRM and Centre for the Rehabilitation of the Paralysed (CRP) joined hands to support patients with special needs get trained and placed 
in different organisations against job placement order.

Another BSRM- NDP Livelihood Programme partnership has been signed to sustain and empower the displaced landless in the remote 
chars of Sirajgonj district over a period of 3 years.
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Power generation means converting some form of energy- for example, heat 
energy from burning coal into electrical energy. Electric Power is the life blood 

of modern civilization. 

Power Generation
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SUSTAINABLE GROWTH-Green Environment, 
Human Resource and Information Technology Development

To keep our human resources safe and sound and the environment clean, we have taken number of measures. We always give priority 

to maintain work place safe, secure and ensure the green environment for all of our employees as well as for our country.

 Green Environment:

In BSRM Steels Limited we are using world class Water Treatment Plant (WTP) for recycling the water for reusing and to keep the 

environment free from pollution. 

The Company has also commissioned Air Pollution Control (APC) system in BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. (BISCO) to keep the air free from 

Pollution. In the same way, we are going to implement a rain water harvesting project for our new billet casting plant at Mirershorai. It 

will have marvelous positive impact on the environment.  

As recognition of your effort to keep the environment clean and greener, we were awarded the “Divisional Environmental Award” by 

Poribesh Odhidaptar.

 Human Resources Function:

In real sense BSRM believes that the employees of BSRM are the best resources of the organization and their motivation is a vital factor 

for the growth and development of the organization because of its direct impact on productivity. BSRM HR focuses on valued employees 

to optimize their creativity, performance and sustainable improvement by ensuring a safe & healthy working environment, cohesive 

corporate culture, proper training, reward and recognition, various employee benefits scheme. Starting from selection of right man for 

the right post BSRM HR works to nurture its talent towards achievement of its goal.

Human Resources Department of BSRM formulates and implements the best practices, policies, rules, guidelines to work strategically 

in identifying and responding to the Company’s vision and needs. BSRM thinks ahead along with its people.

Reinforcing BSRM Vision “Be an employer of choice, with focus on nurturing talent and developing future leaders of the organization” 
Human Resources Department is committed to achieve excellence in every steps of its operation through different functions & projects.

Talent Acquisition:

This is a recruitment process rather Human Resources Department follows the set recruitment and selection policy and strategy to 

attract qualified potential candidate who are committed to achieve the organizational goals. Key components of the process on hiring 

the potential applicants who demonstrate the attributes that include Appearance & People focus, Speech, Expression & Information 

Handling, Experience for work, Qualification for work, Maturity & Dependability, Leadership, Energy & Attitude, Strength & Weakness for 

the job. 

Human Capital:

BSRM believes that Human Resources of the company are their best capital. This human capital push the organization towards achieving 
the goal. BSRM nurture this human capital through different motivational projects & training. In-house, local & training abroad sharpen 
the trainee’s talent which ultimately result in productivity & success. Company’s Domiciliary, Hospitalization, Maternity scheme are there 
to take care of the health of the Human Capital.

Human Resource Accounting:

Human Resource department of the company maintain statistics through HRIS. Employee cost to the company, total salary cost, 
department wise salary benefit cost, percentage of increase, comprising to other organization in job market maintaining, the HR budget 
etc. HR accounting of the company covers. HR accounting helps as an indicator to match with the present job market to hire & retain 

talents in the organization.
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Training & Development:

In order for nurturing the talents Management of BSRM believes that institutionalizing a learning culture positively helps safety, 

sustainability, quality and productivity of the organization. 

Our Human Resources Department strives to provide Training & Development opportunities to all employees in a systematic process. 

The process ensures adequate competency of employees to fulfill their job responsibilities and provide a guideline for the identification 

of individual training needs to ensure that competency and qualifications to perform specific tasks are maintained. Through a planned 

training calendar BSRM HR arranges in house/external/outbound/foreign trainings for the employees. 

Health, Safety and Environment [HSE]:

We are a ISO certified company. BSRM Management take utmost care in maintaining healthy & safe working condition & environment. 

All work place injuries and occupational disease are preventable. Providing and maintaining safe and healthy working conditions and 

following best operating practices that protect the environment, BSRM established a culture of HSE excellence in the organization.

BSRM has its Environment policy and HSE management systems which are implemented to ensure the safety and health of employees.

Adequate safety equipment e.g. Personal Protective Equipment [PPE] are supplied to the employees to take proper precautions in certain 

areas, processes and jobs known to involve a risk of injury. Evacuation instructions are displayed at various points for the event of an 

emergency e.g. fire.

The HSE team is utilizing their talents for sustainable improvement of injury free workplace and to ensure a healthy environment.

Performance Management System [PMS]:

Key Performance Indicator (KPI) present mirror of the organizations performance. Employee evaluation is linked to individual performance 

aligning with the goals and priorities of the organization. Human Resources Department conducts a performance assessment at the end 

of the year on achievement results through assigned KPI/KRA and Individual Competency. This ensures a fair and accurate evaluation 

to review an employee’s career development. 

Succession Planning:

To identify necessary competencies and to assess, develop and retain a talent pool of employees in order to ensure a continuity of 

leadership for all critical/significant positions BSRM sets a succession planning process. Succession planning process helps skilled 

employees to gain the experience and competencies so that they can move into vacant positions. 

Online HRIS:

Online Human Resources Information System is designed and developed to offer employees an extended level of service and flexibility 

by providing web-based, self service access to personal and official information.

Employee Benefits:

To remain competitive in the industry and considering the welfare and needs of the employees BSRM focus on benefits structure. As part 

of employee benefits policy BSRM employees are receiving different benefits and allowances other than remuneration like Leave, festival 

Bonuses, Provident Fund, Gratuity, Salary Advance, Interest free Company Loan for Car Scheme, Children Education Scheme, Employee 

Education Scheme, Employee Children Education Achievement Award for distinct academic results, Domiciliary Scheme, Executive Health 

Check-up Scheme, Hospitalization Scheme, Maternity Benefits Scheme, Wedding Gifts etc.  

Reward and Recognitions:

To recognize employees for their excellence in service, loyalty, ideas, dedication to the values and vision of the group and their 

contribution to change management the Company present Awards in Recognition like Long Service Award, Living the Value Best Award, 

Best Suggestion Award, Change Catalyst Award, Significant Contribution Award, Safety Icon of the Year, etc.
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Learning Centre:

BSRM provides the opportunity to visit the Industries to gather practical knowledge and enhance learning experience to nominated 

students from different Universities/Institutes as a part of their academic requirement. Using Internship program of BSRM, students can 

complete their Internship period under respective department to accomplish his/her academic/professional degree. After completion of 

academic studies students can join as Apprentice or as Trainee, which helps to be trained and develop skills, abilities at an early stage 

of their career. 

BSRM publishes Corporate Brochure, Newsletter “Xtreme talk” periodically to share information to the employees and customers.  

Equal Opportunity:

BSRM provides equal employment and advancement opportunities to all qualified persons based on their merit, qualifications and 

abilities without discrimination on the basis of age, sex, race, marital status or religion in accordance with laws, rules and regulations.

 Information Technology:

BSRM is a customer oriented company from the very beginning. BSRM has taken a group of IT initiative to support its sales and support 

staff in considering client needs and satisfaction. To responding promptly and respectfully to consumer complaints and queries, BSRM 

has developed an online base customer complaint system where every customer complaints are entering into the system and escalated 

to the senior management automatically if there is any delay. Also BSRM has introduced a SMS base complaint and query system named 

“Apnar Jiggasha” where customers can send SMS for their complaint or query.

BSRM has introduced mobile base Sales Order System for their Sales Team to process Ordering System faster. An additional feature 

has been added to the Online Customer Portal so that the BSRM registered customer can enter their Order directly from the system. 

Previously from the portal registered BSRM Customers can check their Account Ledger, Order/Delivery/Payment history, Order balance 

etc. Now BSRM has its own Video Conferencing System that enabled face to face communication among their senior management 

across the country to have faster decision making. BSRM is planning to continue IT initiative and improvement to delight its customers.
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Money is a medium for the physical exchange of goods and services. It is a 
clearly identifiable object of value. It is the legal tender within a country.

Invention of Money
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REGULATORY COMPLIANCE REPORT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Good Governance is the cornerstone of sustainability and creation of long term value – both inherently underlying the structures 
and work processes of BSRM Steels Limited in its history of being a pioneer in the  industries, we operate in and in turn one of 
the best steel industry in Bangladesh. Corporate Government refers to the structures and processes for the direction and control of 
companies.  Sound corporate governance is a fundamental part of the culture of the company and ensures long term success. Corporate 
governance concerns the relationships among the management, Board of Directors, controlling shareholders, minority shareholders and 
other stakeholders. Good corporate governance contributes to sustainable economic development by enhancing the performance of 
companies.  The Board of Directors of BSRM Steels Limited is firmly committed to upholding principles of sound corporate governance. 
The main objective of corporate governance is creation of lasting value for stakeholders. Transparency in business transaction and 
disclosure of information to regulatory bodies as part of its legal obligations constitute sound corporate governance. Good corporate 
governance also means conformity to sound ethical principles and a code of conduct in business dealings. 

Board of Directors 
Board of Directors is the representative and trustee of the shareholders of the company. The Board of Directors of BSRM Steels Limited 
comprises of five members including Chairman, Managing Director and the board also has one independent director in compliance with 
the corporate Governance Guidelines of BSEC. The Directors possess a wide range of experience, expertise and specialized skills to assist 
in decision-making and leading the Company for the benefit of its shareholders. Board of Directors is performing the responsibilities, 
among others, setting the company’s strategic objectives, providing leadership, supervision and safeguarding shareholders’ interest.

Selection and appointment of new Directors 
Directors should ensure that the Company is properly managed to protect and enhance shareholder value and to meet the Company’s 
obligations to shareholders, to the industry and to the law. In carrying out this duty, the Board should always be mindful of the need for 
establishing a Board that enhances the efficient and effective running of the Company. In relation to the selection and appointment of 
new Directors (if any), the existing Board of Directors has the following duties and responsibilities:

•	 Regularly review the size and composition of the Board and the mix of expertise, skills, experience and perspectives that may 
be desirable to permit the Board to execute its functions

•	 Identify any competencies not adequately represented and agree to the process necessary to be assured that a candidate 
nominated by the board members/ shareholders with those competencies is selected

•	 Ensure that the Board maintains at least 5 Directors, with an independent Director and have a reputable standing in the industry

The Directors are appointed by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM). Casual vacancies, if any, are filled by the Board 
in accordance with the stipulations of the Companies Act, 1994 and the Articles of the Company.

Retirement and re-election of Directors 
As per the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from the Board every year, comprising 
those who have been in the office the longest since their last election. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Qualification of Board members 
The Board of Directors of BSRM Steels Limited consists of members who possess a wide variety of knowledge and experience in 
different arena of corporate world. This ensures that together, they formulate the right policy for the development of the business. Two of 
the Directors in the Board are Chartered Accountants with elevated experience across key positions of finance and accounts, and who 
normally provides guidance in matters applicable to accounting and auditing-related issues to ensure compliance and reliable financial 
reporting. Respective qualification of Directors is appended in Directors’ profile on page no. 31 of this annual report.

The Role of the Board
The Board is responsible for the overall governance conduct and implementation of sound business strategies within the Company and 
has the powers and duties afforded within the milieu of relevant laws / regulations of the country, regulatory authorities, and professional 
institutes. In addition, the Board of Directors, both individually and collectively, strive to comply with best practices on environmental, 
health, safety and ethical standards whilst ensuring that the interest of all stakeholder groups are considered when taking decision. 

Audit Committee 
BSRM Steels Limited has an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. This committee is assisting the Board of 
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Directors in ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good 
monitoring system within the business. This committee is responsible to the Board of Directors and its duties and responsibilities are 
clearly set forth in writing. Audit Committee is reconstituted as per the guidelines of BSEC. 

Audit Committee holds regular meetings on the following major issues: 

•	 to review the financial statements (consolidated and separate) and reporting process and monitor the choice of accounting 
policies and principles; 

•	 to review the business risk management; 

•	 to review the internal audit assessment;    

•	 to ensure the good corporate practices. 
A separate report of the audit committee is included in the annual report.

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director 

In BSRM Steels Limited, Chairman and Managing Director are two separate individuals selected from the Board of Directors. Both are 
performing defined responsibilities and focusing on the strategic value addition of the company. Managing director is performing the 
role of Chief Executive.

Directors’ report to Shareholders 
Board of Directors report on the performance, annual achievements and status of the company’s activities to the shareholders. They are 
also conveying the future plan and outlook of the industry and company in their report. 

Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit
Company has appointed two qualified Chartered Accountants designated as Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. Both are 
members of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh. The CFO & Company Secretary regularly advise and assist the Board 
on financial strategy and compliance issues of the regulatory bodies. Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary are also attending 
Board Meetings as per Corporate Governance notification of the BSEC.  Company’s internal audit department is also headed by a Head 
of Internal Audit having professional expertise and long experiences in the field of internal audit. 

Board of Directors clearly defined respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit.

Internal Audit and Control 
BSRM Steels Limited established an Internal Audit Department consisting of professional and knowledgeable employees. Internal Audit 
Department directly reports to the Board of Directors.

Internal Audit department regularly conducts their audit based on a yearly Internal Audit Plan and checks, verifies and reviews the 
compliance of Internal Control Procedure and other regulatory requirements. 

External Auditors 
External Auditors of BSRM Steels Limited is appointed in every Annual General Meeting (AGM) by the Shareholders of the company as per 
Companies Act 1994. Company also   conforms to the requirement of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission in appointing 
external auditors. External Auditors are not engaged to perform any of the tasks other than external /statutory audit. 

Subsidiary Company
Board of the Directors of BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. - Subsidiary Company of BSRM Steels Limited is also constituted in line with 
the guidelines of BSEC as per Corporate Governance Notification. Independent Director of holding company has also been director of 
subsidiary company. Minutes of the Board of directors’ meeting of subsidiary company are reviewed by the Board of holding company. 
The Audit Committee of the BSRM Steels limited (holding company) also reviews the financial statements of the subsidiary company. 

Key Management Committee
There are other sub-committees to the Board of Directors to assist the Board of Directors in making and formulating company’s strategic 
objectives and policies namely Management Committee & Executive Committee. These committee members sit regularly for discussing 
and reviewing the activities of the company.

Certification on the Compliance of Corporate Governance Guidelines of BSEC
A certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Guidelines of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission issued by M.A. Mallik & Co., Chartered Accountants is included in this annual report.  
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
BSRM Steels Limited has an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, as recommended by Bangladesh Securities 

and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in ensuring that the financial statements reflect 

the faithful and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in providing a sound monitoring system within the business. The 

committee is reporting to the Board of Directors on performing the clearly set forth responsibilities by the Board of Directors.

Committee Members

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of four members. Details are-

Sl. Name Designation

1 Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA Chairman

2 Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA Member

3 Mr. Zohair Taherali Member

4 Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA Secretary

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the audit committee have been determined by the Board by the BSEC notification. The Committee is 

responsible to the Board of Directors and reports on its activities regularly. The Committee assists the Board of Directors in its general 

oversight of financial reporting, internal controls and functions relating to internal audit as well as ensures compliance with the Corporate 

Governance Guidelines promulgated by the BSEC.

Meetings and attendance

During the year under review, the Committee held four meetings. Permanent Invitees to the meeting were the Managing Director, Head 

of Finance and Accounts, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit. Relevant heads of divisions and other members of the 

Management also attend the meeting as required. The attendance of the members at these meeting is as under:

Name of the members
No. of meetings held whilst a 

committee member
Meetings attended

Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA 4 4

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA 4 4

Mr. Zohair Taherali 4 4

Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA 4 4

Mandate and Role

The purpose, authority, composition, duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are defined in its Charter. The Committee has 
been mandated to:

•	 Review the annual, half-yearly and quarterly financial statements and other financial results, and upon its satisfaction of the   
review, recommended the same to the Board. The Audit committee also ensures the appropriateness of accounting policies 
and their adherence to statutory and regulatory compliance and applicable accounting standards.

•	 Monitor the financial reporting systems in place to ensure the integrity and the soundness of the information provided to the 
Board of Directors, Regulatory Authorities, Management and other Stakeholders.
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•	 Identify, analyze and monitor the risks faced by the Company and examine the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of 
internal controls and procedures in place to avoid, mitigate or transfer such risks.

•	 Monitor all internal audit and inspection programs, review internal audit / inspection reports and follow-up on their findings and 
recommendations.

•	 Review the Interim Financial Statements and the Company’s Annual Financial Statements prepared for disclosure, before 
submission to the Board of Directors.

Reporting of the Committee

On discharging its responsibilities, the audit committee has ensured the followings:

•	 Financial statements have been prepared and presented in compliance with all laws, regulations & standards as applicable.

•	 Adequate controls and procedures are in place to provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s assets are safeguarded 
and that the financial position of the Company is adequately managed.

Audit Committee also reviewed the Internal Auditor’s Reports and observations. They have assessed and examined the 
effectiveness of the independent performance of the External Auditors Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants and also 
recommended to the Board of Directors that Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants is re-appointed as Auditors for the 
period ended from January 2016 to June 30, 2016, and for the year from July 01 2016 to June 30, 2017. This will be subject to 
the approval of the Shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Audit Committee
 

Mono Ranjan Dey FCA 
Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee 

February 10, 2016
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STATEMENT OF CEO AND CFO ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors 
BSRM Steels Limited

 

We do hereby certify that:
 

(i)	 We have reviewed financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, and to the best of our knowledge 
and belief:

 
	 a)	 These financial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 	

	 contain statements that might be misleading;
 
	 b)	 These financial statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in 	

	 compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws;
 
(ii)	 To the best of our knowledge and belief, the company did not enter into any transactions which are contrary to the 

laws of the land or the ethical standards which the company adheres to.
 

 

 

	 Aameir Alihussain	 Mohammad Arif ACA, ACMA
	 Managing Director	 Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATE OF MEMBERSHIP
OF BAPLC
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Double entry bookkeeping is an accounting principle where every entry to an 
account requires a corresponding and opposite entry  to a different account

Double Entry Book Keeping
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AUDITORS’ REPORT &
FINANCIALS 2015

BSRM Steels Limited and its subsidiary
As at and for the year ended

31st December 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BSRM STEELS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BSRM STEELS LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the statement of 
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information and all related consolidated financial statements of BSRM Steels Limited and its subsidiary and associate (together referred 
to as “the group).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Bangladesh 
Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
Bangladesh Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

The financial statements of the Company’s subsidiary, BSRM Iron and Steel Company Ltd. (BISCO), was not audited by us. The financial 
statements of BISCO shows total assets of Taka 5,642,473,667 as on 31 December 2015 and total revenue of Taka 7,916,119,496 for 
the year then ended. Basu Banerjee Nath & Co., Chartered Accountants has audited the Financial Statements of BISCO and expressed an 
unqualified opinion. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of the company’s subsidiary, is based on the 
audited financial statements and reports issued by subsidiary’s auditor.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements including consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the company and of the group as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards.

Other matter
The financial statements  including consolidated financial statements of BSRM Steels Ltd. for the year ended 31 December 2014 were 
audited by Syful Shamsul Alam & Co., Chartered Accountants, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial  statements on 
30 March 2015.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report the following:

(a)	 we have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 		
	 purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;
(b) 	 in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our 		
	 examination of those books;
(c) 	 the statement of financial position, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt with by the report 	
	 are in agreement with the books of account; and
(d) 	 the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Chittagong, 10 February 2016
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BSRM Steels Limited and its subsidiary
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015

Notes 
2015 2014
Taka Taka 

ASSETS
Non-current assets   
Property, plant and equipment 4.a 9,921,677,186 9,478,012,241 
Capital work-in-progress 5.a 27,353,337 52,120,752 
Intangible assets 6.a 38,374,145 42,671,865 
Investment 8.a 1,569,466,903 945,301,128 
Total non-current assets 11,556,871,571 10,518,105,986 

Current assets
Short term investment 9.a 270,424,930 254,178,594 
Inventories 10.a 8,773,744,844 13,627,336,725 
Trade and other receivables 11.a 2,545,202,973 2,973,028,898 
Current account with related companies 12.a 2,358,219,806 3,040,570,533 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 13.a 2,438,950,252 1,394,394,506 
Cash and cash equivalents 14.a 541,118,785 573,851,351 
Total current assets 16,927,661,590 21,863,360,607 
Total Assets 28,484,533,161 32,381,466,593 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 15 3,417,750,000 3,417,750,000 
Retained earnings 4,215,356,323 2,609,417,357 
Revaluation reserve 2,629,576,682 2,635,014,277 
Equity attributable to owners of the company 10,262,683,005 8,662,181,634 
Non- controlling interest 107,111,570 106,672,238 
Total equity 10,369,794,575 8,768,853,872 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowings- non current portion 16.a 659,385,605 614,600,476 
Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity 17.a 74,583,446 53,029,475 
Deferred tax liability 19.a 1,231,685,328 889,207,310 
Total non-current liabilities 1,965,654,379 1,556,837,261 

Current liabilities
Trade payables 20.a 61,486,527 97,237,179 
Short term borrowings 21.a 14,708,174,314 20,676,016,939 
Current account with related companies 22.a - 1,645,134 
Liabilities for expenses 23.a 257,170,277 380,207,542 
Current tax liability 18.a 560,347,182 495,092,588 
Provision for WPPF and Welfare Fund 24.a 145,656,791 91,670,284 
Other liabilities 25.a 416,249,116 313,905,794 
Total current liabilities 16,149,084,207 22,055,775,460 
Total liabilities 18,114,738,586 23,612,612,721 
Total Equity and Liabilities 28,484,533,161 32,381,466,593 

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Managing Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our annexed report of same date

 Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered AccountantsChittagong, 10 February, 2016
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BSRM Steels Limited and its subsidiary
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

 For the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Revenue  26.a  33,493,228,651  38,571,105,303 
Cost of sales  27.a   (28,678,277,200)  (35,083,090,919)
Gross profit  4,814,951,451  3,488,014,384 
Selling and distribution costs  28.a  (858,647,893)  (672,978,687)
Administrative costs  29.a  (302,967,383)  (283,360,280)
Other operating income  30.a  29,617,616  16,361,164 
Profit from operating activities  3,682,953,791  2,548,036,581 
Finance costs  31.a  (830,836,624)  (868,082,307)
Finance income  32.a  67,645,276  147,966,281 

 (763,191,348)  (720,116,026)
Profit before WPPF and Welfare Fund  2,919,762,444  1,827,920,555 
Contribution to WPPF and welfare fund 24.a.i  (145,656,791)  (91,670,284)
Non-operating income 33.a  -  7,570,500 
Share of (loss)/profit of associate 34  75,311,775  (3,199,602)
Profit before income tax  2,849,417,428  1,740,621,169 
Provision for income tax:

 -Current tax  (393,336,207)  (369,138,077)
 -Deferred tax  (358,790,800)  (123,924,225)

 (752,127,007)  (493,062,302)
Profit after tax for the year  2,097,290,421  1,247,558,867 

Other comprehensive income  -  - 
Total comprehensive income for the year  2,097,290,421  1,247,558,867 

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the company  2,096,851,089  1,239,217,057 
Non-controlling interest  439,332  8,341,810 

 2,097,290,421  1,247,558,867 
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company  2,096,851,089  1,239,217,057 
Non-controlling interest  439,332  8,341,810 

 2,097,290,421  1,247,558,867 
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share  35.a 6.14 3.63

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Managing Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our annexed report of same date

 Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered AccountantsChittagong, 10 February, 2016



87
BSRM Steels Limited        Annual Report 2015

BS
RM

 S
te

el
s 

Li
m

ite
d 

an
d 

its
 s

ub
si

di
ar

y
Co

ns
ol

id
at

ed
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f C

ha
ng

es
 in

  E
qu

ity
Fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 3

1 
De

ce
m

be
r 2

01
5

Am
ou

nt
 in

 T
ak

a

Sh
ar

e 
Ca

pi
ta

l
Re

va
lu

at
io

n 
Re

se
rv

e
Re

ta
in

ed
  

Ea
rn

in
gs

To
ta

l
No

n-
co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 
 in

te
re

st
To

ta
l E

qu
ity

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 o

n 
1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
14

 3
,4

17
,7

50
,0

00
 

 2
,6

51
,6

13
,2

49
 

 1
,8

59
,9

67
,6

66
 

 7
,9

29
,3

30
,9

15
 

 9
8,

33
0,

42
8 

 8
,0

27
,6

61
,3

43
 

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
 -

 
 -

 
 1

,2
39

,2
17

,0
57

 
 1

,2
39

,2
17

,0
57

 
 8

,3
41

,8
10

 
 1

,2
47

,5
58

,8
67

 

Ca
sh

 d
iv

id
en

d 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r 2
01

3
 -

 
 -

 
 (5

12
,6

62
,5

00
)

 (5
12

,6
62

,5
00

)
 -

 
 (5

12
,6

62
,5

00
)

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f d

iff
er

en
ce

 in
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

co
st

 m
od

el
 

an
d 

re
va

lu
at

io
n 

m
od

el
 -

 
 (1

6,
59

8,
97

2)
 2

2,
89

5,
13

4 
 6

,2
96

,1
62

 
 -

 
 6

,2
96

,1
62

 

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1 

De
ce

m
be

r 2
01

4
 3

,4
17

,7
50

,0
00

 
 2

,6
35

,0
14

,2
77

 
 2

,6
09

,4
17

,3
57

 
 8

,6
62

,1
81

,6
34

 
 1

06
,6

72
,2

38
 

 8
,7

68
,8

53
,8

72
 

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 o

n 
1 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 3
,4

17
,7

50
,0

00
 

 2
,6

35
,0

14
,2

77
 

 2
,6

09
,4

17
,3

57
 

 8
,6

62
,1

81
,6

34
 

 1
06

,6
72

,2
38

 
 8

,7
68

,8
53

,8
72

 

To
ta

l c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r
 -

 
 -

 
 2

,0
96

,8
51

,0
89

 
 2

,0
96

,8
51

,0
89

 
 4

39
,3

32
 

 2
,0

97
,2

90
,4

21
 

Ca
sh

 d
iv

id
en

d 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r 2
01

4
 -

 
 -

 
 (5

12
,6

62
,5

00
)

 (5
12

,6
62

,5
00

)
 -

 
 (5

12
,6

62
,5

00
)

Tr
an

sf
er

 fr
om

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ta

x 
to

 re
va

lu
at

io
n 

re
se

rv
e

 -
 

 1
0,

87
5,

18
8 

 -
 

 1
0,

87
5,

18
8 

 -
 

 1
0,

87
5,

18
8 

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f d

iff
er

en
ce

 in
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

co
st

 m
od

el
 

an
d 

re
va

lu
at

io
n 

m
od

el
 -

 
 (1

6,
31

2,
78

3)
 2

1,
75

0,
37

7 
 5

,4
37

,5
94

 
 -

 
 5

,4
37

,5
94

 

Ba
la

nc
e 

as
 a

t 3
1 

De
ce

m
be

r 2
01

5
 3

,4
17

,7
50

,0
00

 
 2

,6
29

,5
76

,6
82

 
 4

,2
15

,3
56

,3
23

 
 1

0,
26

2,
68

3,
00

5 
 1

07
,1

11
,5

70
 

 1
0,

36
9,

79
4,

57
5 



88
BSRM Steels Limited        Annual Report 2015

BSRM Steels Limited and its subsidiary 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Taka Taka 

 a.  Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash receipts from customers  34,112,034,896  40,388,707,353 

Cash payments to suppliers and employees  (26,164,861,955)  (42,505,936,100)

Income tax paid  (328,081,613)  (370,912,803)

Interest paid  (858,979,213)  (299,275,981)

Net cash generated by/(used in) operating activities  6,760,112,115  (2,787,417,531)

 b.  Cash flows from investing activities 

 Acquisition of Property, plant and equipment  (803,313,576)  (311,997,374)

 Addition to CWIP  (27,113,979)  - 

 Disposal of Property, plant and equipment  5,306,840  7,264,562 

 Increase in Investment   (216,246,336)  (11,453,482)

 Software - Development/implementation  -  (47,646,754)

 Realized from related companies against Software development  -  52,530,467 

 Trade Mark  -  (106,000)

 Share money deposit to BSRM Steel Mills Limited  -  (348,854,000)

 Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities  (1,041,367,051)  (660,262,581)

 c.  Cash flows from financing activities 

 (Repayments) / Receipts of Term Loan   13,153,199  (97,202,585)

 Dividend Paid  (509,125,727)  (512,662,500)

 Loan to/from Related Companies  (5,936,210,695)  4,435,282,516 

 Short Term Borrowings  680,705,593  (400,929,678)

 Net cash provided by /(used in) financing activities  (5,751,477,630)  3,424,487,753 

 d.  Net increase in cash and cash equivalent (a+b+c)  (32,732,566)  (23,192,359)

 e.  Opening cash and cash equivalents  573,851,351  597,043,710 

 f.  Closing cash and cash equivalents (d+e)  541,118,785  573,851,351 
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BSRM Steels Limited
Statement of Financial Position

 As at 31 December 2015

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4  7,023,433,417  6,464,419,933 
Capital work-in-progress 5  8,527,589  51,881,394 
Intangible assets 6  29,871,212  33,215,332 
Investment in subsidiary 8.01  1,045,000,000  1,045,000,000 
Investment in associate 8.02  1,569,466,903  945,301,128 
Total non-current assets  9,676,299,121  8,539,817,787 

Current assets
Short term investment 9  266,749,130  220,102,334 
Inventories 10  6,889,962,898  11,274,456,739 
Trade and other receivables 11  2,247,869,647  2,971,813,680 
Current account with related companies 12  2,626,472,168  2,605,398,576 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 13  2,554,191,955  1,007,964,702 
Cash and cash equivalents 14  468,886,084  521,092,776 
Total current assets  15,054,131,882  18,600,828,807 
Total Assets  24,730,431,003  27,140,646,594 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 15  3,417,750,000  3,417,750,000 
Retained earnings  3,531,278,026  1,940,312,986 
Revaluation reserve  2,131,590,679  2,137,028,274 

 9,080,618,705  7,495,091,260 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowings- non current portion 16  548,388,963  431,897,159 
Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity 17  55,875,824  39,019,866 
Deferred tax liability 19  831,760,881  729,338,236 
Total non-current liabilities  1,436,025,668  1,200,255,261 

Current liabilities
Trade payable 20  33,623,532  53,285,610 
Short term borrowings 21.01  12,650,676,709  17,024,368,151 
Current portion of long term borrowings 21.07  196,850,016  228,481,946 
Liabilities for expenses 23  237,212,136  361,444,962 
Current tax liability 18  560,347,182  495,092,588 
Provision for WPPF and Welfare Fund 24  132,559,843  79,677,893 
Other liabilities 25  402,517,212  202,948,923 
Total current liabilities  14,213,786,630  18,445,300,073 
Total liabilities  15,649,812,298  19,645,555,334 
Total Equity and Liabilities  24,730,431,003  27,140,646,594 

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Managing Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our annexed report of same date

 Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered AccountantsChittagong, 10 February, 2016
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BSRM Steels Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

 For the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Revenue 26  32,316,100,562  38,535,936,754 

Cost of sales 27  (27,947,447,147)  (35,728,612,252)

Gross profit  4,368,653,415  2,807,324,502 

Selling and distribution costs 28  (858,647,893)  (672,978,687)

Administrative costs 29  (268,473,270)  (249,599,115)

Other operating income 30  16,399,295  8,087,150 

Profit from operating activities  3,257,931,547  1,892,833,850 

Finance costs 31  (673,131,697)  (486,981,060)

Finance income 32  66,397,014  187,705,079 

 (606,734,683)  (299,275,981)

Profit before WPPF and Welfare Fund  2,651,196,865  1,593,557,869 

Contribution to WPPF and welfare fund 24  (132,559,843)  (79,677,893)

 2,518,637,022  1,513,879,976 

Share of profit of associate (Net of tax) 34  75,311,775  (3,199,602)

Profit before income tax  2,593,948,797  1,510,680,374 

Provision for income tax :

 -Current tax 18  (393,336,207)  (369,138,077)

 -Deferred tax 19  (118,735,427)  (55,334,491)

 (512,071,634)  (424,472,568)

Profit after tax for the year  2,081,877,163  1,086,207,806 

Other comprehensive income  -  - 

Total comprehensive income for the year  2,081,877,163  1,086,207,806 

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 35 6.09 3.18

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Managing Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our annexed report of same date

 Rahman Rahman Huq
Chartered AccountantsChittagong, 10 February, 2016
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BSRM Steels Limited 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Taka Taka 

a.  Cash flows from operating activities 

 Cash receipts from customers  33,251,803,564  40,058,936,081 

 Cash payments to suppliers and employees  (26,559,200,269)  (42,384,022,980)

 Income tax paid  (328,081,613)  (370,912,803)

 Interest paid  (598,193,405)  (299,275,981)

 Net cash generated by/(used in) operating activities  5,766,328,277  (2,995,275,683)

b.  Cash flows from investing activities 

 Acquisition of Property, plant and equipment  (749,636,537)  (227,391,297)

 Addition to CWIP  (8,527,589)  - 

 Disposal of Property, plant and equipment  5,306,840  5,517,886 

 Increase in Investments  (246,646,796)  (8,558,291)

 Software - Development/implementation  -  (47,646,754)

 Realized from related companies against Software development  -  61,987,000 

 Trade Mark  -  (106,000)

 Share money deposit to BSRM Steel Mills Limited  -  (348,854,000)

 Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities  (999,504,082)  (565,051,456)

c.  Cash flows from financing activities 

(Repayment) / Receipt of Long term loans  84,859,874  6,846,590 

Dividend paid  (509,125,727)  (512,662,500)

(Repayment) / Receipt of short term borrowings  (4,373,691,442)  3,891,200,205 

Loan to/from related companies  (21,073,592)  101,498,641 

Net cash provided by /(used in) financing activities  (4,819,030,887)  3,486,882,936 

d.  Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (a+b+c)  (52,206,692)  (73,444,203)

e.  Opening cash and cash equivalents  521,092,776  594,536,979 

f.  Closing cash and cash equivalents (d+e)  468,886,084  521,092,776 
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BSRM Steels Limited and its Subsidiary
Notes to the financial statements and consolidated financial statements

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015

1.	 THE REPORTING ENTITY

1.01	 Legal form of Enterprise

BSRM Steels Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘BSL’, ‘the company’ or ‘the Parent’) was incorporated on 20 July, 2002, vide 
the certificate C-No. 4392 of 2002 as a Private Limited Company in Bangladesh under Companies Act 1994. The company was 
converted to a Public Limited Company on 20 December 2006. The Company is listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) 
and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) as a publicly quoted company. Trading of the shares of the company started in two 
stock exchanges from 18 January 2009. 

The company has set up its rolling mill at 4 Fouzderhat Industrial Estate, Latifpur, Sitakunda, Chittagong and commenced 
commercial production from 1 April 2008. The registered office of the company is situated at Ali Mansion, 1207/1099, Sadarghat 
Road, Chittagong, Bangladesh.

1.02	 Nature of the Business

The main objective of the company is to manufacture M.S. products by setting up rolling and re-rolling mills and marketing 
the same. 

1.03	 BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Limited- Subsidiary 

BSL acquired 95% equity interest in BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Limited (BISCO) i.e. 104,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each  on 
10 November 2010 in exchange of  104,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each of BSRM Steels Limited.

BISCO was incorporated on 13 April 2005 as a Private Limited Company and was subsequently converted to a Public Limited 
Company on 15 March 2011. The principal activity of BISCO is to manufacture and sell M.S. Billets. It commenced commercial 
production from 1 June 2010. The Financial Statements of this subsidiary company is included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements according to BFRS 10 - “Consolidated Financial Statements”. 

1.04	 BSRM Steel Mills Limited- Associate

BSRM Steel Mills Limited (BSML) was incorporated on 16 April 2008 as a Private Limited Company and was subsequently 
converted to a Public Limited Company on 12 November 2013. The main objective of BSML is to manufacture and sell M.S. Billets. 
Paid up Capital of BSML is Tk. 394.43 Crore divided into 39.44 Crore Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each. BSRM Steels Limited has 
acquired 100,000,000 nos. of Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each of BSML i.e., 25.35% (21.76% in 2014). BSML has not started its 
commercial operation yet and is expected to start its commercial production within 1st quarter of 2016. 

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION, PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
2.01	 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual basis of accounting except for Cash 
Flow Statement in accordance with the International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) as adopted in Bangladesh by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) as Bangladesh Accounting 
Standards (BASs) and Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs).

2.02	 Basis of Reporting

The financial statements are prepared and presented for external users by the company in accordance with identified financial 
reporting framework. Presentation has been made in compliance with the requirements of BAS 1: “Presentation of Financial 
Statements”. 

2.03	 Other Regulatory Compliances

The group entities are also required to comply with the following major laws and regulations along with the Companies Act 1994:

i)   The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984

ii)  The Income Tax Rules, 1984

iii) The Value Added Tax Act, 1991
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iv)  The Value Added Tax Rules, 1991

v)  The Customs Act, 1969

vi)  Bangladesh Labour Law 2006

vii) The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

viii) The Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987

ix)  Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993

2.04	 Authorization for issue

These Financial Statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 February 2016.

2.05	 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost convention except for some 
classes of Property, Plant and Equipment which are measured at revalued amount.

2.06	 Functional and Presentation Currency

These Financial Statements are prepared in Bangladesh Taka, which is the company’s functional currency. All financial information 
presented in Taka has been rounded off to the nearest integer.

2.07	 Going Concern

The group entities have adequate resources to continue its operation in foreseeable future. For this reason the directors continue 
to adopt going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements. The current revenue generations and resources of the group 
provide sufficient fund to meet the present requirements of its existing business and operations.

2.08	 Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with BAS and BFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgements, Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies and assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have the 
most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes: 

Note: 4	 Property, plant and equipment
Note: 6	 Intangible assets
Note: 10	 Inventories
Note: 11	 Trade and other receivables
Note: 17	 Provision for gratuity
Note: 18	 Current tax liability
Note: 19	 Deferred tax liability
Note: 25	 Other liabilities	
Note: 37	 Contingent liabilities

2.09	 Reporting Period

These Financial Statements of the company and the consolidated financial statements of the group cover one year from 1 January 
2015 to 31 December 2015.

2.10	 Basis of Consolidation and Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

Subsidiary is an enterprise controlled by the parent entity. Control exists when an investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. The 
financial statements of subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences 
until the date that control ceases. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with BFRS 10 
“Consolidated Financial Statements”.
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BISCO is a subsidiary company of BSL. The Company has made 95% investment in this subsidiary. BSL is exposed to and has 
rights, to variable returns from the subsidiary and also has the ability to affect those returns through its power over BISCO.

The Financial Statements of the subsidiary company are incorporated on a line by line basis and the investment held by the parent 
is eliminated against the corresponding share capital of subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements. The accounting 
policies of subsidiary have been changed when it is necessary to align them with the policies adopted by BSRM Steels Limited 
(Parent entity).

The group eliminates intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between 
entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and 
fixed assets, are eliminated in full).

	
	 Non-controlling Interests

The group presents non-controlling interests in its consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately from the 
equity of the owners of the parent.

The group attributes the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and to 
the non-controlling interests. The proportion allocated to the parent and non-controlling interests are determined on the basis of 
present ownership interests.

3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The specific accounting policies selected and applied by the company’s directors for significant transactions and events that have 
material effect within the framework of BAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, in preparation and presentation of financial 
statements have been consistently applied throughout the year and were also consistent with those used in earlier years.

For a proper understanding of the financial statements, these accounting policies are set out below in one place as prescribed by 
the BAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The recommendations of BAS-1 relating to the format of financial statements 
were also taken into full consideration for fair presentation.

3.01	 Consistency

Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies and methods of computation used in preparation of Financial Statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2015 are consistent with those policies and methods adopted in preparing the Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31 December 2014.

3.02	 Property, Plant and Equipment

3.02.01 Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation except Land & land development and Factory 
Building which are carried at revalued amount, being fair values at the date of revaluation less subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset. The cost of self-constructed / installed 
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the working 
condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantling and removing an item and restoring the site on which they are located.

When parts of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of Property, Plant and Equipment.

3.02.02 Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item, if it is 
probable that the future benefit embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs 
of the day to day servicing of Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized in profit and loss as incurred.

3.02.03 Depreciation

Land is held on a freehold basis and is not depreciated considering the unlimited life. In respect of all other property, plant and 
equipment, depreciation is recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on diminishing balance method 
over the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment. 

Depreciation is charged on addition from the month (date of service) of acquisition/addition and no depreciation is charged in the month 
of disposal. The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the entity. The 
depreciation charge for each period is recognized as an expense unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. 
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The principal annual rates and allocation method are as follows:

Category of Assets	 Rate of depreciation (%)

Plant and Machinery	 5%

Motor Vehicle	 20%

Furniture and Fixtures	 20%

Office Equipment	 20%

Factory Buildings	 5%

Roads and Pavements	 10%

Computer & IT equipment	 20%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting dates.

Upon retirement of assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and resulting gain or 
loss is charged or credited to statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

3.03	 Capital Work-In-Progress

Property, Plant and Equipment under construction/acquisition is accounted for as capital work-in-progress until construction/
acquisition is completed and measured at cost.

3.04	 Intangible Assets

3.04.01 Recognition and measurement

Intangible Assets that are acquired by the company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible Assets are recognized when all the conditions for recognition as per BAS 
38: “Intangible Assets” are met. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of 
preparing the asset for its intended use.

3.04.02 Subsequent Costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which 
it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

3.04.03 Amortization

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from the 
date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives and rates of amortization are as follows:
			 

Category of Assets	 Rate of amortization	 Useful lives

Software – old	 33.33%	 3 years

Trade Marks	 5%	 20 years

Oracle eBS software	 10%	 10 years

3.05	 Inventories
	 Nature of inventories

Inventories comprise Raw Materials (Billets and Melting Scrap), Packing Materials, Consumable Stores, Fuel and Lubricants & 
Finished Goods (MS Rods/Billets) etc.

	 Valuation of the inventories

Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in 
acquiring these inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition in accordance with BAS-2 “Inventories”.

Category 	 Valuation
Finished Goods 	 Finished goods are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.
Raw Materials 	 Raw materials are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.
Store items	 Based on weighted average method.

Weighted average cost method has been used to determine the cost of inventories. 
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3.06	 Transactions in Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange ruling on the date of transactions. Monetary assets 
& liabilities, if any, denominated in foreign currencies at the Statement of Financial Position date are translated at the applicable 
rates of exchange ruling at that date and the related exchange differences are recognized as finance income or cost in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income respectively.

3.07	 Investment in Associate

The company’s investment in associates is accounted for in the Financial Statements using the Equity Method in accordance with 
BAS 28: ‘Investment in Associates & Joint Ventures’. Significant influence over an investee (associate) is presumed to exist in 
accordance with BAS 28.5-28.9. Investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or 
decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’s share of 
investee’s profit or loss is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss. Adjustment after the date of acquisition to the carrying amount 
has been made for changes in the investor’s proportionate interest in the investee that arising from the revaluation of property, 
plant & equipment and from foreign currency translation differences. The investor’s share of those changes is recognized in other 
comprehensive income of the investor. 

The excess of company’s share of net assets’ value of associate over cost of investment has been recognized in profit or loss as 
share of associate’s profit or loss during acquisition period as per provision of BAS-28. 

 
3.08	 Financial Assets

The group initially recognizes loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets are 
recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the 
rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

Financial assets include Short Term Investments; Trade and Other Receivables; Advances, Deposits and Prepayments; Loan to 
Related Companies and Cash and Bank balances etc.

3.08.01 Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given in return. After initial 
recognition, these are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any, due to un-collectability of any amount so recognized.

Provisions for bad debts are shown in other liabilities. Provision for doubtful debts is made based on the company policy. Bad debts 
are written off on consideration of the status of individual debtors.

3.08.02 Advances, Deposits and Prepayments

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, adjustments or 
charges to other account heads such as Property, Plant and Equipment, Inventory or Expenses.

Deposits are measured at payment value.

Prepayments are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, prepayments are carried at cost less charges to profit or loss.

3.08.03 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with short-term, highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash, and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.09	 Financial Liabilities

The group recognizes all financial liabilities on the trade date which is the date the group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. The group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or expired. Financial liabilities comprise Trade Creditors and other financial obligations.

3.09.01 Trade and Other Payables

The group recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and the settlement 
of which is expected to result in an outflow from the company of resources embodying economic benefits.

 
3.10	 Impairment
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3.10.01 Financial Assets

Financial assets are impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after initial recognition of the assets 
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that assets that can be estimated reliably. 

Financial assets not classified as fair value through profit or loss, loans, receivables and investment in an equity accounted 
investee are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset 
is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss 
event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

3.10.02 Non Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-
generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

3.11	 Cash Flow Statement

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with BAS 7 (Cash Flow Statement) and the cash flow from 
operating activities have been presented under direct method.

3.12	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized in the Statement of Financial Position when the group has a legal or contractual obligation as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingencies arising from claims, litigations, assessments, fine, penalties etc. are 
recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Contingent assets 
are not recognized in the financial statements.

3.13	 Borrowing Costs

Interest and other costs incurred by the group in connection with the borrowing of funds are recognized as expense in the period in 
which they are incurred, unless such borrowing cost relates to acquisition / construction of assets in progress that are capitalized 
as per BAS 23 “Borrowing Costs”.

3.14	 Taxation

3.14.01 Current Tax

The group has been maintaining provision for taxation using rates enacted at the reporting date as per Income Tax Ordinance, 
1984. The applicable rates are 25% (in 2014: 27.5%) for the company and currently the tax rate applicable for BISCO is 35%.

 
3.14.02 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax liabilities are the amount of income taxes payable in the future periods in respect of taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are the amount of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of deductible temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of timing differences arising between the 
carrying values of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the Statement of Financial Position 
date. The impact of changes on the account in the deferred tax assets and liabilities has also been recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as per BAS-12 ‘’Income Taxes’’.

Deferred tax on revaluation surplus of land and land development has not been recognized in the Financial Statements on the 
ground that income tax payable at source on capital gain during registration of sale of land is generally borne by the buyer. Hence 
possibility of having income tax implication on land is very remote.

3.15	 Share Capital

Paid-up-capital represents total amount contributed by the shareholders and bonus shares issued by the company to the ordinary 
shareholders. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as expenses as and when 
incurred. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to vote at 
shareholders’ meetings. In the event of a winding up of the company, ordinary shareholders rank after all other shareholders. 
Creditors are fully entitled to any proceeds of liquidation before all shareholders.
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3.16	 Employee Benefits

The group maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees.

3.16.01 Defined Contribution Plan

The group maintains a recognized provident fund for all eligible permanent employees in which both employee and employer 
contributes 10% of basic pay. The said fund is managed by the Board of Trustees.

3.16.02 Defined Benefit Plan

The group maintains an unfunded gratuity scheme and provision in respect of which is made annually for the employees. Gratuity 
payable at the end of each year is determined on the basis of following rules and regulations of the company.

Service length	 Payment basis

Less than Five (5) years 	 Nil

For Five (5) years and more	 Two (2) times of last month’s basic salary multiplied by year of service.

3.16.03 Workers’ Profit Participation and Welfare Funds

The company also recognizes a provision for Workers’ Profit Participation and Welfare Funds @ 5% of net profit before tax as per 
Bangladesh Labour Law 2006.

3.17	 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and 
allowances, trade discounts and rebates, if any. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have 
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can 
be estimated reliably and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods. Sales revenue is recognized when the 
goods are delivered.

3.18	 Finance Income and Costs

3.18.01 Finance Income

Interest income from bank deposits and loan to related-companies is recognized on accrual basis following specific rate of 
interest in agreement with banks and related companies.

3.18.02 Finance Costs

Interest expenses except expenses related to acquisition/construction of assets, incurred during the year are charged to Statement 
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on accrual basis. 

3.19	 Other Operating Income

Other operating income includes interest income on delayed receipts from customers, gain / (loss) on sale of fixed assets and 
miscellaneous receipts. Other operating income is recognized as revenue income as and when realized.

3.20	 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The company calculates its earnings per share in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard BAS-33 “Earnings per Share” 
which has been reported on the face of Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

3.20.01 Basis of Earnings

This represents profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders and Non- Controlling shareholders. As there were no 
preference shares requiring returns or dividends, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable to 
the ordinary shareholders.

3.20.02 Basic Earnings Per Share

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the year.
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3.20.03 Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the year when scope for dilution exists.
 
3.21	 Duty Drawback

Duty drawback claimed on export sales is adjusted against cost of imported raw materials.

3.22	 Measurement of Fair Values

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the entity uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are 
categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy 
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Property, plant and equipment

The fair value of items of property, plant and equipment has been determined based on the depreciated replacement cost method 
and net realizable value method as applicable.

Equity and debt securities

Fair values of tradable equity and debt securities are determined by reference to their quoted closing price in active market at the 
reporting date which are categorized under ‘Level 1’ of the fair value hierarchy.

3.23	 Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the company’s position at the date of Statement of 
Financial Position or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the Financial Statements. 
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

3.24	 Comparative Information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2014 in accordance with BAS-1: Presentation of Financial 
Statements, for all numeric information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information where 
it is relevant for understanding of the current year’s Financial Statements. Prior year’s figures have been rearranged wherever 
considered necessary to ensure comparability with the current year.
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

5.00 Capital work-in -progress

Opening balance  51,881,394  202,756,077 

Add: Addition during the year  293,235,293  178,210,607 

 345,116,687  380,966,684 

Less: Capitalized during the year  (336,589,098)  (329,085,290)

Closing balance  8,527,589  51,881,394 

5.01 Details of Capital work-in -progress

Particulars Opening balance Addition Capitalized  Closing balance 

Land and land development  -  127,692,360  (127,692,360)  - 

Civil Construction  -  46,407,914  (46,407,914)  - 

Plant & Machinery  51,881,394  112,097,792  (155,451,597)  8,527,589 

Motor vehicle  -  5,563,448  (5,563,448)  - 

Office Equipment  -  1,473,779  (1,473,779)  - 

 51,881,394  293,235,293  (336,589,098)  8,527,589 

These costs include costs incurred initially to construct/install property, plant and equipment (PPE). Construction/installation 
costs are transferred to PPE when the construction is completed and ready for intended use. 

2015 2014

Taka Taka 

5.a Consolidated capital work in  progress

BSRM Steels Limited 5.00  8,527,589  51,881,394 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  18,825,748  239,358 

 27,353,337  52,120,752 

6.00 Intangible assets

Trade Mark 6.01  108,667  114,932 

Software 6.01  29,762,545  33,100,400 

 29,871,212  33,215,332 

6.01 Intangible assets schedule Trade Mark Software

Cost Taka Taka 

Opening balance on 1 January 2014  19,300  202,800 

Add: Addition during the year  106,000  33,378,555 

Closing balance on 31 December 2014  125,300  33,581,355 

Opening balance on 1 January 2015  125,300  33,581,355 

Add: Addition during the year  -  - 

Closing balance on 31 December 2015  125,300  33,581,355 
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Trade Mark Software

Accumulated amortization Taka Taka

Opening balance on 1 January 2014  4,545  133,848 

Add: Amortized during the year - Note 29.00  5,823  347,107 

Closing balance on 31 December 2014  10,368  480,955 

Opening balance on 1 January 2015  10,368  480,955 

Add: Amortized during the year - Note 29.00  6,265  3,337,855 

Closing balance on 31 December 2015  16,633  3,818,810 

Carrying amount on 31 December 2014  114,932  33,100,400 

Carrying amount on 31 December 2015  108,667  29,762,545 

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

6.a Consolidated intangible assets

BSRM Steels Limited 6.00  29,871,212  33,215,332 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  8,502,933  9,456,533 

 38,374,145  42,671,865 

7.00 Intangible assets - Development phase (Software)

Opening Balance  -  47,718,801 

Expenditure incurred during the period/year  -  47,646,754 

Transfer to intangible assets 6.01  -  (33,378,555)

Cost allocated and realized from related companies  -  (61,987,000)

 -  - 

The Company procured and implemented Oracle EBS with assistance from PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) during 2014 
which went live on 1st March 2014 and capitalized on December 2014. As per decision taken at Board Meeting held on 24 
December 2014 total cost of this software was allocated to BSRM Steels Limited (35%), Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills 
Ltd. (35%), BSRM Steel Mills Limited (20%) and BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. (10%). All amounts were subsequently realized 
from those companies.

7.a Consolidated Intangible assets - Development phase (Software)

BSRM Steels Limited 7.00  -  - 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  -  - 

 -  - 

8.00 Investment 

 In subsidiary company-BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 8.01  1,045,000,000  1,045,000,000 

 In associate company-BSRM Steel Mills Limited 8.02  1,569,466,903  945,301,128 

 2,614,466,903  1,990,301,128 

8.01 Investment in subsidiary company- BSRM  Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.

BSRM Steels Limited has acquired 95% equity interest in BSRM Iron and Steel Co. Limited (104,500,000 Ordinary Shares 
of Tk. 10 each) on 10 November 2010 in exchange of  104,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each in BSRM Steels Limited. 
An amount of Tk. 1,045,000,000 being face value of shares issued against acquisition of this subsidiary has been shown 
as investment in subsidiary at cost as per BAS 27. BSRM Steels Limited and BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. are being operated 
under common control. 
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8.02 Investment in associate company- BSRM Steel Mills Limited

BSRM Steels Limited has 25.35% (21.76% in 2014) equity interest in BSRM Steel Mills Limited (BSML) i.e. 100,000,000 
Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each. BSML has been considered as an equity accounted investee of the company and has been 
accounted for according to BAS 28: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. Reporting date of BSML is 31 December. 

Movement of Investment in Associate
Notes 

2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Opening Balance  945,301,128  948,500,730 

Addition:

Investment in associate  548,854,000  - 

Share of loss of associate  34.00  (3,878,425)  (3,199,602)

Excess of proportionate net assets’ value of associate over 
acquisition cost

 79,190,200  - 

Closing Balance  1,569,466,903  945,301,128 

Summary of financial information of equity accounted investee:

Non-current assets  18,257,548,496  13,734,734,773 

Current assets  1,829,340,388  1,081,040,949 

Total assets  20,086,888,884  14,815,775,722 

Share capital  3,944,354,000  2,073,000,000 

Share money deposit  -  1,880,659,000 

Accumulated loss  (46,700,612)  (22,254,242)

Revaluation surplus  2,292,879,671  2,292,879,671 

Shareholders’ equity  6,190,533,059  6,224,284,429 

Non-current liabilities  6,998,566,281  7,168,138,581 

Current liabilities  6,897,789,544  1,423,352,712 

Total liabilities  13,896,355,825  8,591,491,293 

Total Equity & Liabilities  20,086,888,884  14,815,775,722 

Net Assets Value (NAV) per share 15.69 20.95

Revenue  -  - 

Other income  9,412,586  120,000 

Expenses  (33,858,956)  (14,822,060)

Loss for the year  (24,446,370)  (14,702,060)

Loss attributable to the owners of BSML  (24,446,370)  (14,702,060)

8.a Investment in BSRM Steel Mills Limited  1,569,466,903  945,301,128 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

9.00 Short term investment

Name of the banks Tenure Purpose
Rate of 
Interest

IDLC Finance Limited 6 months LC Margin 8%  2,395,496  2,216,000 

Dhaka Bank Limited 6 months LC Margin 8%  8,000,000  10,966,182 

Mercantile Bank Limited 1 year Investment 8.25%  2,219,437  2,048,869 

Pubali Bank Limited 6 months LC Margin 6.00%  6,702,000  12,304,000 

Standard Chartered Bank 6 months LC Margin 4% ~ 6%  191,926,728  182,267,283 

AB Bank Limited 6 months LC Margin 8%  6,105,469  - 

BD Finance & Investment Co. Ltd. 1 year Investment 11.50%  3,000,000  - 

International Leasing & Finance Ltd. 6 months Investment 10.75%  32,500,000  - 

IFIC Bank Limited 6 months LC Margin 8.50%  7,000,000  - 

Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited 1 year BG & LC 
Margin

7.25%  6,900,000  - 

Habib Bank Limited 6 months LC Margin 8.50%  -  10,300,000 

 266,749,130  220,102,334 

Term deposit with Dhaka Bank Limited was made against Share Application Money (IPO).

9.a Consolidated short term investment

BSRM Steels Limited 9.00  266,749,130  220,102,334 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  3,675,800  34,076,260 

 270,424,930  254,178,594 

10.00 Inventories 2015 2014
Qty. Amount Amount

Raw Material Metric Ton  Taka Taka  
Billets  119,469  3,874,719,508  8,684,672,880 
Packing Materials  112  6,619,847  7,686,115 
Direct Consumables  724,857  1,701,302 

 3,882,064,212  8,694,060,297 

Work-in-progress  2,885,874  - 

Finished Goods
Finished Goods-Own production  56,186  2,313,186,383  1,881,977,698 
Finished Goods-Procured  256  12,051,362  8,702,296 
Finished Goods-Others  3,041,821  - 

 56,442  2,328,279,566  1,890,679,994 
Stores and Spares
Mechanical stores  409,814,641  408,007,277 
MS Roll  5,631,366  18,533,808 
Electrical stores  203,411,874  199,091,899 
General stores  10,703,122  13,969,184 
Civil Store  13,040,441  21,951,183 

Others  26,890,642  21,473,014 

 669,492,086  683,026,365 
Fuel and Lubricants  7,241,160  6,690,083 

 6,889,962,898  11,274,456,739 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

10.a Consolidated inventories

BSRM Steels Limited 10.00  6,889,962,898  11,274,456,739 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  1,884,296,553  2,360,021,212 

Unrealized profit elimination  (514,607)  (7,141,226)

 8,773,744,844  13,627,336,725 

11.00  Trade & Other Receivables 

 Trade Receivables  11.01  2,015,372,386  2,463,282,259 

 Other Receivables  11.03  232,497,261  508,531,421 

 2,247,869,647  2,971,813,680 

The directors have estimated that the above receivables are good and realizable. No provision has been kept against 
these receivables.

11.01  Trade Receivables 

 Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Ltd.  772,465  109,526,139 

 BSRM Steel Mills Limited  1,778,389  32,205,780 

 BSRM Logistics Limited  259,600  259,600 

 BSRM Recycling Industries Limited  -  75,839,766 

 H Akberali & Co. Limited  31,640  - 

 BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  16,998,485  - 

 Other Parties 11.02  1,995,531,807  2,245,450,974 

 2,015,372,386  2,463,282,259 

11.02 Out of these receivables, there are pending litigations against 21 parties (worth Tk. 27,374,463). These receivables are 
secured by Post dated cheques. 

11.03  Other Receivables 

Interest Receivables  134,229,590  405,237,502 

Accrued Interest from FDR  9,780,088  11,102,876 

DEDO and Others Receivables  88,487,583  92,191,043 

 232,497,261  508,531,421 

11.04 Ageing of trade receivables are as follows-

Less than 3 months  1,713,967,443  2,201,670,586 

Over 3 months but less than 6 months  121,604,854  113,394,866 

Over 6 months  179,800,089  148,216,807 

 2,015,372,386  2,463,282,259 

11.a Consolidated trade and other receivables

BSRM Steels Limited 11.00  2,247,869,647  2,971,813,680 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  314,331,811  1,215,218 

Less: Intra group receivables  (16,998,485)  - 

 2,545,202,973  2,973,028,898 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

12.00 Current account with related companies
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited  439,638,033  1,303,031,742 
BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  395,858,419  542,787,176 
Chittagong Power Company Limited  447,643,657  263,263,550 
BSRM Logistics Limited  310,618,570  189,511,400 
BSRM Ispat Limited  275,389,027  175,316,500 
BSRM Metals Limited  58,296,932  32,070,000 
H Akberali & Co. Limited  59,065,664  39,999,321 
BSRM Steel Mills Limited  639,961,866  - 
BSRM Wires Limited  -  53,086,805 
BSRM Recycling Industries Limited  -  6,332,082 

 2,626,472,168  2,605,398,576 

All transactions among the related companies have been made through account payee cheques or bank transfers and 
interests were charged on all related companies’ balances.

12.a Consolidated current account with related companies
BSRM Steels Limited 12.00  2,626,472,168  2,605,398,576 
BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  127,606,057  977,959,133 
Less: Inter-company elimination  (395,858,419)  (542,787,176)

 2,358,219,806  3,040,570,533 

13.00 Advances, deposits and prepayments
Advances 13.01  2,536,051,427  989,896,920 
Deposits 13.04  16,222,963  15,162,714 
Prepayments 13.05  1,917,565  2,905,068 

 2,554,191,955  1,007,964,702 

13.01 Advances
Staff loan  1,457,478  1,491,362 
Advance Income tax-corporate  501,502,115  378,959,284 
Against expenses  54,179,907  104,231,187 
Bank guarantee margin  2,105,155  2,105,155 
Advance against L/C  3,327,436  1,402,331 
LC Margin  25,074,709  138,614,148 
Trade VAT account (Godown)  7,932  13,349 
VAT chargeable account (Godown)  6,961,289  4,389,210 
VAT current account  11,435,406  9,836,894 
Advance for Raw Materials purchase 13.02  1,930,000,000  - 
Share money deposit to BSRM Steel Mills Ltd. 13.03  -  348,854,000 

 2,536,051,427  989,896,920 

13.02 The company in its 207Ath Borad Meeting held on 21 October 2015 has decided to give advances of Tk. 150 Crore and 
Tk. 50 Crore to BSRM Steel Mills Limited and BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. respectively for purchasing billets. Accordingly 
the Company has provided Tk. 150 Crore to BSRM Steel Mills Limited and Tk. 43 Crore to BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 

13.03 The company in its 162nd Board Meeting held on 4th November 2012 has decided to invest Tk. 1.00 billion to BSRM Steel 
Mills Limited (BSML). Accordingly the Company has invested Tk. 451,146,000 and shares were also allotted by BSML. 
The company deposited Tk. 200,000,000 and Tk. 148,854,000 on 11.08.14 & 14.08.14 respectively to BSML’s bank ac-
count no. 0003-0210022524 at NCC Bank Limited, Agrabad Branch, Chittagong as share money. Shares have been issued 
against the said amount in 2015 accordingly.
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

13.04 Deposits
Ansar/VDP  1,260,752  1,260,752 
Bangladesh Telecommunications Limited (BTCL)  24,000  24,000 
City Cell  15,000  15,000 
Power Development Board  4,308,620  3,703,020 
Ranks Tel  10,000  10,000 
Karnaphuli Gas distribution Co. Limited  9,179,192  9,179,192 
Kolkata office premises  37,750  37,750 
Central Depository Bangladesh Limited  500,000  500,000 
BOC Bangladesh Ltd.  16,000  16,000 
Others  871,649  417,000 

 16,222,963  15,162,714 

13.05  Prepayments 
 BSTI License fees  750,200  2,250,400 
 Insurance  1,167,365  654,668 

 1,917,565  2,905,068 

13.06 The directors consider that all the above advances, deposits and prepayments are either adjustable or recoverable in kind 
or in cash and that no provision for these are required at this stage. 

13.07 An amount of Tk. 23,053,915.27 was claimed by Custom, Excise & VAT authority, Bondor circle, Narayangonj 
vide nothi no. 04/VAT/Warehouse (02)/Bondor circle/2012/207 dated 3rd November 2014 for trade VAT on sale of 
115,269 MT finished goods. The Company filed a writ petition no. 10833 of 2014 before the Hon’ble High Court 
Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh and the court stayed the claim. In view of above, no provision for this 
claim has been made in the financial statements. 

13.a Consolidated advances, deposits and prepayments
BSRM Steels Limited 13.00  2,554,191,955  1,007,964,702 
BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  314,758,297  386,429,804 
Less: Intra group elimination  (430,000,000)  - 

 2,438,950,252  1,394,394,506 

14.00 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 14.01  2,319,225  2,496,048 
Cash at banks 14.02  256,153,075  211,644,064 
Fixed deposit 14.04  210,413,784  306,952,664 

 468,886,084  521,092,776 

14.01 Cash In hand

Head office  257,476  157,473 

Factory office  674,780  397,339 

Dhaka office  701,969  1,456,705 

Sylhet office  100,000  100,000 

Comilla office  65,000  65,000 

Khulna office  250,000  68,925 

Bogra office  200,000  200,000 

Rangpur office  20,000  20,000 

Barishal office  50,000  30,606 

 2,319,225  2,496,048 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

14.02 Cash at Banks

Name of the Banks Branch Account type

Agrani Bank Limited Laldighi East Current  (1,928,537)  3,176,816 
Agrani Bank Limited- Escrow Laldighi East Escrow  37,447  39,097 
Agrani Bank Limited Colonel Hat Current  -  46,129 
Agrani Bank Limited Thomson Bridge Current  -  143,050 
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Agrabad Current  12,078,699  7,384,949 
Bank Asia  Limited Agrabad Current  22,122  4,394,195 
BASIC Bank Limited Dewanhat Current  1,621,097  1,115,653 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC Agrabad Current  226,767  284,064 
Dhaka Bank Limited Jubilee Road Current  5,209,686  6,711,630 
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited Jubilee Road Current  134,277,858  102,118,536 
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited Agrabad Current  84,646  92,678 
Eastern Bank Limited Agrabad Current  3,610,910  42,539 
EXIM Bank Limited Jubilee Road Current  4,946,015  - 
Habib Bank Limited Laldighi Current  4,427,765  39,405,029 
HSBC Agrabad Current  (18,865,378)  (13,402,029)
HSBC -STD A/c Agrabad STD  -  4,621 
HSBC- USD Exporter’s A/C Agrabad USD  6,268,421  3,854,947 
HSBC-MDA USD  A/C Agrabad USD  5,897,849  3,749,301 
IFIC Bank Limited Agrabad Current  65,316  117,185 
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Jubilee Road Current  30,495,314  19,234,398 
Jamuna Bank Limited Khatungong Current  122,478  1,199,844 
Mercantile Bank Limited Jubilee Road Current  2  1,308 
Mutual Trust Bank Limited CDA Avenue Current  3,505,753  26,725 
National Bank Limited Jubilee Road Current  8,720,189  3,868,827 
NCC Bank Ltd. Agrabad Current  18,016  1,170,659 
NRB Bank Limited Agrabad Current  1,661,943  541,626 
One Bank Limited Agrabad Current  927,595  9,113,217 
Prime Bank Limited OR Nizam Road Current  12,955,339  11,555,765 
Premier Bank Limited Agrabad Current  3,691  13,871 
SBAC Bank Limited Agrabad Current  126,698  - 
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited Jubilee Road Current  1,766,605  2,208,310 
Social Islami Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road Current  7,405,052  23,416 
Sonali Bank Cable Shilpa, Khulna STD  304,146  157,976 
Sonali Bank Kalibari Current  (1,738,698)  781,614 
Southeast Bank Ltd. Pahartali Current  7,044,244  6,354,895 
Standard Chartered Bank Agrabad Current  (9,996,664)  (26,556,810)
Standard Chartered Bank Gulshan Current  1,216  3,366 
State Bank of India Chittagong Current  466,857  21,227 
The City Bank Limited VIP Road, Dhaka Current  1,508,930  26,422 
The City Bank Limited Agrabad Current  459,312  3,863,593 
The Trust Bank Limited CDA Avenue Current  20,019,963  62,341 
United Commercial Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road Current  5,656,782  11,572,855 
Uttara Bank Limited Agrabad Current  9,228  868,817 
Sub total  249,424,674  205,392,652 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

HSBC Bank 14.03

HSBC Bank Agrabad STD  432,371  425,651 

HSBC Bank Agrabad EURO  -  28,226 

HSBC Bank Agrabad GBP  -  759 

HSBC Bank Agrabad USD  -  17,318 

HSBC Bank Agrabad Dividend  6,296,030  5,779,458 

Sub total  6,728,401  6,251,412 

Grand Total  256,153,075  211,644,064 

14.03 These accounts were opened for deposit of Share Money (IPO) and payment of dividend. Balances in these accounts 
represent amount refundable to the applicants to whom shares were not allotted and unclaimed dividend.

14.04 Fixed Deposits 2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Name of the banks Tenure Purpose Rate of Interest

AB Bank Ltd. 3 months LC Margin 6.75% ~ 8%  18,847,771  42,126,633 

Al Arafah Islami Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 8.5% ~ 10.85%  -  22,186,616 

Bank Al Falah Limited 3 months LC Margin 12%  -  - 

Bank Asia Limited 3 months LC Margin 8%  31,653,283  34,100,574 

Commercial Bank of Ceylon plc 3 months LC Margin 5%  13,428,617  24,097,797 

The City Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 6% ~ 8.25%  18,145,437  11,859,035 

Dhaka Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 5.5% ~ 6.75%  14,860,622  23,808,613 

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 5% ~ 6%  19,910,250  30,926,025 

Habib Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 6%  7,700,000  - 

IFIC Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 7%  280,000  10,000,000 

Jamuna Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 8%  7,284,000  - 

Mercantile Bank Limited 3 months BG & LC 
Margin

7%  6,933,384  10,461,644 

NCC Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 8%  13,212,929  42,925,091 

National Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 9%  -  12,535,913 

One Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 8.8%  -  10,293,000 

Pubali Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 11%  -  - 

State Bank of India 3 months LC Margin 8.75%  13,540,000  - 

Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 8.50%  -  10,692,742 

Social Islami Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 11%  -  - 

Trust Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 6% ~ 6.75%  13,613,262  10,412,485 

United Commercial Bank Ltd. 3 months LC Margin 6% ~ 7.5%  31,004,229  - 

Uttara Bank Limited 3 months LC Margin 7.8%  -  10,526,496 

 210,413,784  306,952,664 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

14.a Consolidated cash and cash equivalents

BSRM Steels Limited 14.00 468,886,084 521,092,776 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 72,232,701 52,758,575 

541,118,785 573,851,351 

15.00 Share capital

Authorized capital

475,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each 4,750,000,000 4,750,000,000 

25,000,000 Preference Shares of Tk. 10 each 250,000,000 250,000,000 

5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up capital

145,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each 1,450,000,000 1,450,000,000 

104,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each 1,045,000,000 1,045,000,000 

fully paid-up for consideration other than cash 

21,750,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each 217,500,000 217,500,000 

fully paid-up as Bonus Shares (For the Year 2009)

54,250,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each 542,500,000 542,500,000 

fully paid up as Bonus Shares (For the year 2010)

16,275,000 Ordinary Shares of TK. 10 each 162,750,000 162,750,000 

Fully paid-up as Bonus Shares (For the year 2012)

3,417,750,000 3,417,750,000 

15.01 Classification of shares by holding

Class by number of shares
No. of 

Holders
No. of Shares Holding (%) 

Less than 500 4,875 687,444 0.20%

From 500 to 5,000 8,402 12,336,320 3.61%

From 5,001 to 10,000 751 5,488,154 1.61%

From 10,001 to 20,000 370 5,348,967 1.57%

From 20,001 to 30,000 137 3,415,041 1.00%

From 30,001 to 40,000 89 3,108,901 0.91%

From 40,001 to 50,000 40 1,847,653 0.54%

From 50,001 to 100,000 83 6,035,240 1.77%

From 100,001 to 1,000,000 90 25,475,257 7.45%

From 1,000,001 and above 21 278,032,023 81.35%

14,858 341,775,000 100%
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15.02 Composition of Shareholders at 31 December 2015

Name of shareholders
No. of 

Holders
No. of Shares  Holding (%) 

Sponsor Shareholders 7 165,361,665 48.38%

Foreign Shareholders 7 1,230,421 0.36%

Other Shareholders 14,844 175,182,914 51.26%
14,858 341,775,000 100%

Notes 
2015 2014
Taka Taka 

15.03 Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid/ payable by the 
company for the year:

15% Cash dividend (Tk. 1.5) per qualifying ordinary share 512,662,500 512,662,500 
(For 2014 and 2013)

During the year 2015, no amount was remitted in foreign currencies to non-resident shareholders as dividend.

After the reporting date, the following dividends were proposed by the Board of directors.

30% Cash dividend (Tk. 3) per qualifying ordinary share 1,025,325,000 -

15% Cash dividend (Tk. 1.5) per qualifying ordinary share  - 512,662,500 
1,025,325,000 512,662,500

16.00 Long term borrowings- non current portion
BD Finance & Investment Co. Ltd. 16.02 111,241,937 167,469,149 

IPDC Limited 16.03 - 58,304,999 

Jamuna Bank Limited 16.04 5,045,562 3,969,313 

Meghna Bank Limited 16.05 112,050,395 155,230,764 

United Leasing Co. Limited 16.06 29,096,839 46,922,934 

Agrani Bank Limited 16.07 283,365,041 - 

Al Arafah Islami Bank Limited 16.08 7,589,189 - 

548,388,963 431,897,159 

16.01 Term loan for BMRE

Due within one (1) year 21.07 - 72,176,164 

Due after more than one (1) year - - 

- 72,176,164 

Terms of BMRE loan:

Lenders

Agrani Bank Ltd. has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 32 crore as term loan against BMRE. 

Total loan facilities: Tk. 32 crore.

Interest rate

Interest rate was charged @ 12% per annum on half-yearly basis.

Disbursement
The first disbursement was made on 26.09.2010.
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Repayments
Above term loan has been re-paid by  48 monthly installments starting from October 2011.

Securities
Registered Mortgage on project land, building on first ranking parri passu basis and hypothecation of Machinery, Furniture 
& Fixtures, Equipment etc.

Purpose
For acquisition of plant and machineries to enhance the production from 375,000 Metric Tons per year to 500,000 Metric 
Tons per year.

Notes 
2015 2014
Taka Taka 

16.02 BD Finance & Investment Co. Ltd.
Due within one (1) year 21.07  56,106,148  48,417,560 

Due after more than one (1) year 16.00  111,241,937  167,469,149 
 167,348,085  215,886,709 

Terms of loan:

Lenders:
BD Finance has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 25 crore as term loan and disbursed the full amount within 2013. 

Total loan facilities: Tk. 25 crore.

Interest rate:
Interest rate is 12% - 14% (2014: 15%) per annum and is calculated on monthly basis.

Disbursement:
Full disbursement was made on 26.08.2013.

Repayments
Above term loan is being re-paid in 60 monthly installments starting from September 2013.

Securities:
Post dated cheques for the total amount, Post dated cheques for monthly loan installments, personal guarantee of all direc-
tors of the company, corporate guarantee of H. Akberali & Co. Ltd.

Purpose:
Notes 

2015 2014
To meet working capital requirement. Taka Taka 

16.03 IPDC Limited
Due within one (1) year 21.07 56,889,847 50,125,183 

Due after more than one (1) year 16.00 - 58,304,999 
56,889,847 108,430,182 

Terms of loan:

Lenders:
Industrial Promotional and Development Company of Bangladesh has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 15 crore as term loan 
and disbursed the full amount within 2013. 

Total loan facilities: Tk. 15 crore.

Interest rate:

Interest rate is 13%  per annum.
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Disbursement:

Full disbursement was made on 17.12.2013.

Repayments

Above term loan is being re-paid in 12 quarterly installments starting from March 2014.

Securities:

Floating charge by way of hypothecation on all the movable assets of BSL duly registered with RJSC, Legally enforceable 
Corporate Guarantee of BSRM Limited, Pledge of dematted shares in the capital of BSRMSL covering 125% of exposure 
against this facility, Personal Guarantee of all the sponsor directors, Post dated cheques for the total amount, Post dated 
cheques for quarterly loan installments, Demand Promissory note along with letter of continuation.

Purpose:

To meet working capital requirement.

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

16.04 Jamuna Bank Limited

Due within one (1) year 21.07  20,327,362  6,626,212 

Due after more than one (1) year 16.00  5,045,562  3,969,313 

 25,372,924  10,595,525 

Terms of loan:

Lenders:

Jamuna Bank Limited has sanctioned Tk. 3.767 crore and Tk. 1 crore as term loan and disbursed Tk. 3.756 crore up to the 
reporting period.

Total loan facilities: Tk. 3.767 crore.

Interest rate:

Interest rate is 13% - 14% per annum.

Disbursement:

Last disbursement was made on 08.04.2015.

Repayments

Above term loan will be  re-paid in 8 quarterly installments (with six months’ grace period).

Securities:

Modification of charge with RJSC on inventory and machinery installed through BMRE. Cross corporate guarantee of the 
company and also personal guarantee of all directors. Signed security cheques covering each installment.

Purpose:

To import Magnet Cranes for own use.
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

16.05 Meghna Bank Limited

Due within one (1) year 21.07  41,530,113  35,900,819 

Due after more than one (1) year 16.00  112,050,395  155,230,764 

 153,580,508  191,131,583 

Terms of loan:

Lenders:

Meghna Bank Limited has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 20 crore as term loan and disbursed the full amount within 2014. 

Total loan facilities: Tk. 20 crore.

Interest rate:

Interest rate is 13.5% - 14% per annum.

Disbursement:

Full disbursement was made on 03.02.2014.

Repayments

Above term loan is being re-paid in 54 monthly installments starting from September 2014.

Securities:

Lien of 29.20 lac shares of BSRM Steels Limited and personal guarantee of all directors of the company. Post dated cheques 
covering the facility.

Purpose:

To set up a warehouse at Jangal, Madanpur, Narayangonj.

Notes 
2015 2014

16.06 United Leasing Co. Limited Taka Taka 

Due within one (1) year 21.07  17,754,589  15,236,008 

Due after more than one (1) year 16.00  29,096,839  46,922,934 

 46,851,428  62,158,942 

Terms of loan:

Lenders:

United Leasing Company has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 7 crore as term loan and disbursed the full amount within 2014. 

Total loan facilities: Tk. 7 crore.

Interest rate:

Interest rate is 12% - 14% per annum.

Disbursement:

Full disbursement was made on 29.05.2014.

Repayments

Above term loan is being re-paid in 48 monthly installments starting from June 2014.
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Securities:

Charge creation with RJSC on all fixed and floating assets covering value of loan. Personal guarantee of all directors and a 
post dated cheque amount of Tk. 94,365,120 in favour of ULC to cover the loan.

Purpose:

To meet working capital requirement.

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

16.07 Agrani Bank Limited

Due within one (1) year  -  - 

Due more than one (1) year 16.00  283,365,041  - 

 283,365,041  - 

Terms of loan:

Total Loan facility:

Tk.55 Crore

Interest Rate:

14.5% - 15.50%.p.a.and subject to change

Disbursement:

The last disbursement was made on 17.06.15.

Repayment:

Loan facility will be repaid in 60 monthly installment.

Securities:

 i) Registered mortgage of Tk 55 crore on project land building and hypothecation of machinery.                    

ii) Personal guarantee of all the directors of the company.                                   

iii) Corporate guarantee of BSRM Group.

Purpose:

For acquisition of plant machineries to enhance the production from 600,000 Metric Tons to 700,000 Metric Tons.

Notes 
2015 2014

16.08 Al Arafah Islami Bank Limited Taka Taka 

Due within one (1) year 21.07  4,241,957  - 

Due after more than one (1) year 16.00  7,589,189  - 

 11,831,146  - 

Terms of loan:

Total Loan facility:

TK.137.7 lac

Interest Rate:

13% per annum subject to be changed by the bank from time to 
time.

Disbursement:

The first disbursement was made on 21 June 2015.

Repayment:

In 36 equal monthly installments along with monthly rent to be started from the 1st month of disbursement and be realized 
within the 10th of every month.
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Securities:

i) Hypothecation of machinery to be imported as per quotation till full  adjustment of bank’s dues. 

ii) LC @ 5% cash margin and HPSM (machinery ) @ 10% client equity. 

iii) personal guarantee of all directors of the company.                                          

iv) Company’s equity of Tk 15.30 lac to be deposited first before Creating  HPSM (machinery).                                                                

v) Required number of post dated cheques to be submitted for realization of monthly installment & one cheque covering 
the limit.      

vi) Corporate guarantee of BSRM Wires Ltd.

Purpose:

To Import Capital Machinery from South Korea.

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

16.a Consolidated long term borrowings- non current portion

BSRM Steels Limited 16.00 548,388,963 431,897,159 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 110,996,642 182,703,317 

659,385,605 614,600,476 

17.00 Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity

Opening balance 39,019,866 26,291,272 

Provision made during the period 27.04, 
28 & 29

17,080,972 12,842,618 

56,100,838 39,133,890 

Payment made during the period (225,014) (114,024)

55,875,824 39,019,866 

17.a Consolidated defined benefit obligations - Gratuity

BSRM Steels Limited 17.00 55,875,824 39,019,866 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 18,707,622 14,009,609 

74,583,446 53,029,475 

18.00 Current tax liability

Opening balance 495,092,588 496,867,314 

Add: Provided for the year 560,347,182 369,138,077 

Less: Over Provision for Previous year (167,010,975) - 

393,336,207 369,138,077 

888,428,795 866,005,391 

Income tax paid (328,081,613) (370,912,803)

Closing balance 560,347,182 495,092,588 
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Year wise income taxes assessment status is as follows:

Accounting 
 Year

Assessment 
Year

Opening 
balance  
(Taka)

Charged/ (credited) 
to profit or loss 

(Taka)

Adjusted/paid 
during the year 

(Taka)

Closing                   
balance 
(Taka)

Remarks

Prior to 2013 - - - - - 
Assessment 
completed

2013 2014-2015 - - - - 
Under Tax 

audit

2014 2015-2016 495,092,588 (167,010,975) (328,081,613) - 
Assessment 
completed

2015 2015-2016  - 560,347,182 560,347,182 
Return due by 
15 July 2016

18.01 The company, following decision of the Board of Directors in its Meeting held on 7 March, 2012 filed a Writ Petition on 22 
March, 2012 before the High Court Division of Supreme Court of Bangladesh challenging the legality of Section 16CCC 
of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 imposing minimum income tax of 0.50% (currently 0.30%) of the gross receipts of the 
company regardless of profit or loss as per financial statements. Accordingly, the High Court issued a Rule Nisi calling the 
Government Authorities to show cause as to why Section 16CCC of the Income Tax Ordinance 1984 should not be declared 
to be illegal and of no legal effect and pending hearing of the Rule restrained the Government Authorities from charging 
minimum tax under the said Section. In view of above, no provision for income tax up to 2012 envisaged u/s 16CCC has 
been made in the financial statements. 

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

18.a Consolidated current tax liability

BSRM Steels Limited 18.00 560,347,182 495,092,588 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  -  - 

560,347,182 495,092,588 

19.00 Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability has been calculated below at the applicable tax rate on the difference between the carrying value of 
property, plant and equipment as per financial statements and tax written down value and liability for gratuity obligation.

Opening balance 729,338,236 680,299,907 

Provided/ (adjusted) during the year:

Investments in associates 83,053,812 - 

Adjusted for gratuity (3,238,493) (3,500,363)

Deferred tax to revaluation surplus of PPE (excluding land) (10,875,188) - 

For temporary difference of PPE (excluding land) 38,920,108 58,834,854 

Adjusted for impact of excess depreciation on revaluation surplus (5,437,594) (6,296,162)

Closing balance 831,760,881 729,338,236 
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Reconciliation of Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) is as follows:

Rate 
applied

Carrying 
amount 

Tax base
Taxable/ (Deductible) 
temporary difference

Deferred tax 
Liability/ (Asset)

Taka Taka Taka Taka 

As on 31 December 2015

Property, plant and
equipment (other than land)

25% 4,714,608,845 1,663,904,744 3,050,704,101 762,676,025 

Intangible assets (Software) 25% - - - - 

Provision for gratuity 25% (55,875,824) - (55,875,824) (13,968,956)

Investment in Associates 15% - 20% 1,569,466,903 1,000,000,000 569,466,903 83,053,812 

Deferred tax liability 831,760,881 

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

19.a Consolidated deferred tax liability

BSRM Steels Limited 19.00 831,760,881 729,338,236 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 399,924,447 159,869,074 

1,231,685,328 889,207,310 

20.00 Trade payables

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited - 45,173,981 

BSRM Logistics Limited 9,428,567 8,111,629 

Others 24,194,965 - 

33,623,532 53,285,610 

This represents amounts payable against supply of raw materials and services.

20.a Consolidated trade payables

BSRM Steels Limited 20.00 33,623,532 53,285,610 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 44,861,480 43,951,569 

Less: Intra group elimination (16,998,485) - 

61,486,527 97,237,179 

21.00 Short term borrowings

Short term borrowings 21.01 12,650,676,709 17,024,368,151 

Long term borrowings-current portion 21.07 196,850,016 228,481,946 

12,847,526,725 17,252,850,097 

21.01 Short term borrowings 

Loan  against Trust Receipt (LATR) 21.02 45,151,458 344,471,999 

Time loan 21.03 3,300,397,200 1,789,574,763 

Demand Loan 21.04 5,459,085,534 3,958,717,700 

Bank overdraft and cash credit 21.05 671,099,853 190,029,502 

Factoring Loan-United Leasing Co. Limited 18,974,277 34,515,394 

Liability for accepted bills for payment (ABP) 21.06 3,155,968,387 10,707,058,793 

12,650,676,709 17,024,368,151 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

21.02 Loan  against Trust Receipt (LATR)
Al Arafah Islami Bank Limited 2,444,040 1,327,378 
IFIC Bank Limited 1,784,239 16,566,766 
Mercantile Bank Limited 125,406 13,744,673 
Premier Bank Limited 12,290,398 1,512,180 
Uttara Bank Limited 28,507,375 12,692,692 
HSBC Limited - 10,218,396 
National Credit and Commerce Bank Limited - 217,797,582 
Pubali Bank Limited - 1,088,343 
Social Islami Bank Limited - 69,523,989 

45,151,458 344,471,999 

21.03 Time Loan
Jamuna Bank Limited 261,026,673 432,360,045 
Uttara Bank Limited 201,565,000 507,922,630 
Prime Bank Limited 1,945,035,084 - 
HSBC Limited 300,000,000 - 
IPDC Limited 50,179,236 - 
Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited 523,222,223 - 
AB Bank Limited 19,368,984 - 
BRAC Bank Limited - 609,626,796 
NRB Bank Limited - 99,766,446 
United Commercial Bank Limited - 139,898,846 

3,300,397,200 1,789,574,763 

21.04 Demand Loan
Eastern Bank Limited 2,149,150,455 1,172,323,988 
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited 1,029,579,249 222,616,283 
The City Bank Limited 821,011,167 884,666,839 
Standard Chartered Bank 399,727,500 40,166,084 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon plc 526,343,889 - 
IFIC Bank Limited 533,273,274 - 
Bank Asia Limited - 696,659,006 
National Credit & Commerce Bank Limited - 942,285,500 

5,459,085,534 3,958,717,700 

21.05 Bank overdraft, SOD and cash credit
Bank Alfalah Limited - OD 101,073,551 94,503,386 
AB Bank Limited - OD 5,355,803 204,285 
BRAC Bank Limited - OD 303,837,903 9,421,293 
Dhaka Bank Limited - OD 206,341 603,498 
Dutch Bangla Bank  Limited - OD 175,053,660 138,509,041 
National Credit and Commerce Bank Limited - CC 45,892,039 (137,903,261)
National Credit and Commerce Bank Limited - SOD 16,230,854 1,923,174 
Premier Bank Limited - SOD 12,106,927 23,677,876 
Premier Bank Limited - CC 14,397,535 20,239,270 
Pubali Bank Limited 119,462 13,001,323 
South Bangla Agriculture & Commerce Bank Limited - SOD (1,368,106) 22,031,331 
Uttara Bank Limited - CC (1,806,116) 3,818,286 

671,099,853 190,029,502 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

21.06 Liability for accepted bills for payment (ABP)

AB Bank Limited 271,682,041 592,605,088 

Bank Asia Limited 146,085,458 1,060,461,498 

Commercial Bank of Ceylon plc. 131,546,305 428,166,895 

Dhaka Bank Limited 130,237,715 230,226,434 

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited 252,980,806 625,207,492 

Eastern Bank Limited 125,456,705 633,576,519 

Habib Bank Limited 146,308,563 208,430,300 

HSBC Limited 252,074,183 589,317,090 

IFIC Bank Limited 127,406,460 443,406,915 

Mercantile Bank Limited 131,606,218 337,355,379 

National Credit and Commerce Bank Limited 257,501,860 617,198,633 

Prime Bank Limited 146,190,637 218,253,945 

Shajalal Islami Bank Limited 130,237,291 187,870,474 

Standard Chartered Bank 129,538,217 1,038,702,710 

Trust Bank Limited 120,295,106 841,126,498 

United Commercial Bank Limited 253,152,142 210,264,969 

BRAC Bank Limited 120,288,315 - 

Jamuna Bank Limited 143,792,199 - 

State Bank of India 139,588,166 - 

Al Arafah Bank Limited - 450,385,930 

Islami Bank Limited - 630,376,119 

National Bank Limited - 269,670,042 

One Bank Limited - 221,151,545 

Pubali Bank Limited - 275,307,365 

Premier Bank Limited - 192,529,940 

The City Bank Limited - 185,349,216 

Uttara Bank Limited - 220,117,797 

3,155,968,387 10,707,058,793 

21.07 Long term borrowings-current portion

This represent current portion of long term loans from financial institutions which are repayable within next twelve months 
from January, 2016 and consist of as follows:

Term loan for BMRE 16.01 - 72,176,164 

BD Finance & Investment Co. Ltd. 16.02 56,106,148 48,417,560 

IPDC Limited 16.03 56,889,847 50,125,183 

Jamuna Bank Limited 16.04 20,327,362 6,626,212 

Meghna Bank Limited 16.05 41,530,113 35,900,819 

United Leasing Co. Limited 16.06 17,754,589 15,236,008 

Al Arafah Islami Bank Limited 16.08 4,241,957  - 

196,850,016 228,481,946 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

21.a Consolidated short term borrowings

BSRM Steels Limited 21.00 12,847,526,725 17,252,850,097 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 1,860,647,589 3,423,166,842 

14,708,174,314 20,676,016,939 

22.00 Current account with related companies - - 

22.a Consolidated current account with related companies

BSRM Steels Limited 22.00 - - 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 395,858,419 544,432,310 

Less: Intra group elimination (395,858,419) (542,787,176)

- 1,645,134 

23.00 Liabilities for expenses

Advertisement expenses 48,509,041 45,723,444 

Audit Fees 569,250 445,500 

Bank Guarantee 993,569 17,707,745 

Brokerage and commission 60,000,000 65,400,000 

C & F Bill Payable 201,279 158,774 

Carrying expenses 99,819,285 157,196,454 

Consultancy fees 113,483 559,930 

Domiciliary expenses 798,051 692,285 

Gas bill payable 10,000,000 6,219,628 

Godown rent 1,254,669 - 

Liability against supply of goods / services 3,801,544 21,016,850 

Printing and stationeries 4,273,867 372,613 

Production incentive payables 3,325 945,588 

Rent payables 18,587 6,805 

Salary & Allowances 2,091,029 17,547,862 

Sales promotion expenses 2,870,829 2,315,345 

Travelling Bill 3,700 750 

Others 1,890,628 25,135,389 

237,212,136 361,444,962 

23.a Consolidated liabilities for expenses

BSRM Steels Limited 23.00 237,212,136 361,444,962 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 19,958,141 18,762,580 

257,170,277 380,207,542 

24.00 Provision for WPPF and Welfare Fund

Opening balance 79,677,893 95,872,044 

Add: Provided during the year 132,559,843 79,677,893 

Less: Paid during the year (79,677,893) (95,872,044)

Closing balance 132,559,843 79,677,893 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

24.a Consolidated provision for WPPF and Welfare Fund

BSRM Steels Limited 24.00 132,559,843 79,677,893 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 13,096,948 11,992,391 

145,656,791 91,670,284 

24.a.i Consolidated contribution to WPPF and Welfare Fund

BSRM Steels Limited 24.00 132,559,843 79,677,893 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 13,096,948 11,992,391 

145,656,791 91,670,284 

25.00 Other liabilities

Advance against sales 334,761,177 137,137,747 

Income Tax deducted at source from salary - 2,047,117 

Security Deposit 20,424,283 15,888,625 

Income Tax deducted at source-others 3,668,136 7,373,390 

VAT deducted at source 1,176,944 1,359,716 

Earnest/Retention Money 9,516,877 17,703,841 

Liability against fractional bonus share 1,163,929 1,163,929 

Unclaimed dividend 10,743,372 7,206,599 

Liability against share application money 7,581,814 7,581,814 

Interest payable 11,582,900 3,041,622 

Provision for bad debts 621,777 621,777 

Provident fund 1,276,003 1,822,746 

402,517,212 202,948,923 

Income Tax and VAT deducted at source have subsequently been deposited to the Government Exchequer.

25.a Consolidated other liabilities

BSRM Steels Limited 25.00  402,517,212  202,948,923 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.  443,731,904  110,956,871 

Less: Intra group elimination  (430,000,000)  - 

 416,249,116  313,905,794 

26.00 Revenue

Xtreme 500W  30,277,443,123  36,882,370,602 

D-Bar Grade-B420DWR  1,286,976,758  97,097,872 

D-Bar GR 400  182,218,238  941,661,831 

D-Bar Grade-75  265,293,328  223,489,460 

D-Bar GR300  24,230,518  - 

Miss Rolls  279,938,597  391,316,989 

 32,316,100,562  38,535,936,754 

26.01 Break-up of Revenue

Local sales  31,073,168,721  37,479,406,719 

Export sales  1,242,931,841  1,056,530,035 

 32,316,100,562  38,535,936,754 

Total export sales for the period was USD 15,942,023 against export of  23,733.01 MT of goods.
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 
26.a Consolidated revenue

BSRM Steels Limited 26.00 32,316,100,562 38,535,936,754 
BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 7,916,119,496 9,374,112,186 
Less: Intra group sales by subsidiary (6,738,991,407) (9,338,943,637)

33,493,228,651 38,571,105,303 

 27.00 Cost of sales
Cost of sales- own production 27.01 27,085,241,456  35,455,365,915 
Cost of sales-finished goods procured and sold 27.02 862,205,691  273,246,337 

27,947,447,147 35,728,612,252 

 27.01 Cost of sales-own production
Opening stock of raw materials 8,694,060,297 523,010,501 
Add: Purchase 21,138,945,355 39,463,570,525 

29,833,005,652 39,986,581,026 
Less: Closing stock of raw materials 10.00 (3,882,064,212) (8,694,060,297)
Raw materials consumed 25,950,941,440 31,292,520,729 

Add: Manufacturing expenses
Salary and wages 130,612,454 112,253,880 
Overtime 2,203,215 1,925,779 
Casual wages 6,071,592 10,114,057 
Factory overhead 27.04 155,288,351 173,669,592 
Power 346,163,628 352,134,455 
Gas 115,170,784 105,255,777 
Management expenses 180,855,914 171,664,309 
Fuel and Lubricants consumption 161,115,779 202,914,871 
Mechanical store consumption 154,530,506 133,451,642 
MS Roll consumption 42,698,884 39,629,960 
Electrical store consumption 53,010,738 27,557,879 
General store consumed 6,053,057 5,217,351 
Rental expenses 5,436,924 2,772,508 
Depreciation 4.00 209,182,749 201,834,665 

1,568,394,575 1,540,396,725 
Cost of Goods Manufactured 27,519,336,015 32,832,917,454 
Less: Closing stock of Work-in-Progress (2,885,874) - 

27,516,450,141 32,832,917,454 
Add: Opening stock of Finished Goods 1,881,977,698 4,504,426,159 

29,398,427,839 37,337,343,613 
Less: Closing stock of Finished Goods 10.00 (2,313,186,383) (1,881,977,698)
Cost of sales - own production 27,085,241,456 35,455,365,915 

 27.02 Cost of sales-finished goods procured and sold

Opening stock of finished goods 8,702,296 52,542,652 
Add: Finished goods purchased from outside 868,596,578 229,405,981 

877,298,874 281,948,633 
Less: Closing stock of finished goods 10.00 (15,093,183) (8,702,296)
Cost of sales-finished goods procured and sold 862,205,691 273,246,337 
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Notes 
2015 2014

 27.03 Quantitative movement of inventories M. Tons M. Tons
Raw Materials
Opening stock 182,813 10,744 
Add: Imported during the year 314,386 567,543 
Add: Purchased from related companies 240,402 242,774 

737,601 821,061 
Less: Consumed /Sold during the year 618,293 640,892 
Add: Adjustment / Return 161 2,644 
Closing stock 119,469 182,813 

Finished Goods
Opening stock 37,372 89,458 
Add: Produced during the year 602,832 623,918 
Add: Purchased from related companies & others 17,183 3,799 
Add: Stock adjustment 3,567 - 
Stock available for sale 660,954 717,175 
Less: Sold during the period 604,513 679,803 
Closing stock 56,442 37,372 

 27.04 Factory overhead Taka Taka 
Bonus 4,774,257 4,311,950 
Car Allowance 1,018,849 1,055,364 
Carrying charges -Finished goods 31,329,527 57,413,326 
Carrying charges -Raw materials 66,459,308 68,233,484 
Consulting Fees 677,011 1,110,950 
Conveyance expenses 7,694,805 7,262,544 
Domiciliary Expenses 504,877 5,958 
Electric expenses 786,554 192,853 

Entertainment 4,105,084 3,770,277 
Ex-Gratia allowance 145,700 162,950 
Factory office expenses 152,018 353,339 
Fees & Renewals 78,456 622,235 
Gratuity 17.00 8,860,031 6,589,631 
Guest house expenses 548,975 525,151 
Guest house rent 1,704,700 1,474,610 
Insurance expenses 3,183,911 3,463,926 
Leave assistance 30,000 95,000 
Medical expenses 651,506 1,418,688 
Mobile/Telephone expenses 2,900 13,200 
Motor Car Expenses 231,880 291,648 
Paper and periodical 6,920 7,706 
Postage and telegram 18,010 20,025 
Repair and maintenance of buildings 5,495,093 1,722,992 
Repair and maintenance of machineries 10,919,809 4,513,424 
Repairs and maintenance- others 2,267,546 6,323,036 
Stationery 2,708,130 1,835,854 
Testing charges 50,100 32,300 
Travelling Expenses 882,395 602,993 
Generator expenses - 244,178 

155,288,351 173,669,592 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

 27.05 Value of imports on C.I.F basis

Raw materials 10,174,663,834 26,934,627,345 

Components and spare parts 210,680,424 210,342,924 

Capital goods 393,343,474 42,477,230 

 27.06 Consumption of imported and domestic materials and spares

2015 2014

Raw materials: Taka % Taka % 

Imported 14,523,905,379 56% 20,992,727,284 67%

Local 11,427,036,061 44% 10,299,793,445 33%

25,950,941,440 100% 31,292,520,729 100%

Spare parts and components:

Imported 223,344,074 54% 174,075,209 43%

Local 194,064,890 46% 234,696,494 57%

417,408,964 100% 408,771,703 100%

 27.a  Consolidated cost of sales

BSRM Steels Limited 27.00 27,947,447,147 35,728,612,252 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 7,476,448,079 8,687,937,171 

Less: Intra group sales by subsidiary to BSRM Steels Limited (6,738,991,407) (9,338,943,637)

Less: Adjustment for unrealized profit on opening inventory (7,141,226) (1,656,093)

Add: Provision for unrealized profit on closing inventory 514,607 7,141,226 

28,678,277,200 35,083,090,919 

 28.00 Selling and distribution costs

Advertisement 168,997,780 162,722,247 

Brokerage and commission 99,386,688 151,012,413 

Car allowance 2,682,540 1,718,000 

Carriage on sales 278,353,003 217,512,214 

Conveyance expenses 3,222,579 3,246,826 

Depreciation expenses 4.00 11,813,911 3,602,040 

Electricity expenses-Depot 1,611,552 1,405,071 

Entertainment 13,593,615 17,787,642 

Export charges 2,118,062 2,871,302 

Fees & Renewals 161,522 1,252,516 

Generator Rent & fuel 34,521 138,975 

Gratuity expenses 17.00 2,105,687 2,829,537 

Internet expenses 300,521 429,309 

Leave assistance 265,239 120,000 

Legal expenses 6,058 61,760 

Medical expenses 514,610 488,968 

Motor car expenses 35,353 3,076,359 

Motor cycle allowance 1,372,103 941,787 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Office expenses 1,243,927 2,441,402 

Paper & periodicals 38,015 82,069 

Printing Charges 10,630,864 4,644,149 

Repair and maintenance of building 763,802 144,356 

Repair and maintenance- others 1,227,045 41,725 

Salaries & Allowances 73,386,572 49,159,781 

Sales promotion expenses 79,952,772 32,912,986 

Stationery expenses 168,873 447,304 

Testing Charges 2,093,289 1,629,420 

Travelling expenses 8,291,473 6,550,906 

Warehouse rent 3,332,213 3,101,367 

Royalty Expenses 28.01 90,676,909 - 

Bad & Doubtful Debt expenses 266,795 - 

Loss on Goods in Transit - 437,356 

Professional & consultant fee - 168,900 

858,647,893 672,978,687 

 28.01 The trademark ‘Xtreme 500W’ has been registered in the name of  ‘H. Akberali & Co. Limited’ (HACL) from the department 
of Patents, Designs and Trademark of Government of Bangladesh under section 20(2)  of the Trademark Act 2009. The 
company is paying royalty to HACL @ Tk. 150 per MT on its sold quantity from 01 January 2015 according to Trademark 
License Agreement between the Company and HACL effective from the aforesaid date.

 28.a Consolidated selling and distribution cost

BSRM Steels Limited 28.00 858,647,893 672,978,687 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. -  - 

858,647,893 672,978,687 

 29.00 Administrative costs

Advertisement 1,051,896 714,637 

Amortization 6.01 3,344,120 352,930 

Audit and other fees 601,450 580,750 

Bonus 3,548,494 3,071,902 

Car allowance 3,117,527 3,112,246 

Conveyance expenses 2,562,161 3,283,278 

CSR expenses 18,981,845 4,060,407 

Depreciation 4.00 18,464,703 21,006,483 

Directors’ remuneration 29.01 58,454,450 51,414,050 

Domiciliary expenses 575,538 507,409 

Donation and subscriptions 1,147,130 18,878,706 

Electricity expenses 1,777,914 2,173,679 

Entertainment 6,767,693 8,716,744 

Fees and renewals 2,186,080 1,899,407 

Generator expenses 44,510 57,198 

Gratuity expenses 17.00 6,115,254 3,423,450 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Health check-up scheme 13,450 36,140 

Hospitalization scheme 416,766 413,071 

Insurance expenses 2,875 48,533 

Internet expenses 1,480,988 3,036,591 

Land revenue 616,059 261,177 

Leave assistance 730,000 370,000 

Legal expenses 1,348,582 417,925 

Maternity Scheme Benefit 822,795 395,097 

Motor  car expenses 2,984,794 2,633,634 

Motor car repair 1,510,343 1,184,817 

Motor cycle allowance 236,499 474,630 

Office & miscellaneous expenses 900,748 2,517,140 

Office rent 6,074,540 5,985,060 

Paper and periodicals 552,726 549,988 

Postage expenses 879,175 430,453 

Printing 1,440,755 233,118 

Professional & Consulting fee 5,832,803 1,592,048 

Repair and maintenance of building 231,051 54,281 

Repair and maintenance- others 6,519,763 6,374,061 

Salaries and allowances 95,375,692 87,481,330 

Stationery 3,227,196 3,438,532 

Telephone expenses 3,245,952 1,551,198 

Training expenses 1,221,199 965,129 

Traveling expenses 4,067,753 5,423,925 

Medical expenses - 477,961 

268,473,270 249,599,115 

 29.01 Directors’ remuneration

Details of  directors’ remuneration paid during the year are as follows:

Name
Gross

Remuneration
Income Tax
Deducted 

Net Paid 

Mr. Alihussain Akberali - Chairman 22,820,125 5,703,625 17,116,500 

Mr. Aameir Alihussain - Managing Director 19,514,375 4,877,375 14,637,000 

Mr. Zohair Taherali - Director 10,217,250 2,553,250 7,664,000 

Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali - Director 5,807,250 1,450,750 4,356,500 

Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey - Independent Director
(Attendance fee)

95,450 16,450 79,000 

58,454,450 14,601,450 43,853,000 

In addition to remuneration, directors avail company vehicles for transportation purposes. No amount is lying as receivable 
from the directors.

The company in its 206th Borad Meeting held on 10 September 2015 has re-fixed the remuneration of all directors with 
effect from 01 July 2015.
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 
29.a Consolidated administrative cost

BSRM Steels Limited 29.00 268,473,270 249,599,115 
BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 34,494,113 33,761,165 

302,967,383 283,360,280 

30.00 Other operating income
Gain/(loss) on sale of PPE 2,263,756 2,683,928 
Miscellaneous income 14,135,539 5,403,222 

16,399,295 8,087,150 

30.a Consolidated other operating income
BSRM Steels Limited 30.00 16,399,295 8,087,150 
BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 13,218,321 8,274,014 

29,617,616 16,361,164 

31.00 Finance costs
Interest on cash credit 77,920,260 55,405,407 
Interest on LATR 43,066,232 225,015,681 
Interest on demand and time loan 879,111,888 579,360,172 
Interest on term loan 89,201,356 88,772,216 
Bank charges & others 7,671,348 29,132,985 
Bank guarantee commission 143,909 792,339 
Interest income from loan to related companies (423,983,296) (493,811,096)
Interest on syndicated term loan - 1,449,707 
Bill collection charge - 863,649 

673,131,697 486,981,060 

31.a Consolidated finance cost
BSRM Steels Limited 31.00 673,131,697 486,981,060 
BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 164,047,951 426,688,759 
Less: Intra group interest Income (6,343,024) (45,587,512)

830,836,624 868,082,307 

32.00 Finance income
Interest on IPO deposit 7,856 4,288 
Interest income from FDR 28,435,732 50,302,623 
Interest on STD 13,060 5,482 
Foreign currency exchange gain 32.01 11,716,105 129,685,151 
Interest on trade debtors 26,224,261 7,707,535 

66,397,014 187,705,079 

32.01 Foreign currency exchange gain/(loss)
Realized foreign currency transaction gain 1,698,504 98,716,817 
Unrealized foreign currency translation gain 10,017,601 30,968,334 

11,716,105 129,685,151 
Foreign currency transaction gain/ loss
This represents net gain on transaction in foreign currency during the year.

Foreign currency  translation gain/loss

This represents net gain on translation of foreign currencies into Bangladeshi Taka at the rate prevailing on reporting date.
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

32.a Consolidated finance income

BSRM Steels Limited 32.00 66,397,014 187,705,079 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 7,591,286 5,848,714 

Less: Intra group interest Income (6,343,024) (45,587,512)

67,645,276 147,966,281 

33.00 Other Non Operating Income - - 

33.a Consolidated Other Non Operating Income

BSRM Steels Limited - - 

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. - 7,570,500 

- 7,570,500 

34.00 Share of loss of associate (Net of tax)

Net loss attributable to the shareholders’ of associate (24,446,370) (14,702,060)

Percentage of holding 25.35% 21.76%

Net loss attributable to BSRM Steels Ltd. (3,878,425) (3,199,602)

Excess of proportionate net assets’ value of associate over acquisition cost 79,190,200  - 

75,311,775 (3,199,602)

35.00 Earnings per share (EPS) 

35.01 Basic EPS

Profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders (Taka) 2,081,877,163 1,086,207,806 

Weighted Average no. of shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 341,775,000 341,775,000 

Basic EPS (Tk) 6.09 3.18 

Earnings per share (EPS) has been computed by dividing the net profit after tax (NPAT) by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding as on 31 December 2015 as per BAS-33: Earnings Per Share. No diluted EPS was required to 
be calculated for the year since there was no scope for dilution.

35.a Consolidated earnings per share (CEPS) 

Net profit after tax (Tk.) 2,096,851,089 1,239,217,057 

Weighted Average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period (Nos.) 341,775,000 341,775,000 

Consolidated earnings per share (CEPS) as per share-attributable to equity holders 
of  the parent (Tk.)

6.14 3.63 
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36.00 Related party transactions

During the year the Company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business on 
an arms’ length basis. Names of those related parties, nature of those transactions and their total value have been set out 
in accordance with the provisions of BAS-24: Related Party Disclosures.

Name Relationship Nature of Transactions
Mode of 

transaction 

Closing balance 
(net) as on 
31.12.2015 

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills 
Limited

Shareholder
Material supply/Short term 

Loan/Sale of Rod

Market 
price/ 

negotiated 
price 

440,410,498 Dr. 

BSRM Iron and Steel Co. Limited Subsidiary Material supply, STL, etc. 412,856,904 Dr.  
BSRM Ispat Limited Sister Company Inter Company Transactions 275,389,027 Dr. 
BSRM Steel Mills Ltd. Associate Short term Loan, sales, etc. 641,740,255 Dr.
BSRM Logistics Limited Sister Company Sales, purchase, STL, etc. 301,449,603 Dr.
BSRM Metals Limited Sister Company Inter Company Transactions 58,296,932 Dr. 
H. Akberali & Co. Ltd. Sister Company Short term Loan, sales, etc. 59,097,304 Dr.
Chittagong Power Company Ltd. Sister Company Inter Company Transactions 447,643,657 Dr.

36.01 Details of transactions

Name of companies
Opening balance 

(net)

Transaction 
during the year 

(net) 

Closing balance 
(net) 

Tk. Tk. Tk.

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited 1,182,331,447 Dr. (741,920,949) 440,410,498 Dr. 

BSRM Iron and Steel Co. Ltd. 542,787,176 Dr. (129,930,272) 412,856,904 Dr. 

BSRM Ispat Limited 175,316,500 Dr. 100,072,527 275,389,027 Dr. 

BSRM Steel Mills Limited 32,205,780 Dr. 609,534,475 641,740,255 Dr.

BSRM Logistics Limited 181,659,371 Dr. 119,790,232 301,449,603 Dr. 

BSRM Metals Limited 32,070,000 Dr. 26,226,932 58,296,932 Dr. 

H. Akberali & Co. Limited 39,999,321 Dr. 19,097,983 59,097,304 Dr. 

Chittagong Power Company Ltd. 263,263,550 Dr. 184,380,107 447,643,657 Dr. 

BSRM Wires Limited 53,086,805 Dr. (53,086,805)  - 

BSRM Recycling Industries Ltd. 82,171,848 Dr. (82,171,848)  - 

Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

37.00 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

37.01 Bank guarantee

IFIC Bank Limited 11,175,837 15,961,555 

HSBC Limited 779,500 779,500 

Mercantile Bank Limited 12,912,500 10,912,500 

Trust Bank Limited - 912,431 

Al Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. - 2,636,194 

24,867,837 31,202,180 
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Notes 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

37.02 Minimum tax liability under section 16 CCC of ITO, 1984 18.01 278,127,327 278,127,327 

37.03 Claim against trade VAT by Customs, Excise & VAT authority. 13.07 23,053,915 23,053,915 

38.00 Capital expenditure commitment

The company has acquired 335.45 decimals of land in Narayanganj (Mouja: Chapatoli & Kaudala; Thana: Bandar) for con-
struction of warehouse. Estimated cost of construction of the warehouse will be Tk. 50 Crore.

39.00 Production capacity

Licensed Capacity (In M. Ton)- yearly 700,000 700,000 

Installed Capacity (In M. Ton)- yearly (Capacity increase to 700,000 MT from 
07 December 2015)

700,000 600,000 

Production (In M. Ton) 602,832 623,918 

Capacity utilized-Weighted (%) 99.5% 104%

The above mentioned production capacity  represents the normal production capacity of the company (BSRM Steels Ltd.) only.

40.00 Employees

Number of employees whose salary was below Tk. 3,000 - - 
Number of employees whose salary was above Tk. 3,000 578 553

578 553

The above mentioned number of employees represent employees working for BSRM Steels Ltd. (i.e. Parent Company) only.

41.00 Operating lease

Operating lease rentals as per BAS 17: Leases are payable as follows :

Within one year 10,912,890 15,684,884 
Within 2 to 5 years 15,243,156 15,006,546 

After 5 years 1,852,750 - 
28,008,796 30,691,430 

42.00 Event after the reporting period
42.01 Issuance of Zero Coupon Bond (ZCB)

The company is going to issue unsecured non-convertible Zero Coupon Bonds (ZCB) having face value of Tk. 2,450,592,000 
(Tk. 1,000 each) following the consent given by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) on 28 December 
2015 (received in January 2016) for raising fund through issuance of ZCB under private placement. Minimum subscription 
by an investor will be Tk. 5,000,000. Maturity of these Bonds will be from 6 months to 4 years from the date of issuance and 
will be redeemed accordingly in 8 installments. The indicative discount rate is expected to be 9.5% and the proceed from 
issuance of ZCB will be Tk. 2,000,000,000. The fund will be utilized to meet capital expenditures and investment in power 
project under the name of ‘Chittagong Power Company Ltd.’. These bonds are expected to be issued within March 2016.

42.02 Proposed dividend

The Board of Directors at the meeting held on 10 February 2016 has recommended 30% cash dividend for the year 2015.
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43.00 Financial risk management

Bangladesh Financial Reporting  Standard BFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - requires disclosure of information 
relating to both recognized and unrecognized financial instruments, their significance and performance, accounting 
policies, terms and conditions, net fair values and risk information- the Group’s policies for controlling risks and exposures.

The company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 
framework. The company’s management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limit. Risk management policies, procedures 
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s activities. The Company has 
exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

a)  Credit risk

b)  Liquidity risk

c)  Market risk

43.01 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the group’s receivables and investments.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In monitoring credit risk, debtors are grouped according to their risk profile, i.e. their legal status, financial condition, ageing 
profile etc. Accounts receivable are related to sale of steels (MS Rod and allied products).

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of 
financial position.

a) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
at the reporting date was:

2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Investments in FDRs (Short term & long term) 477,162,914 527,054,998 

Advances and deposits 2,554,191,955 1,007,964,702 

Trade and other receivables 2,247,869,647 2,971,813,680 

Due from sister companies 2,626,472,168 2,605,398,576 

Cash at bank 256,153,075 211,644,064 

8,161,849,759 7,323,876,020 

b) Ageing of receivables

Dues within 3 months 1,713,967,443 2,201,670,586 

Dues over 3 months but less than 6 months 121,604,854 113,394,866 

Dues over 6 months 179,800,089 148,216,807 

2,015,372,386 2,463,282,259 

43.02 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, 
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
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Exposure to Liquidity risk

The followings are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Carrying
amount

Contractual cash flows

Within 12 
months

1 to 5 years
More than 

5 years
Total

Taka Taka Taka Taka Taka

As at 31.12.2015

Long term loan 745,238,979 196,850,016 548,388,963 - 745,238,979 

Defined benefit obligations - 
Gratuity

55,875,824  - 55,875,824 - 55,875,824 

Trade creditors 33,623,532 33,623,532 - - 33,623,532 

Short term liabilities 12,650,676,709 12,650,676,709 - - 12,650,676,709 

Liabilities for expenses 237,212,136 237,212,136 - - 237,212,136 

Provision for WPPF and Welfare 
Fund

132,559,843 132,559,843 - - 132,559,843 

Other liabilities 402,517,212 402,517,212 - - 402,517,212 

14,257,704,235 13,653,439,448 604,264,787 - 14,257,704,235 

As at 31.12.2014

Long term loan 660,379,105 228,481,946 431,897,159 - 660,379,105 

Defined benefit obligations - 
Gratuity

39,019,866 - 39,019,866 - 39,019,866 

Trade creditors 53,285,610 53,285,610 - - 53,285,610 

Short term liabilities 17,024,368,151 17,024,368,151 - - 17,024,368,151 

Liabilities for expenses 361,444,962 361,444,962 - - 361,444,962 

Provision for WPPF and Welfare 
Fund

79,677,893 79,677,893 - - 79,677,893 

Other liabilities 202,948,923 202,948,923 - - 202,948,923 

18,421,124,510 17,950,207,485 470,917,025 - 18,421,124,510 

43.03 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, will affect the Company’s income or 
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market 
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

43.03.01 Currency risk exposure and its management

The company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases, borrowings and payables that are denominated in a currency 
other than the functional currencies of the company. To manage this exposure, the company has adopted direct risk 
reduction methods based on matching receipts and payments on assets and liabilities.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk relating to purchases and other transactions which are denominated in 
foreign currencies. As at 31 December 2015, the Company was exposed to foreign currency risk in respect of financial 
liabilities denominated in the following currencies:
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Exposure to currency risk 31.12.2015 GBP EURO USD Taka

Foreign currency denominated assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - - 156,077.9 12,166,270 

Trade and other receivables - - 1,920,784.8 149,725,179 

- - 2,076,862.7 161,891,449 

Foreign currency denominated liabilities:

Liability for accepted bills for payment (ABP) - - 40,487,086.4 3,155,968,387 

- - 40,487,086.4 3,155,968,387 

Net exposure - - 42,563,949.2 3,317,859,836 

31.12.2014 GBP EURO USD Taka

Foreign currency denominated assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 7.1 325.7 97,806.1 7,650,551 

Trade and other receivables - - - - 

7.1 325.7 97,806.1 7,650,551 

Foreign currency denominated liabilities:

Liability for accepted bills for payment (ABP) - - 137,358,034.6 10,707,058,793 

- - 137,358,034.6 10,707,058,793 

Net exposure 7.1 325.7 137,455,840.6 10,714,709,344 

The following significant exchange rate is applied during the year:

2015 2014 

US dollar 77.95 77.95

EURO 83.88 86.66

GBP 114.40 106.75

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the foreign currencies against BD Taka at the reporting date would 
have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit 
or loss by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain 
constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or loss Equity- net of tax 

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

Taka Taka Taka Taka

31 December 2015

USD (2% movement) (62,876,042) 62,876,042 (47,157,032) 47,157,032 

EURO - - - - 

GBP - - - - 

31 December 2014

USD (2% movement) (213,988,745) 213,988,745 (160,491,558) 160,491,558 

EURO (2% movement) 565 (565) 423 (423)

GBP (2% movement) 15 (15) 11 (11)
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43.03.02 Transaction risk

Transaction risk is the risk that the company will incur exchange losses when the accounting results are translated into 
the home currency.

43.03.03 Economic risk

Economic risk refers to the effect of exchange  rate movements on the international competitiveness of the company.

43.03.04 Interest risk

Interest rate risk arises from movement in interest rates. The company needs to manage interest rate risk so as to be able 
to re-pay debts as they fall due and to minimize the risks surrounding interest payments and receipts.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the company’s interest- bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the 
company is as follows.

Fixed- rate instruments 2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Financial assets  3,103,635,082  3,132,453,574 

Financial liabilities  (13,395,915,688)  (17,684,747,256)

 (10,292,280,606)  (14,552,293,682)

Variable- rate instruments

Financial assets  -  - 

Financial liabilities  -  - 

 -  - 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders
It is my pleasure to welcome all of you to the 11th Annual General Meeting (AGM ) of BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. We have passed 
another operational year of BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. involved in producing M.S. Billets. Year 2015 was the sixth year of operation since 
commencement of business.

It is my privilege to place before you the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2015 for 
your review, approval and adoption.

Review of Operation 
In the year 2015, the company’s production was decreased by 2.42% while sales were also decreased by 2.68%. In 2015, your company 
produced 1,76,312  MT Billet and sold 1,77,199 M.T. Billet. The main reason for less Production and Sales quantity was shut-down of 
Plant for one week due to emergency maintenance work of Air Pollution Control System. Sales in terms of value were decreased by 
15.55% than that of 2014 due to drastic fall of Raw Material price in international market.

Sales were constrained to the parent company and other group concerns. Company had also to battle with the volatile price of scrap 
both in home and abroad.

Operating Results 	                                                                                      	
Amount in Crore Taka

Particulars 2015 2014
Sales 791.61 937.41
Gross Profit 43.97 68.62
Profit before int. taxes & WPPF 41.84 66.07
Less: Interest & WPPF 16.95 43.28
Less: Income Tax 24.01 6.86
Net Profit 0.88 16.68
EPS in Taka 0.08 1.52
Net Assets Value 233.47 232.59
Net Assets Value Per Share in Taka 21.22 21.14

Directors
In accordance with the provision of the Article of Association of the company Mr. Aameir Alihussain & Mrs. Sabeen Aameir , the two 
directors of the company, representing one third of the number of existing directors retire by rotation in the Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible Mr. Aameir Alihussain & Mrs. Sabeen Aameir offer themselves for re- appointment.

Dividend
Directors didn’t recommend any dividend for the year ended December 31, 2015 rather recommended to utilize the retained earnings 
for completion of ongoing projects/further renovation.

Auditors
The Company’s Auditors M/s Basu Banerjee Nath & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and are eligible for reappointment. Boards of 
Directors recommend their appointment for the ensuing year.

Outlook for 2016
Bangladesh has entered an era of growth and prosperity. We expect a huge demand of quality steel Billet this year for construction of 
various mega projects in our country. Our company is striving hard to maintain sustainable growth of the company by adopting and 
investing in the state-of-the-art technology and management practices.  

Events after the date of Financial Position
There is no subsequent event after the date of the Financial Position and till the date of this report which could affect the ability of the 
users of these financial statements to make an appropriate evaluation.

Gratitude 
The Board offer gratitude to all the Employees, Shareholders, Government Agencies, Bank and Financial institutions, Consumers, 
Suppliers and  other service Agencies for performing their respective roles in their best manner which help us to run our business 
smoothly and efficiently.

Thanking you all.

By order of the board

Alihussain Akberali FCA 
Chairman
31 January 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements: 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of  BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. which are comprised of the Statement of 
financial position as of December 31, 2015, Statement of profit or loss account & other comprehensive income, Statement of Changes 
in  Equity and Statement of Cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015 and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements:
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Bangladesh 
Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and for such internal control a management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility:
Our responsibility is to express an expert opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSAs). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Scope:
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion:
In our opinion, the financial statements of the company prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), 
including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as of December 31, 
2015 and the results of its financial performance, Statement of cash flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements:
In our opinion, the Financial Statements comply with the applicable sections of the Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and 
regulations.

a)	 Our examination and checking of records, relevant books of accounts, registers, schedules and financial statements were 		
	 sufficient to enable us to form an informed and assessed opinion on the authenticity and accuracy of the financial statements.

b)	 We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 		
	 purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof.

c) 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appeared from our 		
	 examination of those books.

d)	 The company’s Statement of financial position, Statement of profit & loss account and other comprehensive income dealt with by 	
	 this report are in agreement from our examination of those books.

Chittagong, January 31, 2016. 	 (Basu Banerjee Nath & Co.)
           	 Chartered Accountants
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BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

NOTES 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 
Assets:
Non-current Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment 04  3,812,894,098  3,759,217,059 
Less:Accumulated Depreciation  914,650,331  745,624,753 

 2,898,243,767  3,013,592,306 

Capital Work in Progress 05  18,825,748  239,358 
Intangible Asset 06  8,502,933  9,456,533 

Total Non-current Assets  2,925,572,448  3,023,288,197 
Current Assets:
Short Term Investment 07  3,675,800  34,076,260 
Inventories 08  1,884,296,553  2,360,021,212 
Trade and Other Receivables 09  314,331,811  1,215,218 
Due from Related Companies 10  127,606,057  977,959,133 
Advance, Deposits & Prepayments 11  314,758,297  386,429,804 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12  72,232,701  52,758,575 
Total Current assets  2,716,901,219  3,812,460,202 
Total Assets  5,642,473,667  6,835,748,399 

Equity:
Share Capital 13  1,100,000,000  1,100,000,000 
Retained Earnings  710,494,682  701,708,043 
Revaluation Reserve 14  524,195,793  524,195,793 
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company  2,334,690,475  2,325,903,836 

Liabilities:
Non-current liabilities
Long Term borrowings 15  110,996,642  182,703,317 
Retirement Benefit Obligations-Gratuity 16  18,707,622  14,009,609 
Deferred Tax 17  399,924,447  159,869,074 
Total non-current liabilities  529,628,711  356,582,000 

Current liabilities:
Current Portion of Long Term borrowings 18  68,823,121  211,671,595 
Short term borrowings 19  1,791,824,468  3,211,495,247 
Liabilities for Expenses 20  19,958,141  18,762,580 
Trade Creditors 21  44,861,480  43,951,569 
Due to Related Companies 22  395,858,419  544,432,310 
Other Liabilities 23  443,731,904  110,956,871 
Provision for WPPF & WWF 24  13,096,948  11,992,391 
Total current liabilities  2,778,154,481  4,153,262,563 
Total liabilities  3,307,783,192  4,509,844,563 

Total equity and liabilities  5,642,473,667  6,835,748,399 

Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share  21.22  21.14 

Note: The annexed notes 01 to 32.02 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Managing Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our annexed report of same date

 Basu Banerjee Nath & Co.
Chartered AccountantsChittagong, January 31, 2016



145
BSRM Steels Limited        Annual Report 2015

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

NOTES 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Revenue  7,916,119,496  9,374,112,186 
 
Cost of goods sold 25  (7,476,448,079)  (8,687,937,171)
 
Gross Profit  439,671,417  686,175,015 
 
General & Administrative Cost 26  (34,494,113)  (33,761,165)

 405,177,304  652,413,850 
 
Other Income 27  13,218,321  8,274,014 
 
Net Operating Profit  418,395,625  660,687,864 
 
Financial Expenses 28  (164,047,951)  (426,688,759)
 
Financial Income 29  7,591,286  5,848,714 

 (156,456,665)  (420,840,045)
 
Net Profit beforeTax, WPPF and WWF  261,938,960  239,847,819 
 
Contribution to Beneficiaries Profit Participation

Fund (WPPF) & Workers Welfare Fund 24  (13,096,948)  (11,992,391)
 

 248,842,012  227,855,428 

Non Operating Income 30  -  7,570,500 

Net Profit Before Tax  248,842,012  235,425,928 
 
Income Tax Expenses:

Deferred Tax 17  (240,055,373)  (68,589,734)
 
Net profit after tax transferred to 

statement of shareholders equity  8,786,639  166,836,194 
 
Earnings Per Shares (EPS) 31  0.08  1.52 
 
Note: The annexed notes 1 to 32.02 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Managing Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our annexed report of same date

 Basu Banerjee Nath & Co.
Chartered AccountantsChittagong, January 31, 2016
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BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN  EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Particulars
Share  
Capital 

Retained  
Earnings 

Revaluation  
Reserve 

Total

Tk. Tk. Tk. Tk.

Balance as on January 01, 2014 1,100,000,000 534,871,849 524,195,793 2,159,067,642 

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year - 166,836,194 - 166,836,194 

Revaluation Reserve - - - - 

Balance as on December 31, 2014 1,100,000,000 701,708,043 524,195,793 2,325,903,836 

Balance as on January 01, 2015 1,100,000,000 701,708,043 524,195,793 2,325,903,836 

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year - 8,786,639 - 8,786,639 

Balance as on December 31, 2015 1,100,000,000 710,494,682 524,195,793 2,334,690,475 
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BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2015 2014

Taka Taka 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash collection from customers  7,616,221,224  9,668,019,212 

Cash payment for cost and expenses  (6,622,437,386)  (8,923,553,983)

Net cash provided by / (Used in) Operating Activities  993,783,838  744,465,229 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment  (53,677,039)  (139,039,116)

Acquisiton of Intangible Assets  -  (9,456,533)

Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment  -  1,746,676 

Capital Work in Progress  (18,586,390)  54,433,039 

Short Term Investment  30,400,460  (2,895,191)

Net cash provided by / (Used in) Investing Activities  (41,862,969)  (95,211,125)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Loan to/fromRelated Company’s Transaction  701,779,185  7,475,234 

Received /( Payment) of Short Term Loan  (1,562,519,253)  (502,428,319)

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  (71,706,675)  (104,049,175)

Net cash provided by / (Used in) Financing Activities  (932,446,743)  (599,002,260)

Net Cash Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  19,474,126  50,251,844 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year  52,758,575  2,506,731 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year  72,232,701  52,758,575 

 19,474,126  50,251,844 

Net Operating Cash Flow per Share  9.03  6.77 



148
BSRM Steels Limited        Annual Report 2015

BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015. 

 01 Legal form of Enterprise

The company was incorporated as a private Limited Company on  April 13, 2005, vide certificate of incorporation No. CH-
5415 of 2005 under the Companies Act, (No-XVIII), 1994. The Company was converted into a Public Limited Company on 
March 15, 2011. The Company’s Registered and Corporate Office is situated at Ali Mansion, Sadarghat Road, Chittagong. It 
is a subsidiary company of BSRM Steels Limited.The shares of the Company are not quoted for public issue for the public 
subscription.

 01.01 Nature of the business

The principal activities of the company are manufacturing different quality of M.S. Billets and sell the same to steel rolling 
mills.The company had set up its automatic steel melting plant at 202-205 Nasirabad Industrial Area, Baizid Bostami Road, 
Chittagong and commenced commercial production from June 01, 2010.

 02 Basis of Preparation

 02.01 Application of Standards

The following BFRSs and BASs are applicable for the financial statements of the company for the year under audit:

BAS 1  Presentation of Financial Statements

BAS 2 Inventories

BAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

BAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

BAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period 

BAS 12 Income Taxes

BAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

BAS 17 Leases

BAS 18 Revenue

BAS 19 Employee Benefits

BAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

BAS 23 Borrowing Costs

BAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

BAS 33 Earning Per Share

BAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Assets

BAS 38 Intangible Assets

 02.02 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs) and Bangladesh 
Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs). 

 02.03 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under historical cost convention.

 02.04 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on going basis.
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02.05 Reporting period

The financial statements of the company cover one year from January 01,2015 to December 31,2015 and is followed consistently.

 03 Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all the years presented in these financial statements.

 03.01 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are translated at the rates ruling on the dates advices are received. Monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at rates ruling at the reporting date. All exchange differences 
are charged/credited to statement of profit and loss account and other comprehensive income by being absorbed in the 
respective date of income & expenditure.

 03.02 Property, Plant & Equipment

 03.02.01 Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant & Equipment except land & land development are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. The cost of self constructed /
installed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the 
assets to the working condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the 
site on which they are located.

When parts of an items of Property, Plant & Equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of Property, Plant & Equipment.

KPMG Bangladesh (Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants), 102 Agrabad C/A, Chittagong, has been engaged by 
the company to estimate fair market value of the land at different locations in Bangladesh as at 31st May 2012. Rahman 
Rahman Huq also engaged qualified surveyors named Asian surveyors Ltd, 28 Dilkhusha C/A, Dhaka 1000, for veryfing the 
land and it’s market price.

The valuation had been conducted using the market value method as this is the most commonly used and appropriate for 
valuation of lands under prevailing circumstances. In the process of valuation, Information from the Land brokers and other 
related sources, price factors of similar land in the locality, published mouza rates, recent rate of transfer of land in this 
area have been considered.

As per valuation report the net revaluation gain stood TK. 524,195,793 (Note No. 14). This Revaluaton gain has been 
recognized  in these Financial Statements.                     

 03.02.02 Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing parts of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it 
is probable that the future benefit embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably. 
The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the  statement of profit and loss 
account and other comprehensive income.

 03.02.03 Depreciation 

Land is held on a freehold basis and is not depreciated considering the unlimited life. In respect of all other Property, Plant 
& Equipment, depreciation is recognized in the statement of profit and loss account and other comprehensive income on 
diminishing balance method over the estimated useful lives of Property, Plant & Equipment. Depreciation is charged on 
addition from the month of acquisition/addition (date of service) and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal. 
The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed by the entity. The 
depreciation charge for each period should be recognized as an expense unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset. The principal annual rates are as follows.
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Name of the Assets
Depreciation 

Rates (%)
Allocation

Plant & Machinery 7.50%

Depreciations are charged on
location basis

Motor Vehicles 20%

Furniture & Fixture 20%

Office Equipment 20%

Factory Building 5%

Roads & Pavements 10%

IT Equipment 20%

 03.02.04 Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipments under construction/acquisition is accounted for as capital work-in-progress until 
construction/acquisition  is complete and measured at cost.

 03.03 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value (NRV). The cost of inventories is valued at 
weighted average method and includes expenditures for acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing 
location and condition in accordance with BAS-2. Net realizable value (NRV) is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less the estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. When inventories are used, the carrying 
amount of those inventories is recognized in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. Inventories comprise 
Raw Materials (Heavy Melting steel scarp, Shredded scarp & Sponge Iron), Store items, Finished goods etc.

 03.04 Trade receivables

Trade & other receivables are recognized at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given.

 03.05 Advance, deposits & prepayments

Advance are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advance are carried at cost less deductions, adjustments or 
charges to other account heads, such as, property, plant and equipment, inventory or expenses.

Deposits are measured at payment value.

Prepayments are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, prepayments are carried at cost less charges to the 
statement of comprehensive income.

03.06 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, FDR and cash at bank, which are available for use of the Company 
without any restriction.

 03.07 Impairment

Financial Assets

Financial Assets are impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occured after initial recognition of the 
assets and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that assets that can be estimated 
reliably.

Non-financial Assets

The carrying amount of the company’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss 
is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
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 03.08 Employees benefit schemes

A contributory provident fund has been introduced and the fund has obtained recognition from tax authority on 13.04.2011. The 
provident Fund starts its operation from July 01, 2011. Both employees & company contribute equally (10% of basic salary).

Appropriate Provision has been made for Workers’ Profit Participation Fund and Workers’ Welfare Fund as per provisions of law.

 03.09 Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic Earnings:

This represents  profit  for the year ended attributable to ordinary shareholders. As there is no preference dividend, 
noncontrolling interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered fully attributable to 
the ordinary shareholders (refer to note-31 of the financial statements).

Diluted Earnings per share:

No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the year as there is no scope for dilution during the year under audit.

 03.10 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can 
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

 03.11 Finance  income and expense

Interest income has been recognised on cash basis. Interest expenses incurred during the period has been charged to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

 03.12 Contingencies

Contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc. are recorded when it is probable that a 
liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

 03.13 Income tax expenses

Current tax:

The company in terms of decision of the board of directors in its meeting held on March 07,2012 filed a Writ petition on 
August 06, 2012 before the High Court Division of Supreme Court of Bangladesh challenging the legality of Section 16CCC 
of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 imposing minimum income tax of 0.50% ( Present minimum income tax U/S 16CCC is 
0.30%) of the gross receipts of the company regardless of profit or loss as per accounts. Accordingly the High Court issued 
a Rule Nisi calling the Government Authorities to show cause as to why Section 16CCC of the Income Tax Ordinance 1984 
should not be declared to be illegal and of no legal effect and pending hearing of the Rule restrained the Government 
Authorities from charging minimum tax under the said section. In view of above, no provision for income tax envisaged u/s 
16CCC has been made in these financial statements.

Deferred tax:

The Company has adopted deferred tax accounting policy as required in BAS-12/ IAS-12 (Income taxes). Accordingly 
deferred tax assets/ liabilities is accounted for on all temporary timing differences arising from the tax base of the assets 
and liabilities and their carrying value for financial reporting purpose.
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03.14 Comparative Information and Rearrangement thereof 

In accordance with the provisions of BAS-34, Comparative information has been disclosed for all numerical information in 
the financial statements  and  also the narrative and descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the 
current period’s financial statements. 
Figures for the year 2014 have been rearranged wherever considered necessary to ensure comparability with the current 
year.

03.15 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net off returns and 
allowances, Value Added Tax etc. 

03.16 Financial Instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise cash & cash equivalents, advance from customers, trade creditors, trade 
debtors and share capital etc.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances & FDR .

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised at fair value.

Advance from customers

Advance from customers are recognised at fair value at the date of transactions.

Trade payables and other liabilities

Trade payables and other liabilities are recognized at fair value on the date of transactions. The company derecognizes a 
financial liabilities when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

Share capital

Ordinary share are classified as equity.

 03.17 Employee Benefits

The company maintains both defined contribution plan i.e Provident Fund and defined benefit plan i.e. Gratuity. 

 03.18 General

i) Amount in the Financial Statement have been rounded off to the nearest taka.

ii) Bracket figure denote negative.
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 
5.00 Capital Work in Progress:

Motor Vehicle  -  239,358 
Plant and Machinery 18,130,236  - 
Building and Factory Sheds 695,512  - 

 18,825,748  239,358 

6.00 Intangible Assets (Software):

Cost
Opening Balance  9,536,000  - 
Add: Addition During The Year  -  9,536,000 
Less: Disposal During The Year  -  - 
Closing Balance  9,536,000  9,536,000 

Accumulated Amortization
Opening Balance  79,467  - 
Add: Amortization During The Year  953,600  79,467 
Less: Disposal During The Year  -  - 
Closing Balance  1,033,067  79,467 

Carrying Amount  8,502,933  9,456,533 

7.00  Short Term Investment: 

 Name Of The Bank  Rate of Interest 

 United Commercial Bank Limited 10%-12%  -  34,076,260 
 Habib Bank Limited 7.75%  1,675,800  - 
 Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited 6%  2,000,000  - 

 3,675,800  34,076,260 

8.00 Inventories:

Raw Materials  (Note No. 25.00)  1,544,667,786  1,948,127,797 
Finished Goods  (Note No. 25.00)  29,261,876  72,308,618 
Consumable Stores   (Note No. 8.03)  310,366,891  339,584,797 

 1,884,296,553  2,360,021,212 

8.01 Raw Materials (In Quantity): MT MT

Opening Stock of Raw Materials  56,034.26  52,607.08 

Add: Purchase/Import during the year:

Local Purchase  28,053.28  69,945.43 
Import-Scrap  136,949.84  108,802.92 
Import- Sponge Iron  29,440.76  20,054.78 
Raw Material Available for Manufacture  250,478.14  251,410.21 

Less: Sale of Raw Material  1,641.69  14.73 
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials  58,765.41  56,034.26 
Consumption  190,071.04  195,361.22 
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8.02 Finished Goods (In Quantity): 2015 2014

MT MT 

Opening Stock of Finished Goods  1,631.99  3,037.50 

Add: Manufactured  176,311.92  180,677.59 

Goods Available for Sales  177,943.91  183,715.09 

Less: Sales  177,198.71  182,083.10 

Closing Stock of Finished Goods  745.20  1,631.99 

2015 2014

Taka Taka 

8.03 Consumable Store :

 Mechanical Store  109,622,089  92,297,645 

 Electrical Store  94,516,299  84,329,578 

 General Store  1,588,661  2,543,912 

 Fuel & Lubricants Store  2,821,973  3,462,076 

 Other Consumable Store  101,817,869  156,951,586 

 310,366,891  339,584,797 

9.00  Trade and Other Receivables: 

 BSRM Steel Mills Limited  698,126  - 

 Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited  307,688,776  - 

 Others  5,944,909  1,215,218 

 314,331,811  1,215,218 

10.00  Due From Related Companies: 

 Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited  -  977,959,133 

 BSRM Steels Mills  Limited.  127,606,057  - 

 127,606,057  977,959,133 

Note: All Transactions among the related companies have been made through A/C Payee cheque/Bank Transfer & interest 
were charged accordingly. 

11.00  Advance, Deposits & Prepayments: 

 For Expenses  (Note No. 11.01)  70,911,886  12,798,777 

 Security Deposit  (Note No. 11.02)  26,062,885  28,959,461 

 Guarantee Margin  (Note No. 11.03)  1,314,408  1,389,428 

 Advance against LC  11,125,997  17,418,352 

 Staff Loan  96,662  192,078 

 LC Margin  21,820,857  96,173,720 

 Advance Income Tax  151,794,184  134,845,393 

 VAT Current Account  3,577,603  7,098,334 

 Advance For Scrap Purchase  28,053,815  87,554,261 

 314,758,297  386,429,804 
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  2015 2014

Taka Taka 

11.01 Advance for Expenses: 

Bangladesh Power Development Board (12KM Power 
Line Construction) 

 45,380,203  255,800 

Construction & Engineering works  -  2,329,968 

Land Purchases  305,000  305,000 

Insurance expenses  909,115  2,494,846 

Fuel, Oil & Lubricants  609,345  1,201,590 

Energypac Engineering Limited  -  1,320,000 

Nikko Systems Private Limited  5,673,336  337,980 

Clearing & Forwarding expenses  10,571  10,571 

Others  18,024,316  4,543,022 

 70,911,886  12,798,777 

11.02  Security Deposits: 

 Power Development Board,Ctg(33KV)  18,600,000  18,600,000 

 T & T Department Chittagong  2,000  2,000 

 Kolkata Office,Howrah(IRS 25,000)  -  37,750 

 Chittagong Mohanagar Package(Guest House Rent)  60,000  60,000 

 Sharif Alam(Guest House Rent)  24,350  48,000 

 Bakhrabad Gas Systems Ltd.  1,347,588  1,347,588 

 Brothers Prokaushali Workshop(Gas Cylindar)  400,000  400,000 

 Premier LP GAS Ltd.(Gas Cylindar)  46,000  46,000 

 Zilla Commandant Anser & VDP  270,511  270,511 

 Power Development Board,(Barawlia)  1,800,000  1,800,000 

 Power Development Board,(Bhatiary)  1,500  1,500 

 Mohammadia Trading.(Gas Cylindar)  250,800  250,800 

 Nurul Alam (Guest House)  14,000  14,000 

 GBX Logistics Limited  20,000  140,000 

 GP Shipping Lines Limited  131,000  35,000 

 Linde Bangladesh Limited  824,000  824,000 

 Sea Borne (Pvt.) Limited  5,000  5,000 

 Trident Shipping Line Limited  -  210,000 

 CMA CGM BD Shipping Ltd.-Damarage  2,115,000  1,338,000 

 Mearsk Bangladesh Ltd.  3,729  2,989,044 

 Bangladesh Railway(33KV Electric Line Expansion)  140,000  140,000 

 Birds Bangladesh Agencies Ltd  -  400,268 

 Hanjin Shipping Limited  7,407  - 

 26,062,885  28,959,461 
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  2015 2014

Taka Taka 

11.03 Guarantee Margin: 

 BG # 13/09 (Trust)   460,303  460,303 

 BG # 30/14 (MBL)   1,325  1,325 

 BG # 28/12 (MBL)   -  122,000 

 BG # 30/12 (MBL)   104,000  104,000 

 BG # 32/12 (MBL)   -  40,000 

 BG # 34/12 (MBL)   -  72,000 

 BG # 40/12 (MBL)   -  109,000 

 BG # 05/15 (MBL)   50,000  - 

 BG # 14/15 (MBL)   217,980  - 

 Bakhrabad Gas System Ltd.  480,800  480,800 

 1,314,408  1,389,428 

12.00  Cash & Cash Equivalents: 

 Cash in Hand   ( Note No. 12.01)  1,615,796  1,634,591 

 Cash at Bank  ( Note No. 12.02)  (4,836,343)  (5,260,531)

 FDR Account  ( Note No. 12.03)  75,453,248  56,384,515 

 72,232,701  52,758,575 

12.01  Cash in Hand: 

 Head Office  95,797  134,589 

 Factory Office  1,300,000  1,300,000 

 Imprest Cash (Bhatiary Office)  20,000  - 

 Imprest Cash ( Baroaulia Office)  199,999  200,002 

 1,615,796  1,634,591 

12.02  Cash at Bank: 

 Agrani Bank  Limited  272,186  388,693 

 ( Laldighi corporate Branch, Chittagong.) 

 The City Bank  Limited  3,634  554,335 

 ( Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Trust Bank Limited  798  2,822 

 (O.R.Nizam Road,Branch, Chittagong.) 

 United Commercial Bank Limited  1,426  966 

 (Jubilee Road Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited  24,234  751,731 

 (Jubilee Road Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Sonali Bank Limited  (5,139)  146 

 (Kalibari Branch.) 

 Hongkong Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited  (9,271,639)  (7,719,255)

 (Chittagong Branch.) 

 Mutual Trust Bank Limited  42,194  24,394 

 (Chittagong Branch.) 

 United Commercial Bank Limited (ESCROW A/C)  47,996  59,751 

 (Jubilee Road Branch, Chittagong) 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

 Dhaka Bank Limited  7,368  4,967 

 (Jubilee Road Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Habib Bank Limited  559,076  - 

 (Chittagong Branch.) 

 Janata Bank  Limited  80,991  87,695 

 (Laldighi Br. Ctg.) 

 Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited  25,603  19,782 

 (Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Standard Bank Limited  (0.05)  3,532 

 (Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited  31,968  84,069 

 (Jubilee Road Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Prime Bank Limited  32,228  79,715 

 (O.R.Nizam Road,Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Meghna Bank Limited  237,774  149,809 

 (Principal Branch,Dhaka.) 

 Mercantile Bank Limited  406  3,981 

 (Jubilee Road Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Social Islami Bank Limited  9,728  31,892 

 (Jubilee Road Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.  81,192  90,105 

 (Jubilee Road Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Standard Chartered Bank  724,777  18,669 

 (Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Jamuna Bank Limited  49,295  55,567 

 (Khatunganj Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Bank Al-Falah Limited  17,751  14,511 

 (Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Eastern Bank Limited  368,194  14,552 

 (Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 State Bank of India   12,174  7,140 

 (Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 IFIC Bank Limited  148  1,794 

 (Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 National Credit & Commerce Bank Limited  1,798,436  - 

 (Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Bank Asia Limited  2,926  174 

 (Agrabad Branch, Chittagong.) 

 Sonali Bank Limited  7,932  7,932 

  (Laldighi Br. Ctg.) 

 (4,836,343)  (5,260,531)

Note: a) Bank amount represent book balance which has been reconciled with the bank statement & conformed by the 
banker’s certificate. 

b) The negative balance shows in the notes represents book overdraft. 
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12.03 Fixed Deposit: 

Name Of The Banks  Purpose 
Rate of 

 Interest 
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

United Commercial Bank Limited  LC Margin 7.75%  22,205,150  9,735,000 
The City Bank Limited  LC Margin 8.25%  11,330,625  14,268,525 
Jamuna Bank Limited  LC Margin 8.25%  1,988,978  1,844,181 
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited  LC Margin  6%  4,943,875  2,199,349 
Bank Asia Limited  LC Margin 7.50%  1,753,918  1,630,500 
Shahajalal Islami Bank Limited  LC Margin 8.50%  -  4,571,384 
Dhaka Bank Limited  LC Margin 6.75%  4,903,140  6,675,074 
Arab-Bangladesh Bank Limited  LC Margin 8.75%  5,062,267  4,680,234 
National Credit & Commerce Bank Limited  LC Margin 8%  516,949  10,780,268 
Social Islami Bank Limited  LC Margin  8.50%  498,851  - 
IFIC Bank Limited  LC Margin 6%  9,209,675  - 
Mercantile Bank Limited  LC Margin 8.25%  13,039,820  - 

 75,453,248  56,384,515 

13.00 Share Capital: 

Authorised Capital: 
300,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk.10.00 each  3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital:  1,100,000,000  1,100,000,000 

110,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk.10.00 each fully paid up in cash. Details of Shareholding position are given below: 

Name of the Shareholders
No.of Shares 

Held 
% of Share

Holding
2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA  1,258,250 1.14  12,582,500  12,582,500 
Mr.Aameir Alihussain  59,250 0.05  592,500  592,500 
Mr. Zohair Taherali  247,090 0.22  2,470,900  2,470,900 
Mrs.Tehseen Zohair Taherali  25,500 0.02  255,000  255,000 
Mrs.Bilkis Alihussain  44,910 0.04  449,100  449,100 
H.Akberali & Co. Ltd  3,649,050 3.32  36,490,500  36,490,500 
VORTEX investments Ltd  215,950 0.20  2,159,500  2,159,500 
BSRM Steels Limited  104,500,000 95.00  1,045,000,000  1,045,000,000 

 110,000,000 100.00  1,100,000,000  1,100,000,000 

14.00 Revaluation Reserve: 

KPMG Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants has revalued the land of the company in defferent lacation as at 
31st May 2012 which is appended below:

Location of  The Lands 
 Area in 

 Decimals 

 Mutated  
 at 

 Decimals 

 Per  
 Decimals 

 Price 

 Book  
 Value 
 TK. 

 Revalued 
 Amount 

 Tk. 

 Gain on  
 Revaluation 

 TK. 

i) Nasirabad I/A Baizid Bostami Road 
Chittagong on the side of Baizid Bostami Road. 

 221  221  2,500,000  168,860,441  553,125,000  384,264,559 

ii) Baroawilia in Sitakunda  36  36  1,000,000  2,102,550  35,500,000  33,397,450 

iii) West Gomdandi, Boalkhali, Chittagong.  747  697  175,000  15,360,716  121,894,500  106,533,784 

Total:  1,004  954  186,323,707  710,519,500  524,195,793 
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15.00 Long Term Borrowings: 2015 2014

Taka Taka 

 IPDC Term Loan    (Note No. 15.01)  38,268,773  100,000,000 

 Meghna Bank Term Loan   (Note No. 15.02)  44,364,572  82,703,317 

 Jamuna Bank Limited   (Note No. 15.03)  6,565,153  - 

 Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited   (Note No. 15.04)  12,699,506  - 

 Prime Bank Limited   (Note No. 15.05)  9,098,638  - 

 110,996,642  182,703,317 

15.01 IPDC Term Loan: 

Due within one (1) year 18  33,148,343  - 

Due more than one (1) year 15  38,268,773  100,000,000 

 71,417,116  100,000,000 

Terms of IPDC Term Loan: 

Lenders : 

Industrial Promotion and Development Company of Bangladesh Ltd. has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 10 crore as term loan 
and disbursed the full amount within 2014.

Total loan facilities:  Tk. 10 crore 

Interest Rate: 

Interest rate is 13% (2014: 14.25%) per annum. 

Disbursement: 

Full disbursement was made on 09.12.14 

Repayments: 

Above term  loan is being re-paid in 36 equal monthly installments starting from January 2015. 

Securities : 

Floating charge by way of Hypothecation on all movable assets of BISCO duly registered with RJSC, Legally enforceable 
Corporate  Guarantee of BSRM Limited duly supported by its Board Resolution,Lien on 3,000,000 dematted sponsor shares 
of BSRM Steels Ltd.,Personal Guarantee of all sponsor directors, 01(One) security cheque for the entire facility amount, 
Demand promissory Note along with letter of continuation.

Purpose: 2015 2014

To meet working capital requirement. Taka Taka 

15.02 Meghna Bank Term Loan: 

Due within one (1) year 18  18,826,501  - 

Due more than one (1) year 15  44,364,572  82,703,317 

 63,191,073  82,703,317 

Terms of Meghna Bank Term Loan: 

Lenders : 

Meghna Bank Limited has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 4.176 crore as term loan and disbursed the full amount within 2013. 

Total loan facilities: Tk. 4.176 crore. 

Interest Rate: 

Interest rate is 13% (2014: 15.50%) per annum. 

Disbursement: 

Full disbursement was made on 09.12.13 

Repayments: 

Above term  loan is being re-paid in 16 equal quarterly installments starting from March 2014. 
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Securities: 

Hypothecation on machinery to be imported through bank,personal guarantee of all directors of the company backed by 
Board resolution, Corporate Guarantee of BSRM Steels Ltd.,post dated cheques for each facility. 

Purpose: 

To import 4 pieces of 28 MT furnace for Billet manufacturing unit. 

 15.03  Jamuna Bank Term Loan: 2015 2014

 Taka Taka 

Due within one (1) year 18 5,719,795  - 

Due more than one (1) year 15 6,565,153  - 

12,284,948  - 

Terms of Jamuna Bank Term Loan: 

Lenders : 

Jamuna Bank Limited has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 1.23 crore as term loan and disbursed the full amount within 2015. 

Total loan facilities: Tk. 1.23 crore. 

Interest Rate: 

Interest rate is 13%  per annum. 

Disbursement: 

Full disbursement was made on 22.09.15 

Repayments: 

Above term  loan is being re-paid in 24 equal monthly installments starting from January 2016. 

Securities : 

Hypothecation on machinery to be imported through bank,personal guarantee of all directors of the company backed by 
Board resolution, 
Corporate Guarantee of BSRM Steels Ltd.,post dated cheques for each facility.   

Purpose: 2015 2014
To import 1 unit transformer for Billet manufacturing unit. Taka Taka 

15.04 Al-Arafah Islami Bank Term Loan: 

 Due within one (1) year 18  7,042,482  - 

 Due more than one (1) year 15  12,699,506  - 

 19,741,988  - 

Terms of Al-Arafah Bank Term Loan: 

Lenders: 

Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 2.43 crore as term loan and disbursed the full amount within 2015. 

Total loan facilities: Tk. 2.43 crore. 

Interest Rate: 

Interest rate is 13%  per annum. 

Disbursement: 

Full disbursement was made on 31.05.15 

Repayments: 

Above term  loan is being re-paid in 12 equal quarterly installments starting from August 2015. 

Securities: 

Hypothecation of vehicle to be purchased as per quotation till full adjustment of Bank’s dues,personal guarantee of all directors,irrevocable
letter of Authority to repossess the vehicles, Corporate guarantee of the BSRM Wires Limited. 
Purpose: 

For purchasing of 07 (Seven) LPK-2518/48(6*4) TC Tiper 20 CUM Dump truck. 
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 2015 2014

 Taka Taka 

15.05 Prime Bank Term Loan:

Due within one (1) year 18  4,086,000  - 

Due more than one (1) year 15  9,098,639  - 

 13,184,639  - 

Terms of Prime Bank Term Loan: 

Lenders: 

Prime Bank Limited has sanctioned an amount of Tk. 1.49 crore as term loan and disbursed the full amount within 2015. 

Total loan facilities: Tk. 1.49 crore. 

Interest Rate: 

Interest rate is 13% per annum. 

Disbursement: 

Full disbursement was made on 09.02.15 

Repayments: 

Above term loan is being re-paid in 60 equal monthly installments starting from March 2015. 

Securities: 

Hypothecation on machinery to be imported through bank,personal guarantee of all directors of the company backed by 
Board resolution, Corporate Guarantee of BSRM Steels Ltd.,post dated cheques for each facility. 

Purpose: 2015 2014

To import 2 units 5 Ton EOT Crane for Billet manufacturing unit. Taka Taka 

16.00 Retirement Benefit Obligations-Gratuity:

Opening balance as on January 01, 2015  14,009,609  10,491,909 

Provision during the year  6,062,456  3,517,700 

 20,072,065  14,009,609 

Paid during the year  (1,364,443)  - 

Closing Balance as on December 31, 2015  18,707,622  14,009,609 

17.00 Deferred Tax: 

Opening balance as on January 01, 2015  159,869,074  91,279,340 

Provision during the year  240,055,373  68,589,734 

Closing Balance as on December 31, 2015  399,924,447  159,869,074 

18.00 Current Portion of Long Term Borrowings: 

Syndicate Term Loan (Note No.18.01)  -  198,235,864 

ULC Term Loan   -  1,830,146 

Lease Liability(DBL)  -  11,605,585 

IPDC Term Loan (Note No. 15.01)  33,148,343  - 

Meghna Bank Term Loan (Note No. 15.02)  18,826,501  - 

Jamuna Bank Limited (Note No. 15.03)  5,719,795  - 

Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited (Note No. 15.04)  7,042,482  - 

Prime Bank Limited (Note No.15.05)  4,086,000  - 

 68,823,121  211,671,595 
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  2015 2014

Taka Taka 

18.01 Syndicate Term Loan: 

Due within one year  -  198,235,864 

 -  198,235,864 

Lender wise details of syndication term loan are as follows:  

Bangladesh Development Bank Limited (Former BSRS)  -  8,817,346 

Bank Asia Limited  -  7,115,097 

City Bank Limited  -  14,226,472 

Eastern Bank Limited   -  14,228,904 

Industrial & Infrastucture Development Finance Company (IIDFC) Limited -  7,732,786 

Janata Bank Limited  -  21,325,233 

Mutual Trust Bank Limited   -  14,218,844 

One Bank Limited  -  11,793,726 

Rupali Bank Limited   -  14,204,637 

Sonali Bank Limited  -  27,681,227 

Standard Bank Limited   -  21,345,292 

Trust Bank Limited  -  7,115,097 

United Commercial Bank Limited   -  21,328,266 

Dhaka Bank Limited  -  7,102,937 

 -  198,235,864 

Note: Syndicated Loan: 

Lenders: 

The company has entered into a syndicated loan agreement on 01-06-2009 with IIDFC the lead arranger and with 13 (thirteen) other Banks. 

Total Loan Facilities: Taka 136.20 crores. 

Interest Rate: 

Initially interest rate was 14.50%, During the year 2011 it was 13% but subsequently the rate has been increased to 
15.50% as per Bangladesh Bank Circular. 
Disbursement: 

The first disbursement was made on February 2009. 

Repayments: 

The facility will be repayable by 18 (eighteen) quarterly installments commencing from 15.01.2011 to 15.04.2015. 

Securities: 

Registered mortgage on project land, building on first ranking parri passu basis and hypothecation of Machinery, furniture 
& fixtures, equipments etc. 
Purpose: 

The purpose of the loan is to set up a computer- controlled, fully automatic billet making plant. 

19.00 Shor Term Borrowings:

 Loan Against Trust Receipt(LTR) (Note No. 19.01)  65,342,532  450,527,854 

 Inland Foreign Documentary Bills for collection (IFDBC) (Note No. 19.02)  1,240,209,581  2,159,087,429 

 Cash Credit (C.C) & Overdraft  (Note No. 19.03)  95,714,593  226,343,163 

 Time Loan (Note No. 19.04)  -  252,081,837 

 Demand Loan (Note No. 19.05)  390,557,762  123,454,964 

 1,791,824,468  3,211,495,247 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

19.01 Loan Against Trust Receipt(LTR) 

Trust Bank Ltd.  35,511,673  - 

Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited.  9,244,751  24,462,669 

Mercantile Bank Limited.  -  293,274,792 

Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.  -  53,210,433 

Dhaka Bank Limited.  -  1,472,005 

Prime Bank Limited  19,429,515  78,107,955 

Bank Asia Limited  1,156,593  - 

 65,342,532  450,527,854 

19.02 Inland Foreign Documentary Bills for Collection (IFDBC): 

IFIC Bank Limited.  7,761,218  76,768,446 

Dhaka Bank Limited.  9,258,728  137,674,343 

National Credit & Commerce Bank Limited  10,873,605  135,310,034 

Trust Bank Limited.  34,859,698  284,861,907 

Jamuna Bank Limited.  21,525,402  - 

Bank Asia Limited  -  59,193,857 

Mutual Trust Bank Limited  -  12,111,816 

Islami Bank Bangladesh 
Limited. 

 101,024,984  361,031,592 

Mercantile Bank Limited.  197,363,538  280,170,628 

United Commercial Bank 
Limited 

 47,125,881  29,031,239 

Hongkong Shanghai Banking 
Corporation Limited 

 -  205,315,756 

Prime Bank Limited.  185,828,124  195,361,220 

One Bank Limited.  34,754,304  58,839,162 

AB Bank Limited.  9,234,301  136,507,379 

Eastern Bank Limited.  19,845,865  16,407,721 

Shahajalal Islami Bank 
Limited 

 -  93,637,066 

Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.  88,283,639  29,385,823 

Standard Chartered Bank  423,443,906  17,782,485 

The City Bank Limited  39,402,770  29,696,954 

Social Islami Bank Limited  9,623,618  - 

 1,240,209,581  2,159,087,429 

19.03 Cash Credit (CC) & Overdraft: 

Mutual Trust Bank  Limited. (SOD)  650,963  23,198,021 

IFIC Bank Limited.  96,407,769  54,504,635 

Janata Bank Limited.( CC HYPO)  3,671,977  21,790,391 

AB Bank Limited.  174,100  385,634 

The City Bank Limited.( CC HYPO)  104,774  (684,330)
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

One Bank Limited.  (7,975,185) 43,649,902

Dhaka Bank Limited  379,380  292,381 

Standard Bank Limited  2,300,815  6,215,513 

Habib Bank Limited  -  23,555,945 

National Credit & Commerce Bank Limited  -  53,435,071 

 95,714,593  226,343,163 

19.04 Time Loan: 

AB Bank Limited.  -  16,968,350 

Social Islami Bank Limited  -  4,763,625 

The City  Bank Limited.  -  230,013,812 

Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.  -  336,050 

 -  252,081,837 

19.05 Demand Loan: 

Bank Al Falah Limited  22,349,139  123,454,964 

Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited.  52,508,623  - 

Eastern Bank Limited.  315,700,000  - 

 390,557,762  123,454,964 

20.00 Liabilities for Expenses: 

Salary & Allowances  25,650  6,023,906 

Basu Banerjee Nath & Co.  60,000  60,000 

C & F Expenses  1,838,159  146,835 

Carrying Expenses  10,317,014  7,873,820 

Insurance Expenses  122,214  137,047 

Electricity Expenses  1,255,064  1,195,106 

Domicillary Expenses  256,633  186,123 

Tiffin Allowance   174,350  181,950 

Mill Overtime  737,117  686,893 

Oil, Fuel & Lubricant  266,508  332,654 

Leave Salary  325,985  315,410 

Production Incentive  -  38,520 

Others  4,579,447  1,584,316 

 19,958,141  18,762,580 

 21.00  Trade Creditors 

Capital Refractories Limited  -  1,283,689 

Grindwell Norton Ltd.  -  1,304,818 

Ferro Alloy Co. Pvt. Limited  2,650,500  9,105,600 

Linde Bangladesh Limited  653,093  332,335 

Moushi Enterprise  -  403,143 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Abul Khair Steel Industries - 2,118,306

Tata International Limited  -  337,500 

S L Ship Recycling Industries Ltd  434  3,338,419 

Burhani Steel Corporation  -  238,448 

Gen Air Technology  -  316,200 

Shahab Uddin  -  201,081 

Bismillah Iron Store  -  139,700 

Baroawlia Lime Store  519,287  119,543 

Nitol Motors Ltd.  -  148,553 

Shital Enterprise  -  117,150 

M.Hossen  1,785,615  - 

Shapla Enterprise  193,950  - 

Fair Trade International  391,755  - 

BSRM Logistics Limited  1,158,526  1,960,237 

BSRM Wires Limited  -  140,800 

   BSRM Steels Limitd  16,998,485  - 

T.N. Brothers  2,681,572  - 

ANS Enterprise  6,900  - 

Hazi Abul Bashar & Sons  146,700  - 

Meltaflux Company Pvt. Limited  337,824  - 

Others  17,336,839  22,346,047 

 44,861,480  43,951,569 

22.00 Due To Related Companies: 

BSRM Wires Ltd.  -  1,645,134 

BSRM Steels Ltd.  395,858,419  542,787,176 

 395,858,419  544,432,310 

Note: All Transactions among the related companies have been made through A/C Payee cheque/Bank Transfer & interest were charged accordingly. 

 23.00 Other Liabilities: 

Retention Money  3,410,186  4,611,165 

Staff Income Tax  7,200  91,633 

TAX deduction at source  715,195  1,716,726 

VAT Deduction at Source  509,955  354,731 

Provident Fund  -  406,039 

Payable Against Interest  6,343,024  103,080,881 

Advance against sales  432,746,344  695,696 

 443,731,904  110,956,871 

NOTE:  VAT & TAX deduction at source have been deposited to Govt. Exchequer subsequently. 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

24.00 Provision For WPPF & WWF: 

Opening balance as on January 01, 2015  11,992,391  8,614,520 

Provided during the year  13,096,948  11,992,391 

 25,089,339  20,606,911 

Paid during the year  (11,992,391)  (8,614,520)

Closing Balance as on December 31, 2015  13,096,948  11,992,391 

25.00 Cost of Goods Sold: 

Opening Stock of Raw Materials  1,948,127,797  1,810,865,772 

Add: Purchase during the year   5,435,891,533  7,059,308,822 

Raw material available for consumption.  7,384,019,330  8,870,174,594 

Less: Sales of Scrap  43,958,276  27,035,171 

Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials  1,544,667,786  1,948,127,797 

 1,588,626,062  1,975,162,968 

Raw Material Consumed  5,795,393,268  6,895,011,626 

Add: Production/Manufacturing Overhead 

Salaries & Allowances  121,326,658  119,801,187 

Casual Wages  24,649,628  23,403,071 

Factory Overhead (Note No. 25.01)  148,101,252  145,604,685 

Power   859,207,343  844,549,261 

Gas    60,236  - 

Fuel & Lubricants Consumed  21,824,158  23,281,591 

Mechanical store   36,514,850  101,388,037 

Electrical store  16,811,275  12,879,303 

General Store  7,606,991  7,858,190 

Godown Rent  9,726,825  7,258,696 

Consumable Store Consumed (Note No. 25.02)  223,248,476  266,174,742 

Depreciation (Note No. 04)  168,930,377  168,653,040 

 1,638,008,069  1,720,851,803 

Cost of Goods Manufactured  7,433,401,337  8,615,863,429 

Add: Opening Stock of Finished Goods  72,308,618  144,382,360 

Goods available for Sale  7,505,709,955  8,760,245,789 

Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods  29,261,876  72,308,618 

Cost of Goods Sold  7,476,448,079  8,687,937,171 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

25.01 Factory Overhead:

Factory Office Expenses  249,507  115,051 

Repairs & Maintenance  9,675,530  13,995,750 

Printing & Stationary  Expenses  5,826  42,451 

Generator Expenses  -  1,313,369 

Medical Expenses  1,434,847  1,409,533 

Postage & Telegram  6,286  24,472 

Electric Expenses  8,917,161  7,676,409 

Travelling  1,248,993  1,157,602 

Conveyance   5,842,385  5,999,071 

Entertainment  4,233,496  3,832,043 

Guest House Rent  1,003,152  1,318,976 

Carrying Charge  103,607,866  99,616,564 

Gratuity  5,514,780  3,159,283 

Consultancy Fee  2,472,698  876,928 

Fees & Renewal  245,694  327,225 

Paper & Periodical  10,024  10,394 

Telephone & Mobile Expenses  58,133  199,315 

Insurance Expenses  1,678,524  2,485,037 

Guest House Expenses  1,442,819  2,045,212 

Testing Charges  453,531  - 

 148,101,252  145,604,685 

25.02 Consumable Store Consumed: 

Lining Materials  177,167,895  136,513,014 

Consumable Store   46,080,581  129,661,728 

 223,248,476  266,174,742 

26.00 General & Administrative Cost: 

Directors Remuneration (Note No. 26.01)  13,200,000  12,000,000 

Depreciation ( Note No. 04)  95,201  1,397,877 

Amortization ( Note No. 06 )  953,600  79,467 

Motor Car Expenses  311,624  296,711 

Travelling Expenses  222,824  317,146 

Salaries & Allowances  9,523,702  8,203,304 

Office Rent  1,622,877  1,633,897 

Advertisement Expenses  25,200  14,040 

Office Expenses  290,548  104,749 

Professional Fees  1,701,546  2,924,520 

Conveyance Expenses  109,450  415,110 

Stationery   130,633  22,996 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

Repair & Maintenance  1,463,655 1,341,804

Postage & Telegram  -  17,645 

Mobile & Telephone Expenses  476,213  385,791 

Audit Fee  94,700  75,667 

Entertainment Expenses  1,612,734  2,238,985 

Legal Expenses  282,940  205,382 

Training Expenses  263,725  88,090 

Fees & Renewals  742,243  773,053 

Electricity Expenses  519,914  509,643 

Medical Expenses  197,608  174,871 

Donation & Subscription Expenses  105,500  182,000 

Gratuity  547,676  358,417 

 34,494,113  33,761,165 

 26.01  Directors Remuneration: 

 Name Designation 
Basic Salary  Per Month 

2015
Taka 

2014
Taka  Jan-Jun, 

2015 
 Jul-Dec, 

2015 

 Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA Chairman  300,000  350,000  3,900,000  3,600,000 

 Mr. Aameir AliHussain Managing 
Director 

 200,000  250,000  2,700,000  2,400,000 

 Mr. Zohair Taherali Director  300,000  350,000  3,900,000  3,600,000 

 Mrs.Tehseen Zohair Taherali Director  200,000  250,000  2,700,000  2,400,000 

 13,200,000  12,000,000 

 27.00  Other Income: 

 Miscellaneous Income  5,658,321  7,839,938 

 Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  -  434,076 

 Truck/Trailor Rent Received  7,560,000  - 

 13,218,321  8,274,014 

 28.00  Financial Expenses: 

 Bank Charges  5,387,706  2,469,560 

 Interest on Loan Against Trust Receipts  52,146,743  195,463,126 

 Interest on Term Loan  34,967,842  80,107,448 

 Interest on Cash Credit & Overdraft  66,426,720  12,194,638 

 Interest ( Income) / Expenses on Related Companies  (15,482,400)  141,974,669 

 Foreign Currency (Gain)/Loss  ( Note No-28.01)  20,601,340  (5,520,682)

 164,047,951  426,688,759 
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2015 2014

Taka Taka 

28.01 Foreign Currency( Gain) / Loss : 

Foreign Currency( Gain)/ Loss Transaction  39,367,589  8,134,143 

Foreign Currency( Gain) / Loss Translation  (18,766,249)  (13,654,825)

 20,601,340  (5,520,682)

29.00 Financial ( Income) /Loss: 

Interest on FDR (Gross)  7,591,286  5,848,714 

 7,591,286  5,848,714 

30.00 Non-Operating Income: 

Truck/Trailor Rent Received  -  7,570,500 

 -  7,570,500 

31.00 Earnings Per Share (EPS):

The computation of EPS is given below:

a) Profit attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders (Net Profit After Tax)  8,786,639  166,836,194 

b) No. of Shares Outstanding for the year (1,100,000,000/10)  110,000,000  110,000,000 

 0.08  1.52 

32.00 Capacity Utilization:

2015 2014

32.01 Production Capacity: MT MT

Installed Capacity (In M.Ton) yearly  190,000.00  190,000.00 

Actual Production (In M.Ton)  176,311.92  180,677.59 

% of capacity utilization 93% 95%

32.02 Number of Employees:

2015 2014

Persons Persons

Number of employees whose salary was below Tk. 3,000  -  - 

Number of employees whose salary was above Tk. 3,000 315 305

Total No. of Employees  315  305 
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www.bsrm.com

BSRM Xtreme is the only 500W grade steel rod in Bangladesh to have successfully 
passed the Fatigue Test, enduring 5 million [50 lacs] cyclic loading.

With this certification in hand, BSRM Xtreme can safely declare itself as the ultimate 
steel on which the future of infrastructures, multistoried industrial and commercial 
buildings can rely upon, which are all subjected to continuous cyclic load reversals.

Building the nation progressively, safely!

XTREME SAFETY FOR
THE NEXT GENERATION



172
BSRM Steels Limited        Annual Report 2015

Mining is the extraction of valuable minerals deposits from deep in the earth’s 
crust which is of economic interest to the nation

Mining
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SHAREHOLDERS’
INFORMATION

 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) 

No. of AGM	:	 14th AGM 

Date	 :	 March 30, 2016

Venue	 :	 Institution of Engineers of Bangladesh, Chittagong Center,
		  S. S. Khaled Road, Chittagong.

Time	 :	 9:30 AM

RECORD DATE

The Record date is March 3, 2016 
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  FINANCIAL CALENDAR 

Financial Year: 1st January to 31st December.

During the year 2015 operational results of the company were announced on:

   January

       February

         March

           April

            May

             June

            July

           August

          September

       October

    November

December

2nd Quarter Report: 13th July 2015

1st Quarter Report: 14th May 2015

3rd Quarter Report: 17th October 2015

Annual Report: 10th February 2016

2015

BSRM STEELS SHARE PERFORMANCE ON STOCK EXCHANGES

Movement of Close share price on Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) during the year 2015:

Highest value: 102.5      I     Lowest value: 54.2

BSRM Steels Limited
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  DIVIDEND DATE  

A final dividend @ 30% cash has been recommended on 10 February 2016 and after having approval of the shareholders at the AGM, 
dividend will be distributed within 30 days from the date of AGM.

  LISTING 

The company’s shares are listed at the Stock Exchanges at Dhaka and Chittagong of Bangladesh. 

FACE VALUE PER SHARE: Tk. 10/= 

 CLOSING PRICE OF PER SHARE

Closing Price of per share of your company as at 30th December 2015 was Taka 96.30

  DIVIDEND 

 Year Rate of Dividend Form of Dividend

 2015 30% Cash (Recommended)

 2014 15% Cash

 2013 15% Cash

 2012 10% and 5% Cash and Stock respectively

 2011 15% Cash

 2010 20% Stock (Bonus)

 2009 15% Stock (Bonus)

  PLANT LOCATION
4, Fouzderhat Industrial Estate, Chittagong, Bangladesh. Tel: +88(031) 2770192-3.

  INVESTOR CORRESPONDENCE 

Mail to: BSRM Steels Limited, Ali Mansion, 1207/1099, Sadarghat Road, Chittagong, Bangladesh, 
Voice: +880 31 2854901-10, E-mail:mail@bsrm.com, Fax: +880 31 610101, Web: www.bsrm.com

                          EPS 

 Year Taka

 2015 6.09

 2014 3.18

 2013 4.95

 2012 2.53

 2011 2.46

 2010 2.82

 2009 1.68

            MARKET CAPITALIZATION

 Year Taka in million

 2015 32,913

 2014 29,974

 2013 23,480

 2012 22,101

 2011 38,572

 2010 57,200

 2009 14,670
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Modern agriculture is the business of food production from cultivation, 
harvesting, food processing, to distribution of farmed products.

Modern Agriculture
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EVENTS & IMAGES

A view of shareholders attended at 13th Annual General Meeting held 
on 15th June, 2015 at The Institution of Engineers Bangladesh (IEB)

BSRM Steels Limited awarded for practicing excellent governance by 
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB). Mr. Aamier 
Alihussain, Managing Director of the Company received the prestigious 
award from honorable Finance Minister Mr. AMA Muhit.

BSRM awarded for being the best electricity consumer of 2015 under 
industrial category in Power & Energy week 2015. The award ceremony 
was held at Bangabandhu International Conference Centre (BICC) on 10th 
December 2015.  Honorable President Mr. Md. Abdul Hamid inaugurated 
the ceremony as chief guest and handed over the esteemed award to 
Managing Director Mr. Aamier Alihussain.

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA, Chairman of the Company along with 
Company Secretary and others Directors addressed number of issues 
to the shareholders at 13th AGM.

A special resolution to raise fund by issuing Zero Coupon Bond (ZCB) of 
Tk. 2,000 million was passed in the 7th Extra General Meeting (EGM) 
held at Shoronika Community Center, Chittagong on 25th August 2015. 
Among others, Chairmen of the Company Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA, 
Managing Director of the Company Mr. Aamier Alihussain, Independent 
Director, Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA, Company Secretary Mr. Shekhar 
Ranjan Kar FCA were present at the meeting. A good number of 
shareholders attended the EGM as well.
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BSRM Group Chairman Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA has been 
recognized with Mercantile Bank Honorary Award 2015 for his 
outstanding contribution to the Industry & Commerce sector of the 
country over the years. The occasion was 16th founding anniversary 
of Mercantile Bank held at Ball Room of Pan Pacific Sonargaon Hotel 
on 1st June, 2015. Mr. Aamier Alihussain, Managing Director of BSRM 
received gold medal and certificate on Chairman’s behalf from 
honorable Commerce Minister Mr. Tofayel Ahmed.

BSRM recognized as the best brand in the category of reinforcing 
steel for the 4th consecutive year.

Mr. Mohammad Arif ACA, ACMA, CFO, BSRM Steels Limited received 
the prestigious certificate of merit under manufacturing category on 
behalf of the Company for best presented Annual Report and 
maintaining good Corporate Governance in 2014 by ICAB from 
Commerce Minister Mr. Tofayel Ahmed.

BSRM organized a seminar titled “ The Advent of grade-80” to begin 
“Maxima” a high strength steel re-bar at Pan Pacific Sonargaon 
Hotel, Dhaka on 15th December 2015, were BUET experts shared their 
knowledge on this new product.

BSRM organized a seminar on “Innovation in hybrid building design” on 
27th August, 2015 in the ball room of Pan Pacific Sonargaon Hotel, 
Dhaka. The seminar was presided over by Prof. Dr. Jamilur Reza 
Chowdhury, Vice-Chancellor of University of Asia Pacific as Chief Guest 
and attended by engineers, consultants, professors and industry 
professionals, key note speakers along with BSRM high officials.

EVENTS & IMAGES
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Terms Brief description

The Company / Parent BSRM Steels Limited

Subsidiary BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.

Associate BSRM Steel Mills Limited

Revenue Turnover or Sales

Profit Income

Profit attributable to the shareholders’ Net profit after tax

Basic EPS
Basic Earnings per Share (Profit attributable to the Ordinary shareholders
divided by weighted average number of Ordinary shares)

Diluted EPS Diluted Earnings or Income per Share

Deferred Tax
Difference between the carrying value of property, plant & equipment as per financial statements 
and tax written down value and financial position liability method for gratuity obligation.

Equity Shareholders’ Fund or Owners’ Fund

Net Current Assets Current Assets less Current Liabilities

Capital Employed Non-current Assets plus Net Current Assets

Revaluation Reserve Reserve created from assets re-valuation

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Tax & Depreciation Allowance

Return on Shareholders’ Equity Net Profit after Tax divided by Shareholders’ Equity

Return on Capital Employed Net Profit after Tax divided by Capital Employed

Current Ratio Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Quick / Acid Test Ratio Current Assets less Inventories divided by Current Liabilities

Inventory Turnover Ratio Revenue divided by Inventories

Total Assets Turnover Ratio Revenue divided by Total Assets

P/E Ratio Market value per share as at reporting date divided by EPS

Price/Equity Ratio Market price divided by face value per share

Dividend Payout Ratio Yearly dividend per share divided by EPS

Dividend Covered Ratio Net Profit after Tax divided by declared Dividend

Debt-equity Ratio Current plus long term liabilities divided by shareholders’ equity

Interest Coverage Ratio EBIT divided by Interest expenses

Market Capitalization Market price per share multiplied by number of Ordinary Shares
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BSRM OFFICE MAP

Shohid Muktijoddha
ABC Kazi Azizul Islam Sarak

30 Godown Road, South Alekanda, Barisal
Phone: 01713-362984, Fax: 0431-62048

Atlanta Trade Center
Level-6, Plot # 01, Road # 1/A, Sector-4
Uttara Model Town, Dhaka
Phone: 02-8957027, 02-8958029, Fax No. 8956496

BSRM Warehouse, Ulipur Market,
Ganeshpur, R K Road, Rangpur

Phone: 01711795148, Tell: 0521-56092
Fax: 0521-56091
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BSRM Steels Limited
Registered office: Ali Mansion, 1207/1099 Sadarghat Road, Chittagong

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my presence at the 14th Annual General Meeting of BSRM Steels Limited on March 30, 2016.

Name ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

BO ID           

------------------------------------
Signature Signature Verified

 --------------------------------
 Authorized Signature
 BSRM Steels Limited

Note: Please complete this Attendance Slip and deposit at the registration counter on the day of the meeting.

BSRM Steels Limited
Registered office: Ali Mansion, 1207/1099 Sadarghat Road, Chittagong

PROXY FORM
I/We .....................................................................................................................................................................................................(Name) 

of ................................................................................................................................................................................................(Address)

being a Shareholder of BSRM Steels Limited (“the company”) hereby appoint,

Mr. /Ms. ..........................................................................................................................................................................................(Name)  

of ................................................................................................................................................................................................(Address)

as my /our proxy, to attend on my/our behalf at the 14th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on March 30, 2016 and 
at any adjournment thereof or any poll that may be taken in consequence thereof and to vote on my /our behalf as he /she thinks 
appropriate on all resolutions.  

Dated this-------------------------------------------------------------------- day of --------------------------------------------------2016.

-------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------
Signature of the Shareholder Signature of the Proxy
Folio /BO ID No: Folio/BD ID No :

Dated ------------------------------- Dated --------------------------------

--------------------------------------
Signature of the witness 

Note: The Proxy Form, dully filled in and stamped, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, Ali Mansion, 1207/1099 
Sadarghat Road, Chittagong not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the holding of the meeting.

 Signature Verified
 

 ------------------------------------
 Authorized Signature
 BSRM Steels Limited
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